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Florida Public Service Commission 	 ~ ( ) 

0'
Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd, 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: 	 Application Form for Authority to Provide 
Interexchange Telecommunications Service 
Between Points Within the State of Florida 
Docket No. 03() 1ft; / -71 

To Whom It May Concern: 

On behalf of Entrix Telecom, Inc . ("Entrix"), I hereby provide an original and six 
(6) copies of the above-mentioned Application. Additionally, I have provided a $250.00 
filing fee. Please date-stamp the additional copy of this cover letter and return it to me in 
the enclosed self-addressed, stamped envelope provided. 

If you have any questions regarding this Application, please contact me at (973) 
438-4854. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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Carl Wolf Billek 
Entrix Telecom, Inc. 
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On behalf of Entrix Telecom, Inc. ("Entrix"), I hereby provide an original and six 
(6) copies of the above-mentioned Application. Additionally, I have provided a $250.00 
filing fee. Please date-stamp the additional copy of this cover letter and return it to me in 
the enclosed self-addressed, stamped envelope provided. 

If you have any questions regarding this Application, please contact me at (973) 
438-4854. 
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APPLICATION 

1. This is an application for d (check one): 

(X) Original certificate (new company). 

( ) Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the original 
certificate of authority. 

( ) Approval of assignment of existing certificate: Example, a certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the certificate 
of authority of that company. 

( ) Approval of transfer of control: Example, a company purchases 51% of a 
certificated company. The Commission must approve the new controlling 
entity. 

2. Name of company: Entrix Telecom, Inc. 

3. Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

Applicant intends to do business under the name Entrix Telecom, Inc. 

4. Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, 
zip code): 

520 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 07102-31 I I 

5. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, zip 
code): 

Company does not have a Florida address. Company's registered agent in 
Florida is: CT Corporation System, 1200 South Pine Island Road, Plantation, 
FL 33324. 

2 FORM PSCICMU 8 (I 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 



6. Select type of Business your company will be conducting d (check all that apply): 

( ) Facilities-based carrier - company owns and operates or plans to own and operate 
tetecommunications switches and transmission facilities in Florida. 

( ) Operator Service Provider - company provides or plans to provide alternative 
operator sewices for 1XCs; or toll operator services to call aggregator locations; or 
clearinghouse services to bill such calls. 

(X) Reseller - company has or plans to have one or more switches but primarily leases 
the transmission facilities of other carriers. Bills its own customer base for services used. 

( ) Switchless Rebiller - company has no switch or transmission facilities but may have 
a billing computer. Aggregates traffic to obtain bulk discounts from underlying carrier. 
Rebills end users at a rate above its discount but generally below the rate end users 
would pay for unaggregated traffic. 

( ) Multi-Location Discount Aggregator - company contracts with unaffiliated entities 
to obtain bulklvolume discounts under multi-location discount plans from certain 
underlying carriers, then offers resold service by enrolling unaffiliated customers. 

(X) Prepaid Debit Card Provider - any person or entity that purchases 800 access from 
an underlying carrier or unaffiliated entity for use with prepaid debit card service and/or 
encodes the cards with personal identification numbers. 

7. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual 
(X ) Foreign Corporation 
( ) General Partnership 
( )Other 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (I  1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.81 5 

( ) Corporation 
( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) Limited Partnership 
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8. If individual, provide: 

Name: 

Title: 

Not Applicable - Applicant is not an individual 

Address: 

C it y/S t a t e/Z i p : 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet W ebsite Address: 

9. If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

Not Applicable - Applicant is not incorporated in Florida. 

f0.  If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

F-02000005482 

I I. If usinq fictitious name-d/b/a, provide proof of compliance with fictitious name 
statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 

Not Applicable -Applicant is not using a fictitious name. 

12. If a limited liability partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State registration number: 

Not Applicable - Applicant is not a limited liability partnership. 

4 FORM PSClCMU 8 (I 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
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13. If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of the 
partnership ag reemen E. 

Name: Not Applicable - Applicant is not a partnership. 

Title: 

Add r e s  : 

City/State/Zi p: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

1 n te met E- Ma i I Add ress: 

Internet Website Address: 

14. If a foreign limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign 
limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.169, FS), if applicable. 

Not Applicable - Applicant is not a foreign limited partnership. 

(a) The Florida registration number: 

15. Provide F.E.I. Number(if applicable): Not Applicable. 

16. Provide the following (if applicable): 

(a) Will the name of your company appear on the bill for your services? 
(X ) Yes ( ) No 

(b) If not, who will bill for your services? 

Name: 
Title: 
Address: 
C i ty/S t a t e/Zi p : 
Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

5 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (I 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0,  and 25-24.81 5 



(c) How is this information provided? 

Applicant’s customers will purchase prepaid phone cards. Phone 
cards will be decremented based on customer use. Customer will be 
able to call toll-free number to determine amount of use on phone 
card. 

17. Who will receive the bills for your service? 

(X) Residential Customers 
( ) PATs providers 
( ) Hotels & motels 
( ) Universities 
( ) Other: (specify) . 

(X) Business Customers 
( ) PATs station end-users 
( ) Hotel & motel guests 
( ) Universities dormitory residents 

18. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Name: Carl Wolf Billek 
Title: Associate General Counsel 
Address: 520 Broad Street 
City/State/Zip: Newark, New Jersey 071 02-31 I I 
Telephone No.: (973) 438-4854 Fax No.: (973) 438-1455 
Internet E-Mail Address: Carl.Billek@corp.idt.net 
Internet Website Address: Not Applicable - Applicant does not have a website. 

6 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.815 



(b) Official point of contact for the ongoiniq operations of the company: 

Name:Carl Wolf Billek 

TitIe: Associate General Counsel 

Address: 520 Broad Street 

CitylStatelZip: Newark, New Jersey 07102-31 1 I 

Telephone No.:(973) 438-4854 Fax No.: (973) 438-1455 
in te met E -M a i I Address : Carl I 6 i I le k@corp. i dt. net 
Internet Website Address: Not Applicable - Applicant does not have a 
website. 

(c) Complain ts/l nquiries from customers: 

Name: Anthony Acevedo 

Title: Legal Department Customer Service Legal Liason 

Address: 520 Broad Street 

City/State/Zip: Newark, New Jersey 071 021131 I I 

Telephone No.: (973) 438-4827 Fax No.: (973) 438-1455 
Internet E-Mail Address:Anthony.Acevedo@corp.idt.net 
Internet Website Address: Not Applicable - Applicant does not have a 
we bsi te. 

19. List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) has operated as an interexchange telecommunications company. 

Applicant has not commenced operations in any state. 

(b) has applications pending to be certificated as an interexchange 
telecommunications exchange company. 

Arkansas, Colorado, Indiana, Kansas, Louisiana, Minnesota, Oklahoma, 
Washington and Wisconsin. 

7 FORM PSClCMU 8 (7  1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.875 



(c) is certificated to operate as an interexchange telecommunications company. 

Idaho, Iowa, New York, Virginia and Oregon 

(d) has been denied authority to operate as an interexchange elecommunications 
company and the circumstances involved. 

Applicant has never been denied authority to operate as an 
inerexchange telecommunications company. 

(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 
statutes and the circumstances involved. 

Applicant has never had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of 
telecommunications statutes. 

(f) has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, 
local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the 
circumstances involved. 

Applicant has never been involved in civil court proceedings with an 
interexchange carrier, local exchange company or other 
telecommunications entity. 

8 FORM PSCICMU 8 (I 1/95> 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.81 5 



20. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders have 
previously been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or of any 
crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. If so, please 
explain. 

No officer, director or any of the ten largest stock holders has previously 
been adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony 
or of any crime, nor may any such actions result from pending proceedings: 

(b) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no longer 
associated with company, give reason why not. 

IDT Corporation, the parent corporation of Entrix Telecom, Inc. is also the 
ultimate corporate parent of IDT America, Corp. and Winstar 
Communications, LLC, both Florida certificated telephone companies. 

21. The applicant will provide the following interexchange carrier services - (check all 
that a p pl y ) : 

a. - MTS with distance sensitive per minute rates 

Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 
Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

b. X MTS with route specific rates per minute 

Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 
Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

X 
X 

c. - MTS with statewide flat rates per minute (i.e. not distance 
sen sit ive) 

9 FORM PSClCMU 8 (I .1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
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d. 

e. 

f. 

gm - 

h. 

I .  

j. 

k. 

I. 

MTS 

Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 
Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

D r  pay telephone service providers 

Block-of-time calling plan (Reach Out Florida, Ring America, etc.). 

800 service (toll free) 

WATS type sewice (bulk or volume discount) 

Method of access is via dedicated facilities 
Method of access is via switched facilities 

Private line services (Channel Services) 
(For ex. 1.544 mbs., DS-3, etc.) 

Travel service 

Method of access is 950 
Method of access is 800 

900 service 

Operator services 

Available to presu bscribed customers 
Available to non presubscribed customers (for example, to 
patrons of hotels, students in universities, patients in 
h os pita Is). 
Available to inmates 

Services included are: 

Station assistance 
Pe rso n-to-pe rso n assistance 
Directory assistance 
Operator verify and interrupt 
Conference calling 

10 FORM PSCKMU 8 ( 4  1/95> 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 25-24.81 5 



22. 

23. 

Submit the proposed tariff under which the company plans to begin operation. Use 
the format required by Commission Rule 25-24.485 (example enclosed). 

See Attachment A. 

Submit the following: 

A. Managerial capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the company 
that would indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each. 

Please see Attachment B 

Technical capability: give resumes of employeedofficers of the company 
that would indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate what company 
has been contracted to conduct technical maintenance. 

Please See Attachment C 

B. 

C. Financial capability. 

The application should contain the applicant's audited financial statements for the 
most recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it 
shall so be stated. 

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the applicant's chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer affirminq that the financial statements 
are true and correct and should include: 

I. the balance sheet: 

2. income statement: and 

3. statement of retained earnings. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, buf is not limited 50, financial statements, a 
projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and descriptions 
of business rela tionships with fin an cia I ins tit u tion s. 

As a newly formed entity, Applicant does not have 3 years of audited 
financial statements. At Attachment 0, Applicant provides the most recent 3 
years' audited financial statements of its corporate parent, IDT Corporation, 
upon which Applicant relies for a demonstration of its financial capability. 
Additional financial statements may be found at http://www.idt.net/ir/. 

1 1  FORM PSC/CMU 8 (I 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 



Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be provided: 

I . written explanation that the  applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
provide the requested sewice in the geographic area proposed to be sewed. 

2. written explanation that the applicant- has sufficient financial capability to 
maintain the  requested service. 

3. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to meet 
its lease or ownership obligations. 

Applicant, through its corporate parent, IDT Corporation, has the 
sufficient financial capability to: (1) provide interexchange service 
throughout the State of Florida; (2) maintain provision of such service; 
and (3) meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

As demonstrated by the enclosed SEC filings and the information 
below, IDT Corporation is unquestionably financially capable and 
secure. in the June 24,2002 issue Business Week, IDT Corporation was 
listed in the Business Week Info Tech 100, a ranking of the top 
technology companies in the world based on their performance over the 
past 12 months. In addition, IDT was ranked among the top ten 
telecommunications companies in two categories. Based on 
performance over the last 12 months, IDT was ranked second among all 
telecommunications companies for Total Shareholder Return at 34%. In 
the category of Revenue Growth, IDT came in eighth at 23.4%. Overall, 
IDT ranked number 96 among all tech companies on the global list. 

Also, in the April 15,2002 issue of FORTUNE Magazine, IDT Corporation 
was ranked among the FORTUNE 1,000, The FORTUNE 1,000 ranks the 
largest publicly-traded US. corporations By annual revenues. At $1.231 
billion, the magazine noted IDT’s 2001 Revenues are up 13% from the 
year before. In addition, the magazine rated 1DT first among alf ranked 
telecommunications companies for total return to investors and for 
prof i ta bi I i ty . 
According to the FORTUNE 1,000 rankings, IDT Corporation led all 23 
companies listed in the telecommunications category with a 92% total 
return to Investors as measured by an increase in share price. 

IDT Corporation also came out on top in its category in the FORTUNE 
1,000 Profitability rankings. The Company was number one in profits as 
a percent of stockholders’ equity at 49%. In addition, IDT’s profit as a 
percent of revenues was also rated first at 43%, and profit as a percent 
of assets was the highest in the category at 28%. 

12 FORM PSClCMU 8 (I 1/95) 
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THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT 

I, REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies must 
pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of .+I5 of one percent of gross 
operating revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the gross operating 
revenue of a company, a minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is required. 

2. GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: I understand that all telephone companies must pay a 
gross receipts tax of two and one-half percent on all intra and interstate business. 

3. SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra and 
interstate reve n u es a 

4. APPLICATION FEE: t understand that a non-refundable application fee of $250.00 
must be submitted with the application. 

UTI LITY 0 FFI CI AL: 

Norman Rosenberg 

Print Name 

c y  (' {-e k4 k-- L 

I 
Title Date 

(973) 438-4001 (973) 438-1455 

Telephone No. Fax No. 

520 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 071 02-31 I 1  
Address: 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (I 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.810, and 2524.81 5 
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THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS 

A statement of how the Commission can be assured of the security of the customer's 
deposits and advance payments may be provided in- .one of the following ways (applicant, 
please check one): 

( ) The applicant will not collect deposits nor will it collect 
payments for service more than one month in advance. 

(X) The applicant intends to collect deposits and/or advance 
payments for more than one month's service and will file and 
maintain a surety bond with the Commission in an amount 
equal to the current balance of deposits and advance 
payments in excess of one month. 

(The bond must accompany the application.) 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Norman Rosenberg 

Print Name Signature 
e*"- - - & - -  

Tit le Date 

(973) 438-4001 (973) 438-1455 

Telephone No. Fax No. 

520 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 071 02-31 I I 
Address : 

14 FORM PSClCMU 8 ( 7  1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
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THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

AFFIDAVIT 

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of the 
information contained in this application and attached documents and that the 
applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to 
provide interexchange telecommunications company service in the State of Florida. 
I have read the foregoing and deciare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, 

the information is true and correct. I attest that 1 have the authority to sign on 
behalf of my company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all 
applicable Commission rules and orders. 

- 

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, 
"Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to 
mislead a public servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty 
of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 
and s. 775.083." 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Norman Rosenberg 

Print Name 

(973) 438-4001 (973) 438-7455 

Telephone No. Fax No. 

520 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 071 02-31 I 'l 
Address: 

15 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (I 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
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CURRENT FLORIDA INTRASTATE SERVICES 

Applicant has () or has not (X) previously provided intrastate telecommunications in 
Florida. 

If the answer is has, fully describe the following: - 

a) What services have been provided and when did these services begin? 

b) If the services are not currently offered, when were they discontinued? 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Norman Rosenberg 

Print Name Signature I 

Title 

(973) 438-4001 

J ' I  Date 

(973) 438-1455 

Telephone No. Fax No. 

520 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 07102-31 1 I 
Add ress : 

FORM PSCICMU 8 (1 1/95) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 

16 



CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT 

The information below does not apply to the present application, as this application is 
not for a certificate safe, transfer or assignment. 

I, (Name) 
(Tit I e) of (Name of Company) 

and current holder of Florida Public Service Commission Certificate Number # 

( ) sale 

, have reviewed this application and join in the petitioner's request for a: 

( ) transfer 

( ) assignment 

of the above-mentioned certificate. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Print Name Sign at u re 

Date Title 

Telephone No. Fax No. 

Address: 

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (1 1/95> 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Tariff 

18 FORM PSClCMU 8 (1 1/95) 
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ENTRIX TELECOM, INC. Original SHEET 1 
PSC TariffNo. 1 

TITLE SHEET-. 

FLORIDA TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF 

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furnishing of 

service or facilities for Telecommunications Services fbmished by Entrix Telecom, Inc. (“Entrix”), 

with principal offices at 520 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 071 02-3 1 1 1. This tariff applies for 

services hmished within the State of Florida. This tariff is on file with the Florida Public Service 

Commission, and copies may be inspected, during normal business hours, at the company’s principal 

place of business. 

Issue Date: February 14, 2003 Effective Date: 

Issued by: Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 1 



ENTRIX TELECOM, INC. Original SHEET 2 
PSC Tariff No. 1 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

CONCUWNG, CONNECTING OR 

OTHER PARTICIPATING CARRIERS AND 

BILLING AGENTS 

Concurring Carriers - None 

Connecting Carriers - None 

Other Participating Carriers - None 

Billing Agents - None 

Issue Date: February 14,2003 Effective Date: 

Issued by: Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 1 



ENTRIX TELECOM, INC. Original SHEET 3 
PSC Tariff No. 1 

CHECK SHEET 

Sheets 1 through 32 inclusive of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of 
the respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes fi-om the 
original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this sheet. 

SHEET 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

REVISION 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

SHEET 

21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 

REVISION 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

Issue Date: February 14, 2003 

Issued by: 

Effective Date: 

Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07102-3 1 1 1 



ENTRIX TELECOM. N C  . Original SHEET 4 
PSC Tariff No . 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
_ I  Page 
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Concurring. Connecting or Other Participating Carriers and Billing Agents .................................. 2 
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Section 1 . Technical Terms and Abbreviations .............................................................................. 9 

Section 2 . Rules and Regulations ................................................................................................. 11 
2.1 Undertaking of the Company ................................................................................. 11 
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2.3 Liability of the Company ....................................................................................... 14 
2.4 Responsibilities of the Customer ........................................................................... 16 
2.5 Cancellation or Intemption of Services ................................................................ 18 
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2.7 Restoration of Service ............................................................................................ 21 

2.9 Advance Payments ................................................................................................. 21 
2.10 Payment and Billing ............................................................................................... 22 
2.1 1 Collection Costs ..................................................................................................... 23 
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2 . I4 

2.8 Deposit ................................................................................................................... 21 

Returned Check Charge ......................................................................................... 23 

.. 

Issue Date: February 14. 2003 

Issued by: 

Effective Date: 

Carl Wolf Billek. Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark. New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 1 



ENTRIX TELECOM. INC . Original SHEET 5 
PSC Tariff No . 1 

Page 

Section 3 . Description of Service ................................................................................................. 24 
3.1 Computation of Charges ........................................................................................ 24 
3.2 Customer Complaints and/or Billing Disputes ...................................................... 25 
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3.4 Billing Entity Conditions ....................................................................................... 26 
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4.1 Prepaid Toll Free Calling Cards ............................................................................. 31 
4.2 Prepaid Local Access Calling Card ........................................................................ 31 
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TARIFF FORMAT 

A. Sheet Numbering: Sheet numbers appear in the upper right comer of the page. Sheets 
are numbered sequentially. However, new sheets are occasionally added to the tariff. When a new 
sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, anew sheet added 
between pages 1 1 and 12 would be page 11.1. 

B. Sheet Revision Numbers: Revision numbers also appear in the upper right comer of 
each sheet where applicable. These numbers are used to indicate the most current page version on 
file with the Commission. For example, 4th Revised Sheet 13 cancels 3rd Revised Sheet 13. Consult 
the Check Sheet for the sheets currently in effect. 

C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence: There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each 
level of coding is subservient to its next higher level: 

2 1  
2.1.1 
2.1.1 .A 
2. I .  1 .A. 1 
2.1.1 .AS .(a) 
2.1.1 .A. I .(a).I 
2.l.l.A.l.(a).I.(i) 
2.l.l.A.l.(a).I.(i).(l) 

D. Check Sheets: When a tariff filing is made with the Commission, an updated Check 
Sheet accompanies the tariff filing. The Check Sheet lists the sheets contained in the tariff, with a 
cross reference to the current Revision Number. When new sheets are added, the Check Sheet is 
changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an asterisk (*). 
There will be no other symbols used on this sheet if these are the only changes made to it (i.e., the 
format, etc. remains the same, just revised revision levels on some sheets). The tariff user should 
refer to the latest Check Sheet to find out if a particular sheet is the most current on Commission file. 
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SYMBOLS 

The following are the only syrnbols used for the purposes indicated below: 

(D) to signify a deletion 
(I) 
(M) 
(N) 
(R) 
(T) 

to signify a rate increase 
to signif4i. material relocated in the tariff 
to signify a new rate or regulation 
to signify a rate reduction 
to signify a change in text, but no change in rate or regulation 

~~ 
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SECTION I - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

Access Line - An arrangement from a local exchange telephone company or other c o m o n  
carrier, using either dedicated or switched access, which connects a Customer’s location to Entrix’s 
location or switching center. 

Authorization Code - A numerical code, one or more of which may be assigned 
Customer, to enable Entrix to identify the origin of the Customer so it may rate and bill the 
Automatic number identification (ANI) is used as the authorization code wherever possible. 

Commission - Used throughout this tariff to mean the Florida Public Service Commission. 

to a 
call. 

Customer - The person, firm, corporation or other legal entity which orders the services of 
Entrix or purchases a Entrix Prepaid Calling Card and/or originates prepaid calls using such cards, 
and is responsible for the payment of charges and for compliance with the Company’s tariff 
regulations. 

Company or Entrix - Used throughout this tariff to mean Entrix Telecom, hc. ,  a New Jersey 
corporation. 

Holiday - New Year’s Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Chnstmas 
Day. Holidays shall be billed at the evening rate from 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. After 11 pm. ,  the lower 
night rate shall go into effect. 

Prepaid Account - An inventory of Telecom Units purchased in advance by the Customer, 
and associated with one and only one Authorization Code as contained in a specific Prepaid Calling 
Card. 

Prepaid Calling Card - A card issued by the Company, containing an Authorization Code 
which identifies a specific Prepaid Account of Telecom Units, which enables calls to be processed, 
account activity to be logged, and balances to be maintained, on a prepayment basis. 
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (Cont’d) 

Telecom Unit - A measurement of telecommunications service equivalent to one minute of 
usage between any two points within the State of Florida. 

Telecommunications - The transmission of voice communications or, subject to the 
transmission capabilities of the services, the transmission of data, facsimile, signaling, metering, or 
other similar communications. 

Underlying Carrier - The telecommunications carrier whose network facilities provide the 
technical capability and capacity necessary for the transmission and reception of Customer 
telecommunications traffic . 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND RIEGULATIONS 

2.1 Undertaking of the Company 

This tariff contains the regulations and rates applicable to intrastate resold 
telecomniunications services provided by Entrix for telecommunications between points 
within the State of Florida. Resale services are furnished subject to the availability of 
facilities and subject to the terms and conditions of this tariff in compliance with limitations 
set forth in the Commission’s rules. The Company’s services are provided on a statewide 
basis and are not intended to be limited geographically. The Company offers service to all 
those; who desire to purchase service from the Company consistent with all of the provisions 
of this tariff. Customers interested in the Company’s services shall file a service application 
with the Company which fully identifies the Customer, the services requested and other 
information requested by the Company. The Company reserves the right to examine the 
credit record and check the references of all applicants and Customers. The Company may 
examine the credit profile/record of any applicant prior to accepting the service order or a 
Customer’s deposit, if required. The service application and the deposit shall not in 
themselves obligate the Company to provide services or to continue to provide service if a 
later check of applicant’s credit record is, in the opinion of the Company, c o n t r q  to the best 
interest of the Company. If service is denied, Customer deposits, if required, will be returned 
immediately. The Company may act as the Customer’s agent for ordering access connection 
facilities provided by other carriers or entities when authorized by the Customer, to allow 
connection of a Customer’s location to a service provided by the Company. The Customer 
shall be responsible for all charges due for such service arrangement. The Company does not 
own any switching, transniission or other physical facilities in Florida. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 
_ .  

2.1 Undertaking of the Company (Cont’d) 

2. I .  1 The services provided by Entrix are not part of a joint undertaking with any other 
entity providing telecommunications channels facilities, or services, but may involve 
the resale of the Message Toll Sewices (MTS) and Wide Area Telecommunications 
Services (WATS) of underlying common carriers subject to the jurisdiction of this 
Commission. 

2.1.2 The rates and regulations contained in this tariff apply only to the resale services 
fumished by Entrix and do not apply, unless otherwise specified, to the lines, 
facilities, or services provided by a local exchange telephone company or other 
commoii carriers for use in accessing the services of Entrix. 

2.1.3 The Company reserves the right to limit the length of communications, to discontinue 
fbmishing services, or limit the use of service necessitated by conditions beyond its 
control, including, without limitation: lack of satellite or other transmission medium 
capacity; the revision, alteration or repricing of the Underlying Carrier’s tariffed 
offerings; or when the use of service becomes or is in violation of the law or the 
provisions of this tariff. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.2 Use of Services 

2.2.1 Entrix’s services may be used for any lawful1 purpose consistent with the transmission 
and switching parameters of the telecommunications facilities utilized in the 
provision of services, subject to any limitations set forth in this Section 2.2. 

2.2.2 The use of Entrix’s services to make calls which might reasonably be expected to 
frighten, abuse, torment, or harass another or in such a way as to unreasonably 
interfere with use by others is prohibited. 

2.2.3 The use of Enfxix’s services without payment for seivice or attempting to avoid 
payment for service by fraudulent means or devices, schemes, false or invalid 
numbers, or false calling or credit cards is prohibited. 

2.2.4 Entrix’s services are available for use 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. 

2.2.5 Eiitrix does not transmit messages, but the services may be used for that purpose. 

2.2.6 Entrix’s services may be denied for nonpayment of charges or for other violations of 
this tariff. 

2.2.7 Customers shall not use the service provided under this tariff for any unlawful 
purpose. 

2.2.8 The Customer is responsible for notiEyrng the Company immediately of any 
unauthorized use of services. 

Issue Date: February 14, 2003 Effective Date: 

Issued by: Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 I 



ENTRE TELECOM, INC. Original SHEET 14 
PSC TariffNo. 1 

SECTION 2 - RULES ANI) REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.3 Liability of the Company 

2.3.1 The Company shall not be liable for any claim, loss, expense or damage for any 
intermption, delay, error, omission, or defect in any service, facility or transmission 
provided under this taxiff, if caused by the Underlying Carrier, an act of God, fire, 
war, civil disturbance, act of government, or due to any other causes beyond the 
Company’s control. 

2.3.2 The Company shall not be liable for, and shall be hl ly  indemnified and held 
harmless by the Customer against any claim, loss, expense, or damage for 
defamation, libel, slander, invasion, infringement of copyright or patent, 
unauthorized use of any trademark, trade name or service mark, proprietary or 
creative right, or any other injury to any person, property or entity arising out of the 
material, data or information transmitted. 

2.3.3 No agent or employee of any other carrier or entity shall be deemed to be an agent or 
employee of the Company. 

2.3.4 The Company’s liability for damages, resulting in whole or in part from or arising in 
connection with the hmishing of service under this tariff, including but not limited to 
mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors, or other defects or 
misrepresentations shall not exceed an amount equal to the charges provided for 
under this tariff for the long distance call for the period during which the call was 
affected. No other liability in any event shall attach to the Company. 

2.3.5 The Company shall not be liable for and shall be indemnified and saved harmless by 
any Customer or by any other entity from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits, or 
other action or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or 
asserted by any Customer or any other entity for any personal injury to, or death of, 
any person or persons, and for any loss, damage, defacement or destruction of the 
premises of any Customer or any other entity or any other property whether owned or 
controlled by the Customer or others. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.3 Liability of the Company (Cont’d) 

2.3.6 The Company shall not be liable for any indirect, special, incidental, or consequential 
damages under this tariff including, but not limited to, loss of revenue or profits, far 
any reason whatsoever, including the breakdown of facilities associated with the 
service, or for any mistakes, omissions, delays, errors, or defects in transmission 
occurring during the course of furnishing service. 

2.3.7 The remedies set forth herein are exclusive and in lieu of all other warranties and 
remedies, whether express, implied, or statutory, INCLUDING WITHOUT 
LIMITATION IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.4 Responsibilities of the Customer 

2.4.1 The Customer is responsible for placing any necessary orders and complying with 
tariff regulations. The Customer is also responsible for the payment of charges for 
services provided under this tariff. 

2.4.2 The Customer is responsible for charges incurred for special construction and/or 
special facilities which the Customer requests and which are ordered by Entrix on the 
Customer’s behalf. 

2.4.3 If required for the provision of Entrix’s services, the Customer must provide any 
equipment space, supporting structure, conduit and electrical power without charge to 
Entrix. 

2.4. The Customer is responsible for arranging access to its premises at times mutually 
agreeable to Entrix and the Customer when required for Entrix personnel to install, 
repair, maintain, program, inspect or remove equipment associated with the provision 
of Entrix’s services. 

2.4.5 The Customer shall cause the temperature and relative humidity in the equipment 
space provided by Customer for the installation of Entrix’s equipment to be 
maintained within the range normally provided for the operation of microcomputers. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.4 Responsibilities of the Customer (Cont’d) 

2.4.6 The Customer shall ensure that the equipment and/or system is properly interfaced 
with Entrix’s facilities or services, that the signals emitted into Entrix’s network a e  
of the proper mode, bandwidth, power and signal level for the intended use of the 
subscriber and in compliance with criteria set forth in this tauiff, and that the signals 
do not damage equipment, injure personnel, or degrade service to other Customers. If 
the Federal Communications Commission or some other appropriate certifyrng body 
certifies terminal equipment as being technically acceptable for direct electrical 
connection with interstate communications service, Entrix will permit such 
equipment to be connected with its channels without the use of protective interface 
devices. If the Customer fails to niaintain the equipment and/or the system properly, 
with resulting imminent harm to Entrix equipment, personnel or the quality of service 
to other Customers, Entrix may, upon written notice, require the use of protective 
equipment at the Customer’s expense. If this fails to produce satisfactory quality and 
safety, Entrix may, upon written notice, terminate the Customer’s service. 

2.4.7 The Customer must pay Entrix for replacement or repair of darnage to the equipment 
or facilities of Entrix caused by negligence or willful act of the Customer or others, 
by improper use of the services, or by use of equipment provided by Customer or 
others. 

2.4.8 The Custonier must pay for the loss through theft ofany Entrix equipment installed at 
Customer’s premises. 

2.4.9 If Entrix installs equipment at Customer’s premises, the Customer shall be 
responsible for payment of any applicable installation charge. 

2.4.10 The Customer must use the services offered in this tariff in a manner consistent with 
the terms of this tariff and the policies and regulations of all state, federal and local 
authorities having jurisdiction over the service. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 
- -  

2.5 Cancellation or Interruption of Services (Cont’d) 

2.5.1 Without hx r r ing  liability, upon five ( 5 )  working days’ (defined as any day on which 
the company’s business office is open and the U.S. Mail is delivered) written notice 
to the Customer, Entrix may immediately discontinue services to a Customer or may 
withhold the provision of ordered or contracted services: 

2.5.1 .AFor nonpayment of any sum due Entrix for more than thirty (30) days after 
issuance of the bill for the amount due, 

2.5.1 .BFor violation of any of the provisions of this tafiff, 

2.5.1 .CFor violation of any law, rule, regulation, policy of any goveming authority 
having jurisdiction over Entrix’s services, or 

2.5.1 .DBy reason of any order or decision of a court, public service commission or 
federal regulatory body or other governing authority prohibiting Entrix from 
fumishing its services. 

2.5.2 Without incurring liability, IDT may immediately discontinue services, without 
notice, in the event Customer violates or is suspected of violating any law, rule, 
regulation and/or policy of any goveming authority having jurisdiction over IDT’s 
s ervi c es . 

2.5.3 Without incurring liability, Entrix may interrupt the provision of services at any time 
in order to perform tests and inspections to assure compliance with tariff regulations 
and the proper installation and operation of Customer and Entrix’s equipment and 
facilities and may continue such interruption until any items of noncompliance or 
improper equipment operation so identified are rectified. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.5 Cancellation or Interruption of Services (Cont’d) 

2.5.4 Service may be discontinued by Entrix without notice to the Customer, by blocking 
traffic to certain countries, cities or NXX exchanges, or by blocking calls using 
certain Customer authorization codes, when Entrix deems it necessary to take such 
action to prevent unlawful use of its service. Entrix will restore service as soon as it 
can be provided without undue risk, and will, upon request by the Customer affected, 
assign a new authorization code to replace the one that has been deactivated. 

2.5.5 The Customer may terminate service upon thirty (30) days’ written notice for the 
Company’s standard month-to-month contract. Customer will be liable for all usage 
on any of the Company’s service offerings until the Customer actually leaves the 
service. Customers will continue to have Company usage until the Customer notifies 
its local exchange camer and changes its long distance carrier. Until the Customer so 
notifies its local exchange carrier, it shall continue to generate and be responsible for 
long distance usage. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.6 Credit Allowance 

2.6.1 Credit allowance for the interruption of service which is not due to the Company’s 
testing or adjusting, negligence of the Customer, or to the failure of channels or 
equipment provided by the Customer, are subject to the general liability provisions 
set forth in 2.3 herein. It shall be the obligation of the Customer to notify the 
Company immediately of any interruption in sei-vice for which a credit allowance is 
desired. Before giving such notice, the Customer shall ascertain that the trouble is not 
being caused by any action or omission by the Customer within his control, or is not 
in wiring or equipment, if any, furnished by the Customer and connected to the 
Company’ s facilities . 

2.4.2 No credit is allowed in the event that service must be interrupted in order to provide 
routine service quality or related investigations. 

2.6.3 Credit for failure of service shall be allowed only when such failure is caused by or 
occurs due to causes within the control of the Company or in the event that the 
Company is entitled to a credit for the failure of the facilities of the Company’s 
Underlying Carrier used to f m i s h  service. 

2.6.4 Credit for interruption shall commence after the Customer notifies the Company of 
the interruption or when the Company becomes aware thereof, and ceases when 
service has been restored. 

2.6.5 For purposes of credit computation, every month shall be considered to have 720 
hours. 

2.6.6 No credit shall be allowed for an interruption of a continuous duration of less than 
two hours. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.6 Credit Allowance (Cont’d) 

2.6.7 The Customer shall be credited for an interruption of two hours or more at the rate of 
U720th of the monthly charge for the facilities affected for each hour or major 
fraction thereof that the interruption continues. 

Credit Formula: 

Credit = - A x B  
720 

“A” - outage time in hours 
“B” - monthly charge for affected activity 

2.7 Restoration of Service 

The use and restoration of service shall be in accordance with the priority system specified in 
part 64, Subpart D of the Rules and Regulations of the Federal Communications 
Commission 

2.8 Deposit 

The Company does not require deposits to comence  service. 

2.9 Advance Payments 

Entrix reserves the right to collect an advance payment fiom Customers in an amount not to 
exceed one (1) month’s estimated charges as an advance payment for service. This will be 
applied against the next month’s charges, and if necessary, a new advance payment will be 
collected for the next month. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 
- -  

2.10 Payment and Billing 

2.10.1 Service is provided and billed on a billing cycle basis, beginning on the date that 
service becomes effective. Billing is payable upon receipt. A late fee will be assessed 
upon unpaid amounts 30 days after rendition of bills. 

2.10.2 The customer is responsible for payment of all charges for services fmished to the 
Customer, as well as to all persons using the Customer’s codes, exchange lines, 
facilities, or equipment, with or without the knowledge or consent of the Customer. 
The security of the Customer’s Authorization Codes, subscribed exchange lines, and 
direct connect facilities is the responsibility of the Customer. All calls placed using 
direct connect facilities, subscribed exchange lines, or Authorization Codes will be 
billed to and must be paid by the Customer. Recurring charges and non-recurring 
charges are billed in advance. The initial billing may, at Company’s option, also 
include one-month’s estimated usage billed in advance, Thereafler, charges based on 
actual usage during a month and any accrued interest will be billed monthly in 
arrears. 

2.10.3 All bills are presumed accurate, and shall be binding on the customer unless 
objection is received by the Company in writing within 30 days after such bills are 
rendered. No credits, refunds, or adjustments shall be granted if demand therefore is 
not received by the Company in writing within such 30 day period. 

2.10.4 Casual callers are responsible for payment of all charges for services hmished. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.1 1 Collection Costs 

In the event Company is required to initiate legal proceedings to collect any amounts due to 
Company for regulated or non-regulated services, equipment or facilities, or to enforce any 
judgment obtained against a Customer, or for the enforcement of any other provision of this 
tariff or applicable law, Customer shall, in addition to all amounts due, be liable to Company 
for all reasonable costs incurred by Company in such proceedings and enforcement actions, 
including reasonable attomeys’ fees, collection agency fees or payments, and court costs. Ln 
any such proceeding, the mount of collection costs, including attomeys’ fees, due to the 
Company, will be determined by the court. 

2.12 Taxes 

All federal, state and local taxes, assessments, surcharges, or fees, including sales taxes, use 
taxes, gross receipts taxes, and municipal utilities taxes, are included within a 20% tax which 
shall be deducted from prepaid calling card for services provided. 

2.13 Late Charge 

A late fee of 1.5% monthly or the amount otherwise authorized by law, whichever is lower, 
will be charged on any past due balances. 

2.14 Returned Check Charge 

A fee of $10.00 will be charged whenever a check or draft presented for payment for service 
is not accepted by the institution on which it is written. 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE 
- -  

3.1 Computation of Charges 

3.1.1 The total charge for each completed call may be a variable measured charge 
dependent on the duration, distance and time of day of the call. The total charge for 
each completed call may also be dependent only on the duration of the call, Le. a 
statewide flat rate per minute charge. The variable measured charge is specified as a 
rate per minute which is applied to each minute. Calls are measured in initial three- 
minute increments with the final minute rounded up to a five-minute increment. 

3.1.2 Where mileage bands appear in a rate table, rates for all calls are based upon the 
airline distance between the originating and terminating points of the call, as 
determined by the vertical and horizontal coordinates associated with the exchange 
(the area code and three-digit central office code) associated with the originating and 
terminating telephone numbers. If the Customer obtains access to the Company’s 
network by a dedicated access circuit, that circuit will be assigned an exchange for 
rating purposes based upon the Customer’s main telephone number at the location 
where the dedicated access circuit terminates. The vertical and horizontal (V & H) 
coordinates for each exchange and the airline distance between them will be 
determined according to industry standards. 

3.1.3 Timing begins when the called station is answered and two-way comniunication is 
possible, as determined by standard industry methods generally in use for 
ascertaining answer, including hardware answer supervision in which the local 
telephone company sends a signal to the switch or the software utilizing audio tone 
detection. Recognition of answer supervision is the responsibility of the Underlying 
Camer. Timing for each call ends when either party hangs up. Entrix will not bill for 
unc omp 1 et ed c a1 1 s . 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE (Cont’d) 

3.2 Customer Complaints and/or Billing Disputes 

Customer inquiries or complaints regarding service or accounting may be made in writing or 
by telephone to the Company at: 

520 Broad Street 
Newark, New Jersey 071 02-3 1 1 1 
(800) 889-9126 

Any objection to billed charges should be reported promptly to Entrix. Adjustments to 
Customers’ bills shall be made to the extent that records are available and/or circumstances 
exist which reasonably indicate that such charges are not in accordance with approved rates 
or that an adjustment niay otherwise be appropriate. Where overbilling of a subscriber 
occurs, due either to Company or subscriber error, no liability exists which will require the 
Company to pay any interest, dividend or other compensation on the amount overbilled. 

If notice of a dispute as to charges is not received in writing by the Company within thirty 
(30) days after an invoice is rendered, such invoice shall be deemed to be correct and binding 
upon the Customer. 

3.3 Level of Service 

A Customer can expect end to end network availability of not less than 99% at all times for 
all services. 

Issue Date: February 14, 2003 Effective Date: 

Carl -w-oif Biiiek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 1 



ENTRPX TELECOM, N C .  Original SHEET 26 
PSC Tariff No. 1 

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE (Cont’d) 

3.4 Billing Entity Conditions 

When billing functions on behalf of Entrix or its intermediary are performed by local 
exchange telephone companies or others, the payment of charge conditions and regulations of 
such companies and any regulations imposed upon these companies by regulatory bodies 
having jurisdiction apply. Entrix’s name and toll-free telephone number will appear on the 
Customer’s bill. 

3.5 Service Offerings 

3.5.1 Prepaid Toll Free Calling Cards 

This service permits the use of prepaid calling cards for placing calls within the State. 
Customers may purchase Prepaid Toll Free Calling Cards at a variety of retail outlets 
or through other distribution channels. These cards are available in face values of 
$5.00, $10.00, and $20.00 and are non-refundable. 

Prepaid Toll Free Calling Cards are accessed using a toll free number telephone 
number printed on the card. The caller is prompted by an automated voice response 
system to enter hidher Authorization Code and then to enter the terminating 
telephone number. The Company’s processor tracks the call duration on a real time 
basis to determine the cost consumed. The total consumed cost for each call is 
deducted from the remaining balance on the card. 

All calls must be charged against a card that has a sufficient balance. These cxds are 
not rechargeable, and all calls will be intempted when the balance on the cards 
reaches zero. Cardholders may dial another telephone number whle using the card by 
depressing the pound (#) button and entering in the new telephone number. 

A credit allowance for Prepaid Toll Free Calling Cards is applicable to calls that are 
interrupted due to poor transmission, one-way transmission, or involuntary 
disconnection of a call. To receive proper credit, the Customer must notify the 
Company at the designated toll-free customer service number printed on the card and 
fumish the called number, the trouble experienced (e.g. cut off, noisy circuit, reached 
wrong number, etc.) and the approximate time the call was placed. 

Issue Date: February 14,2003 

Issued by: 

Effective Date: 

Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 I 1 



ENTRIX TELECOM, INC. Original SHEET 27 
PSC Tariff No. 1 

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE (Cont’d) 

3.5 Service Offerings (Cont’d) 

3.5.1 Prepaid Toll Free Calling Cards (Cont’d) 

When a call charged to a Prepaid Toll Free Calling Card is interrupted due to cut-off, 
one-way transmission, or poor transmission conditions, the Customer will receive a 
credit equivalent of one minute. Credit allowances for do not apply for intemptions 
not reported promptly to the Company or interruptions that are due to failure of 
power, equipment or systems not provided by the Company. 

Certain calls may not be completed using the Prepaid Toll Free Calling Card. These 
include operator services, busy line verification service, intemption service, calls 
requiring time and charges, air-to-ground calls, masine/satellite calls, and calls placed 
via dialing a 700 or 900 number. 

Issue Date: February 14,2003 Effective Date: 

Issued by: Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 1 



ENTRUC. TELECOM, INC. Origiiial SHEET 28 
PSC Tariff No. 1 

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE (Cont’d) 

3.5 Service Offerings (Cont’d) 

3.5.2 Prepaid Local Access Calling Cards 

This service permits the use of prepaid calling cards for placing calls within the State. 
Customers may purchase Prepaid Local Access Calling Cards at a variety of retail 
outlets or through other distribution channels. These cards are available in face 
values of $5.00, $10.00, and $20.00 and are non-refundable. 

Prepaid Local Access Calling Cards are accessed using a local access number 
telephone nurnber printed on the card. The caller is prompted by an automated voice 
response system to enter hisher Authorization Code and then to enter the terminating 
telephone number. The Company’s processor tracks the call duration on a real time 
basis to determine the cost consumed. The total consumed cost for each call is 
deducted from the remaining balance on the card. 

All calls must be charged against a card that has a sufficient balance. These cards are 
not rechargeable, and all calls will be intempted when the balance on the cards 
reaches zero. Cardholders may dial another telephone number while using the card by 
depressing the pound (#) button and entering in the iiew telephone number. 

A credit allowance for Prepaid Local Access Calling Cards is applicable to calls that 
are interrupted due to poor transmission, one-way transmission, or involuntary 
discoimection of a call. To receive proper credit, the Customer must notify the 
Company at the designated toll-free customer service number printed on the card and 
fumish the called number, the trouble experienced (e.g. cut off, noisy circuit, reached 
wrong number, etc.) and the approximate time the call was placed. 

Issue Date: February 14,2003 Effective Date: 

Issued by: Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 1 



Original SHEET 29 
PSC Tariff No. 1 

ENTRE TELECOM, INC. 

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE (Cont’d) 

3.5 Service Offerings (Cont’d) 

3.5.2 Prepaid Local Access Calling Cards (Cont’d) 

When a call charged to a Prepaid Local Access Calling Card is interrupted due to cut- 
off, one-way transmission, or poor transmission conditions, the Customer will 
receive a credit equivalent of one minute. Credit allowances for do not apply for 
interruptions not reported promptly to the Company or interruptions that are due to 
failure of power, equipment or systems not provided by the Company. 

Certain calls may not be completed using the Prepaid Local Access Calling Card. 
These include operator services, busy line verification service, interruption service, 
calls requiring time and charges, air-to-ground caIls, marinehatellite calls, and calls 
placed via dialing a 700 or 900 number. 

Issue Date: February 14,2003 Effective Date: 

Cari Woif Biilek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 1 



ENTFXK TELECOM, N C .  Original SHEET 30 
PSC Tariff No. 1 

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE (Cont’d) 

3.5 Service Offerings (Cont ’ d) 

3.5.3 Directory Assistance 

Entrix does not provide local directory assistance. Access to long distance directory 
assistance is obtained by dialing 1 + 555-1212 for listings within the originating area 
code and 1 + (area code) + 555- 12 12 for other listings. When more than one number 
is requested in a single call, a charge may apply for each number requested. A charge 
will be applicable for each number requested, whether or not the number is listed or 
published. 

3.5.4 Specialized Pricing Arrangements 

Customized service packages and competitive pricing packages at negotiated rates 
may be fbmished on a case-by-case basis in response to requests by Customers to the 
Company for proposals or for competitive bids. Service offered under this tariff 
provision will be provided to Customers pursuant to contract. Unless otherwise 
specified, the regulations for such arrangements are in addition to the applicable 
regulations and prices in other sections of the tariff. Specialized rates or charges will 
be made available to similarly situated Customers on a non-discriminatory basis. 

3.5.5 Emergency Call Handling Procedures 

Emergency “91.1” calls are not routed to company, but are completed through the 
local network at no charge. 

3.5.6 Promotional Offerings 

The Company may, from time to time, make promotional offerings to enhance the 
marketing of its services. These offerings may be limited to certain dates, times and 
locations. The Coinpany will notify the Cominission of such offerings as required by 
Commission rules and regulations. 

Issue Date: February 14,2003 Effective Date: 

Issued by: Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Couiisel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 I 1 



ENTRIX TELECOM, N C .  Original SHEET 31 
PSC TariffNo. 1 

SECTION 4 - RATES 

4.1 Prepaid Toll Free Calling Cards 

Prepaid Toll Free Calling Cards may be used as listed below, twenty-four hours a day, seven 
days a week, three hundred and sixty-five days a year. 

The Intrastate Usage Rates for Prepaid Toll Free Calling Cards are: 

A maximum per minute rate shall not exceed $1 .OO. 

A maximum per-call connection rate shall not exceed $1 .OO. 

A maximum bi-weekly service charge of $0.79 shall be applied after its first use and every 
fourteen ( 14) days thereafter. 

A maximum surcharge of $0.65 shall be applied to each completed call made from a 
payphone using a Prepaid Toll Free Calling Card. 

4.2 Prepaid Local Access Calling Cards 

Prepaid Local Access Calling Cards may be used as listed below, twenty-four hours a day, 
seven days a week, three hundred and sixty-five days a year. 

The Intrastate Usage Rates for Prepaid Local Access Calling Cards are: 

A maximum per minute rate shall not exceed $1 .OO. 

A maximum per-call connection rate shall not exceed $1.00. 

A maximum bi-weekly service charge of $0.79 shall be applied after its first use and every 
fourteen (1 4) days thereafter. 

4.3 Directory Assistance 

A surcharge per call of $1 .OO sliall apply to all Directory Assistance calls made using a 
Prepaid Toll Free Calling Card. 

Issue Date: Februaiy 14, 2003 

Issued by: 

Effective Date: 

Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 1 



ENTRE TELECOM, INC. Original SHEET 32 
PSC Tariff No. 1 

SECTION 4 - RATES (Cont’d) 
- -  

4.4 Special Rates 

4.4.1 Discounts for Hearing Impaired Customers and Telecommunications Relay 
Service: 

htrastate toll messages which are communicated using a telecommunications 
device for the deaf (TDD) by properly certified hearing or speech impaired 
persons or properly certified business establishments or individuals equipped with 
TDDs for communicating with hearing or speech impaired persons will be 
discounted on a subsequent bill for such calls placed between TDDs by applymg 
the evening rate during business day hours and the night/weekend rate dutinr the 
evening rate period. Intrastate toll calls received 

from the relay services will be discounted 50% off the otherwise applicable rate 
for a voice nonrelay call except if either the calling party or called party indicates 
that either party is both hearing and visually impaired, a 60% discount shall apply. 
Discounts do not apply to surcharges or per call add on charges for operator 
service when the call is placed by a method that would normally incur the 
surcharge. 

4.4.2 Operator and Directory Assistance for Handicapped Persons: 

Operator station surcharges will be waived for operator assistance provided to a caller 
who identified him or herself as being handicapped and unable to dial because of a 
handicap. There is no charge for Directory Assistance for calls from handicapped 
persons. Such persons must contact IDT for credit on their directory assistance calls. 

Issue Date: February 14, 2003 

Issued by: 

Effective Date: 

Carl Wolf Billek, Associate General Counsel 
520 Broad Street 

Newark, New Jersey 07 102-3 1 1 1 
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Managerial Qualifications 

Morris Lichtenstein has been the President of Entrix Telecom, hic. since its inception. 
He continues to serve as the Executive Vice President of Business Development of IDT 
Corporation, as he has since January 2000. From January 1999 to December 1999, Mr. 
Lichtenstein served as Controller for IDT Corpbration. Since August 2001, Mr. 
Lichtenstein has also served as the Vice Chairman and Board of Directors and Chief 
Executive Officer of IDT Telecom, Inc. From January 1998 to December 1999, Mr. 
Lichtenstein served as the Controller of Mademoiselle Knitwear, Inc. Mr. Lichtenstein I 

received his B.A. from Touro College. 

Norman Rosenberg has been the Secretary of Entrix Telecom, Inc. since its inception. 
He is also the Chief Financial Officer of IDT Corporation’s (‘TDT”) wholly owned 
subsidiary, IDT Telecom, Inc. Since joining IDT in October 1999, he has sewed in a 
variety of roles, including Senior Vice President of Capital Markets, Vice President of 
Finance and Director of Investor Relations. Before joining DIT, Mr. Rosenberg spent five 
years at Standard & Poor’s Corp., most recently as a Senior Investment Officer in 
Standard & Poor’s Equity Research department, acting as the finn’s senior Energy equity 
analyst. He was also a inember of Standard & Poor’s Investment Policy and Portfolio 
committees. Mr. Rosenberg received his M.S. in Finance from the Jolms Hopkins 
University in Baltimore, MD. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of 
the Association of Investment Management and Research and the New York Society of 
Security Analysts. 
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20 FORM PSCICMU 8 (I 1/95) 
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Tech n i ca I Qua I if i ca t i o n s 

As a wholly owned subsidiary of IDT Corporation, Applicant intends to rely, in part on 
the technical qualifications of its parent corporation. 

Keith Mendelson has held several positions since joining IDT Corporation in 1995. Mr. 
Mendelson is presently the Executive Vice President of Retail Operations of IDT 
Telecom, Inc., a subsidiary of IDT Corporation. Mr. Mendelson received a B.A. from 
Yeshiva University. 

Kathy Timko is the Executive Vice President of Engineering and Operations of IDT 
Telecom, Inc. Ms.Timko has served as Chief Operating Officer of InterExchange, IDT 
Corporation's Engineering and Operations Division, since 1998. From 1995 to 1998, Ms. 
Timko served as the Executive Vice President of Product Development and 
Operations at Call Sciences, a provider of enhanced telecommunications services. 
Prior to 1995, Ms. Timko worked at Bellcore (now Telcordia) and BBN Technologies. Ms. 
Timko holds a B.S. degree from Virginia Tech and a M.S. degree from Boston 
U niversity. 

., 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CO*MMISSION 

Washington;D.C. 20549 

F O M  lO=K 
FOR ANNUAL AND TRANSITION REPORTS PURSUANT TO 

SECTIONS 13 OR 15(d) OF THlE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES E X C W G E  
ACT OF 1934 FOR TEE FISCAL YEAX ENDED JULY 31,2002, OR 

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934. 

Commission File Number: 0-27898 

IDT CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specifled in its charter) 

Delaware 22-341 503 6 
(State of other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) GRS. Employer Identification Number) 

520 Broad Street 
Newark, New Jersey 07102 

(Address of principal executive offices, including area code) 

(973) 438-1000 
(Registrant’s telephone number, inclu&ng area code) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12&) of the Act: Common Stock, par value $.01 per share 
Class B Common Stock, par value $.01 per share 

None 
(Title of class) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 1Z(g) of the Act: 

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant: (1) has fled all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required 
to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, 
and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by 
reference in Part m of this Form 10-K or my amendment to this Form lo-& 

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affifiates of the Registrant, based on the closing price on 
October 25,2002 of the Common Stock of $17.66 and of the Qass B Common Stock of $16.30, as reported on the New York 
Stock Exchange, was approximately $821 rmllion. Shares of Common Stock held by each officer and director and by each 
person who owns 5% or more of the outstanding Common Stock (assuming conversion of the Registrant’s CIass A Common 
Stock) or Class B Common Stock have been excluded from this computation, in that such persons may be deemed to be 
affiliates of the Registrant. T h i s  determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive determination for my other 
purpose. 

As of October 25,2002, the Registrant had outstanding 25,020,972 shares of Common Stock, $.Ol par value, 9,816,988 
shares of Class A Common Stock, $.01 par value, and 54,091,855 shares of Class B Common Stock, $.Ol par value. Included 
in these numbers are 5,419,963 shares of Common Stock and 4,019,163 shares of Class 3 Common Stock, held by IDT 
Corporation. 

DOCUMENTS TNCORPORAmD BY REIFER1ENCE 
Certain information in the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement‘ for its 2002 Annual Meeting of Stoc&olders, which 

will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Remaulation 14A, not later than 220 days after July 31, 
2002, is incorporated by reference in Part n[ (Item 5) and Part El (Items 10, 11, 12 and 13) of this Form 10-K. 
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PART N 

Item 15. EXHIBITS, F I N A N C U  STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K. 

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Report: 

1. Financial Statements. 

2. Financial Statement Schedules. 

Schedule No. 
~. .- 

I. 
Description 

Valuation and Qtlallfving Accounts 

3. Exhibits 

Exhibit 
Number Description of Exhibit - 

3 .O 1 (1) 
3.02( 1) 
3.03(16) 

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant. 
By-laws of the Registrant. 
Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant. 
Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Howard S. Jonas. 
1996 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, of the Registrant. 
Form. of Stock Option Agreement under the 1996 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. 
Form of Registration Rights Agreement between certain stockholders and the Registrant. 
Lease of 294 State Street. 

Lease of 190 Main Street. 

Form of Registration Rights Agreement between Howard S. Jonas and the Registrant. 
Employment Agreement between the Registrant and James Courter. 
Agreement between. Cliff Sobel and the Registrant. 
Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Hal Brecher. 
Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Howard S. Jonas. 
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated April 7,1998, by and among the Registrant, ADM Corp., 

InterExchange, hc., David Turock, Eric Hecht, Richard Robbins, Bradley Turock, Wai Nam 
Tam, Maxy Jo Altom and Lisa Mdmlynec. 

Alliance, LLC. 

thereto, Lehman Commercial Paper hc., CIBC WorId Markets Corp. and Bankers Trust 
Company. 

the Registrant and Bankers Tmst Company, as Collateral Agent. 

the Registrant and Bankers Trust Company, as Collateral Agent. 

of the Registrant and Bankers Trust Company, as Collateral Agent. 

10.01(2) 
10.02(18) 

10.03(3) 
10.04(4) 
10.05(1) 

10.06(5) 
10.7(6) 

10.8(10) 

10.9(7) 
lO.lO(10) 
10.1 l(10) 
10.12(8) 

10.13(9) 

10.14(10) 

Securities Purchase Agreement between t he  Registrant, Carlos Gomez and Union Telecard 

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 10, 1999, by and among the Registnut, various lenders party 

10.15(10) Pledge Agreement, dated as of May IO, 1999, by and among the Registrant, certain subsidiaries of 

10.16(10) Security Agreement, dated as of May 10, 1999, by and among the Registrant, certain subsidiaries of 

€0.17(10) Subsidiaries Guaranty, dated as of May 10,1999, by and among the Registrant, certain subsidkuies 

10.18(10) Loan Agreement between the Registrant and Stephen Brown. 
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Exhibit 
Number - 
10.19(11) 

10.20(11> 

10.21(11> 

10.22(11) 

10.23(13) 

10.24( 1 I) 

10.25( 11) 

lO.26( 11) 

10.27 (1 2) 
10.28(12) 
10.29(13) 

1 0.30( 14) 

10.3 1 (13) 

1 0.3 2( 14) 

10.33(13) 

10.34(13) 

10.35(15) 

1 0.36 ( 19) 

10.37( 19) 

10.38( 19) 

Description of Exhibit 

htemet/Telecommunications Agreement, dated as of May 7,1999, by and between Regism" and 

Joint Marketing Agreement, dated as of May 7,1999, by and between Registrant and NeaPhone, 

IDT Services Agreement, dated as of May 7,1999, by and between Registrant and NeQPhone, Inc. 
Net2Phone Services Agreement, dated as of May 7,1999, by and between Registrant and 

Assi,o;nment Agreement, dated as of May 7,1999, by and between Registrant and NeQPhone, Inc. 
Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement, dated as of May 7, 1999, by and between Regist" 

Separation Agreement, dated as of May 7,1999, by and between Registrant and Netzhone, hc. 
Co-location and Facilities Management Services Agreement, dated as of May 20,1999, by and 

Lease of 520 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey. 
Amendment to Lease of 520 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey. 
Option Ageement, dated as of March 3,2000, between IDT Corporation and AT&T Corp. 
hendmen t  to Option Agreement, dated as of April 5,2000 between IDT Corporation and AT&T 

Subscription Agreement, dated as of March 24,2000, between IDT Corporation and Liberty Media 

Amendment to Subscription Agreement, dated as of May 26,2000, between IDT Corporation and 

Letter Agreement, dated as of March 28,2000, between IDT Corporation, AT&T Corp. and 

Letter Agreement, dated as of March 30,2000, between IDT Corporation, AT&T Corp. and 

Conversion, Termination and Release Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2000, between IDT 

NeQPhone, Inc. 

InC. 

NetZPhone, Inc. 

. 
and NeQPhone, Inc. 

between Registrant and NetZPhone, hc .  

Corp. 

Corporation. 

Liberty Media Corporation. 

NeQPhone, hc .  

NeQPhone, Inc. 

Corporation, Terra Networks, SA., Terra Networks USA, Inc., Tern Networks Access Services 
USA LLC and Terra Networks Interactive Services USA LLC. 

Stock Exchange Agreement, dated as of April 18,2001, by and among IDT Investments Inc., IDT 
Corporation, D T  America, Corp., 225 Old NB Road, Inc., 226 Old NI3 Road, Inc., 60 Park Place 
Holding Company, hc., Liberty Media Corporation, Microwave Holdings, L.L.C. and Liberty TP 
Management, Inc. 

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of November 26,1997, by and among Teligent, Inc., Microwave 
Services, Inc., Telcom-DTS Investors, L.L.C. and m A & T  Investment hc .  (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 2 to Schedule 13D, filed by The Associated Group, h c .  and Microwave 
Services, hc. on December 8, 1997 with respect to securities of Teligent, Inc.) 

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of March 6,1998, by and between Teligent, Inc. and 
Microwave Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6 to Amendment No. 1 to 
Schedule 13D, filed by The Associated Group, Inc. and Microwave Services, Inc. on March 9, 
1998 with respect to securities of Teligent, hc.) 
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Exhibit 
Number 

10.3 9( 19) 
- 

10.40(20) 

10.41(20) 

10.42(21) 

10.43122) 

10.44(23) 
I 0.45 (23) 

10.46(23) 
10.47( 24) 

10,48(24) 

1 0 -49 (24) 

10.50(25) 

10.5 l(26) 

1 O.52(26) 

10.53* 

10.54* 

10.55" 

10,56* 

10.57* 

10.W 
10.59'': 

Description of Exhibit 

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of January 13,2000, by and among Alex I. Mmd, Liberty 
Media Corporation, Telcom-DTS Investors, L.L.C. and Microwave Services, Inc. (Incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 7(i) to Schedule 13D, filed by Liberty AGI, Inc. on January 24,2000 with 
respect to securities of Teligent, hc.) 

Amendment to the Employment Agreement between the Registrant and James A, Courter 
Amendment No. 2 to the Employment Agreement between the Registrant and James A. Courter 
Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 18,2001, between IDT Winstar Acquisition, hc., 

Winstar Communications, Inc, and the subsidiaries of Winstar listed on Appendix 1 thereto. 

Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Howard S. Jonas. 
Subscription Agreement, dated as of August 11,2000, by and between Net2Phone and AT&T. 
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of August '1 1,2000, by and between AT&T, IDT and IDT 

Voting Agreement, dated as of August 11,2000, by and between ITdTech and IDT Investments. 

Limited Liability Company Agreement, dated as of October 19,2001, of Net2Phone Holdings, by 

Amended and Restated Limited Liabiliq Company Agreement, dated as of October 19,2001, of 

Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement, dated as of October 19, 

hvestmnts. 

IDT D-U 

Net2Phone Holdings, by and among AT&T, ITelTech, IDT and IDT D-U 

200 1, of Net2Phone Holdings, by and among AT&T, ITelTech, DT,  IDT D-U, IDT Investments, 
Liberty Media and LMC 

Net2Phone and the additional investors listed 04 Schedule A thereto. 

IT Stock, by Net2Phone Holdings. 

dated as of October 3 1,2001, of Net2Phone Holdings, by and among AT&T, RelTech, DT, IDT 
D-U, IDT Investments, Liberty Media and LMC. 

Registrant, UTCG Holdings LLC and Union Telecard Alliance, LLC. 

2002, by and among UTCG Holdings LLC, IDT Domestic-Union, LLC, the Registrant and Union 
Telecard AUiance, LLC. 

Netherlands, B.V. and Union Telecard Alliance, LLC. 

the Registrant and Winstar Holdings, LLC. 

Registrant and Liberty Media Corporation. 

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of May 13, 1999, by and among IDT, Clifford M. Sobel, 

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement, dated as of November 8,2001, of 

Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement, 

Amendment No. 1 to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated April 24,2002, by and among the 

Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Union Telecom AUiance, LLC, dated April 24, 

Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement, dated April 24,2002, by and between IDT 

Unit Purchase Agreement, dated April 10,2002, by and among WCI Capital C o p ,  Dipchip Corp., 

Lock-up, Registration Rights and Exchange Agreement, dated June 6,2000, by and between the 

Letter Agreement, dated April 22,2002, by and between Charles Gamer and the Regisizant. 
Employment Agreement, dated February 4,2002, by and between the Registrant and E. Brim 

Finkels tein . 
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Exbiblt 
Number Description of Exhibit - 
10,60* 

21.01* Subsidiaries of the Registrant. 

23.01* 

99.l(a)* 
99.1@)* 

Amendment to the Emplopent Agreement, dated October 24,2002, between the Registrmt and 
E. Brian Finlcelstein. 

Consent of Emst & Young LLP. 
Certification of chief Executive officer 
Certification of Chief Financial Officer 

- -  

* filed herewith 
(1) Incorporated by reference to Form S-l fled February 21,1996 161e no. 333-00204. 
(2) Incorporated by reference to Form S-1 fied January 9,1996 file no. 333-00204. 
(3) Incorporated by reference to Form S-8 filed January 14,1996 file no. 333-19727. 
(4) Incorporated by reference to Form S-1 filed March 8,1996 file no. 333-00204. 
(5) hcorporated by reference to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 3 1,1997, filed October 29, 1997. 
(6) Incorporated by reference to Form S-1 filed March 14,1996 file no. 333-00204. 
(7) Incorporated by reference to Fom 10-KIA for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1997, fded February 2, 1998. 
(8) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K fled April 22, 1998. 
(9) Incorporated by reference to Form 10-WA for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1998, filed December 4, 1998. 
(10) Incorporated by reference to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31, 1999, filed March 17, 1999. 
(1 1) Incorporated by reference to Fonn 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 1999, med June 14,1999. 
(12) Incorporated by reference to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 3 1, 1999, filed November 4,1999. 
(13) Incorporated by reference to Form 10-Q for the fscal quarter ended April 30,2001, filed March 12,2000. 
(14) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K Ned March 31,2000. 
(15) Incorporated by reference to Schedule 14C filed June 12,2000. 
(16) Incorporated by reference to Form 10-Q €or the fiscal quarter ended April 30,2000, filed June 14,2000. 
(17) Incorporated by reference to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2000, filed December 15, 

(18) Incorporated by reference to Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31,2001, fded March 19,2001. 
(19) Incorporated by reference to Schedule 13D fded on Apd 30,2001. 
(20) Incorporated by rderence to Form lo-Q for the fiscal quarter ended Octobm 31, 2001, filed December 17, 

(21) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K fded January 3,2002. 
(22) Incorporated by reference to Form lo-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30,2002, fded June 14,2002. 
(23) Incorporated by reference to Schedule 13D filed on August 21, 2000, with respect to NetZPhone, by IDT 

Investments, IDT and Howard S. Jonas. 
(24) Incorporated by reference to Schedule 13D, filed on October 25, 2001, with respect to NeaPhone, by 

N e P h o n e  Holdings, L.L.C., IDT Domestic-Union, LLC, IDT hvestments he. ,  IDT Nevada Holdings, 
hc., IDT Domestic Telecom, Inc., IDT Tele.com, Inc., IDT Corporation, Howard S. Jonas, ITelTech, LLC 
and AT&T COT. 

2000. 

2001. 

(25) Incorporated by reference to Form S-VA of Net2Phone filed June 20,1999. 
(26) Incorporated by reference to Schedule 132, filed on November 15,2001, with respect to Net2Phone, by IT 

Stock, Net2Phone Holdings, DT D-U, D T  Investments, D T  Nevada, IDT D-T, D T  Telecom, IDT, 
Howard S. Jonas, ITelTech and AT&T. 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K. 

On August 28, 2002, the Registrant filed hendmen t  No.1 to its Current Report on Form 8-K ori,crinally 
filed on January 3,2002. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
registrant has ddy caused this Annual Report on Form IO-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized. 

IDT CORPORA~ON 

By: is/ JAMES A. COURTER 
James A. Courter 

Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

Date: October 29, 2002 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has 
been signed by the following persons on behalf of the  Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Signature - 
/s/ HOWARD S. JONAS 

Howard S. Jonas 

/s/ SAZVIES A. COURTER 
James A. Courter 

/s/ STEPHEN R. BROWN 
Stephen R. Brown 

/s/ MARCELO FISCHER 
Marcel0 Fisher 

/s/ MCML FISC~ERGER 
Michael Fischberger 

i s /  JOYCE J. MASON 
Joyce J. Mason 

/s/ MARC E. KNOLLER 
Marc E. Knoller 

Moshe Kaganoff 

/s/ GEOFFREY ROCHWARGER 
Geoffrey Rochwarger 

i s /  MEYER A. BERMAN 
Meyer A. Berman 

/S/ 3. WAIiREN BLAKZR 
J. Warren Blaker 

Titles - 
Chairman 

Vice Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer (Principal Executive 
Officer) 

Chief Financial Officer and Director 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

Chief Accounting Officer and 
Controller (Principal Accounting 
Officer) 

Chief Operating Officer and Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Date 

October 29, 2002. 
- 

October 29, 2002 

October 29, 2002 

October 29, 2002 

October 29,2002 

October 29,2002 

October 29,2002 

October 29, 2002 

October 29,2002 

October 29,2002 

October 29,2002 
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Isl SAUL K. FENSTER Director 
Saul EL Fenster 

/SI MCHAEL J. L m  Director 
Michael J. Levitt 

/S/ WILLLAM hTHLJR OWENS Director 
William Arthur Owens 

/S/ PAULREICHMANN Director 
Paul Bdchmann 

Is/ WELMF. W ~ D  Director 
William F. Weld 

October 29,2002 

October 29,2002 

October 29,2002 

October 29,2002 

October 29,2002 
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CERTIFICATIONS 

I, James A. Courter, Chief Executive Officer of IDT Corporation, cerbfy that: 

1. 

2. 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of IDT Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this mud report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state a materid fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not mideading-with respect to the period covered by this annual 
report; and 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this 
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report. 

3. 

Date: October 29, 2002 

/s/ JAMES A. C O ~ T E R  
James A. Courter 
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CERTIHCATIONS 

I, Stephen R. Brown, Chief Financial Officer of IDT Corporation, certify that: 

1. 

2. 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of IDT Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a mabrial fact or 
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circmstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by th is m u d  
report; and 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial infomation included in th is  
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report. 

3. 

Date: October 29, 2002 

/s/ STEPHEN R. BROW 
Stephen. R Brown 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
IDT Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of D T  Corporation (the “Company”) a5 of 
M y  3 1, 2001 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2002. Our audits also included the financial 
statement schedule listed in the Jndex at Item 15(a). These hancial statements and schedule are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements and schedule based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted ia the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurmce about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the h a n d  statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that OUT audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Jh our ophion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the Company at July 31, 2001 and 2002 and the consolidated results of its 
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2002, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in OUT opinion, the related financial statement 
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic fmancial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all 
material respects the information set forth therein. 

New York, New York 
October 24,2002 
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IDT CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SEEEETS 

July 31 
2001 2002 

(in thousands. except share data) 
ASSETS 

.. Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Marketable securities ................................................ 
Trade accounts receivable. net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $22. 508 at 

July 31. 2001 and $38. 893 at July 31. 2002 ............................. 
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Property. plant and equipment. net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Licenses and other intangibles. net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Totalassets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
~U3ILITIES AND STOCECHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Trade accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accrvedexpenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capital lease obligations-current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Defeind tax liabilities. net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capital lease obligations-long-term portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Otherliabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Totalliabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minoiityinterests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commitments and contingencies 
Stockholders’ equity: 

Prefened stock, $.01 par value; authorized shares-l0,000, 000. no shares 

$1. 09 1. 071 
3. 489 

116. 759 
32. 413 

1.243. 732 
224. 042 
17 8. 293 
1951 1 
60. 732 

155. 279 
$1.881.589 

$ 163. 313 
54. 893 
7 1. 387 
20. 927 
17. 819 

328. 339 
390. 914 
50. 179 
14.502 

783. 934 
21. 419 

. 

228 

98 

$ 2 4 8  351. 
658. 731 

126. 153 
65. 291 

1.201. 423 
250. 631 
32. 702 
25. 503 
58. 903 
38.758 

$1.607. 920 

$ 5 2 9  121. 
124. 437 
112. 183 
22. 960 
11. 866 

392. 975 
24 1. 973 
45. 398 

3. 088 
683. 434 
54. 956 

issued . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized shares--100.000. 000. 22.791. 789 and 

19.568. 634 shares issued and outstanding in 2001 and 2002. respectively . . . . .  
Class A common stock, $.01 par value; authorized shares-35.000. 000. 

9. 8 16. 988 shares issued and outstanding in 2001 and 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Class B common stock. $.01 par value; authorized shares--100.000. 000. 

39.291. 411 and 49.990. 681 shares issued and outstanding in 2001 and 2002. 
respectively 393 500 

Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  494. 093 606. 387 
Treasury stock. at cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (138. 087) (153. 713) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. 

196 

98 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2 95 75) . (2. 675) 
R e t a i n e d e h g s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  722. 086 418, 737 

Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.076. 236 869. 530 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1.881. 589 $1.607. 920 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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IDT COWOWTION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Year ended July 31 
2000 2001 2002 
(in thansands, except per share data) 

Revenues .................................................. $1,093,912 $1,230,950 $1,531,614 
Costs and expenses: 

Direct cost of revenues (exclusive of items shown below) . . . . . . . . . . .  918,257 1,066,845 1,205,003 
SeUing, general and administrative ............................ 343,702 337,107 370,577 
Depreciation and amortization 48,564 60,351 66,016 

Total costs and expenses ...................................... 1,310,523 1,663,660 2,755,906 . 
Loss from operations ......................................... (216,611) (432,710) (224,292) 
Interest income, net 7,231 52,768 21,757 
Other income (expense): 

............................... 
Trnpairmentchar,oes ........................................ - 199,357 114,310 

........................................... 

Equity in loss of m a t e s  ................................... (6,289) (75,066) (43,939) 
Gain 011 sales of subsidiaqr stock ............................. 350,344 1,037,726 - 
Investment and other income (expense), net..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  258,218 164,762 (12,117) 

h o m e  (loss) before income taxes, minority interests, extraordinary 
item and cumulative effect of accounting change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  392,893 747,480 (258,641) 

h h o r i t y  interests (59,336) 5,726 22,070 
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  218,403 209,395 (124,345) 

h o m e  (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of 
accounting change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  233,826 532,359 (156,366) 

Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt, net of income taxes of 

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes of 
- - (146,983) 

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 230,850 $ 532,359 $ (303,349) 

Earnings per share: 
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - - $1,894 (2,9 76) 

$3,525 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

accounting change: 
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.34 $ 7.79 $ (2.08) 
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.11 $ 7.12 $ (2.08) 

Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt, net of income taxes: 
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ (0.04) $ - $ - 
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ (0.04) $ - $ - 

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes: 
Basic ................................................... $ - $  - $ (1.96) 
Diluted.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ - $  - $ (1.96) 

Net income (loss): 
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.30 $ 7.79 $ (4.04) 
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.07 $ 7.12 ,$ (4.04) 

share: 
Weighted-average number of shares used in calculation of earnings per 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Basic 69,933 68,301 
Diluted 75,239 74,786 .................................................. 

75,108 
75,108 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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JDT CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(in thousands, except share data) 

Accumulated 
Other Retained Total Common Stock Common Stock 

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Stock Income (Loss) (Deficit) Equity 

Class B common Stock Additional Class A 
Paid-In Treasury Comprehensive Earnings Stockholders' 

--- --- 
Balance at July 31,1999 ................................. .23,982,854 

Exercise of stock options ................................ 1,310,700 
Income tax benefit from stock options exercised .............. 
Conversion of Class A corn" stock to conunon stock ........ 59,525 

Modification of stock options - 
Change in unrealized gain (loss) in available-for-sale securities - . 
Foreign currency translation adjustment ..................... 

Net iiicoine for the year ended July 3 1,2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

- 

Exercise of warrants .................................... 19,963 

Issuance of common stock and Class B common stock ......... 3,728,949 
............................. 

- 
- 

Repurchase of coinmon stock and CIass B common stock. ...... (3,142,735) 
- 

$240 10,029,758 $100 34,012,612 
13 - -  1,310,700 
- - -  - 
- (59,525) - - 

- -  19,963 

37 - -  3,728,949 

- 
- -  I - 

$340 
13 

$317,022 $ - 
14,508 - 
1 1,262 - 

117 I 

985 - 
128,574 - 

- - 

I - 

$ -  $276,579 
14.534 
1 1.262 

117 
985 

128,648 
(94,044) 
-1,391 

(101,883) 
230,850 

- 

468,439 
6,883 
2,676 

2,000 
3,082 

106.568 
89,148 

930 
(135,849) 
532.359 

- 

- 
- 
- 

(94,044) 
1,391 

230,850 

138,197 
(92,653) 

I 

- 
- 

I 

I - 
(101,822) - - - 

- 
230.850 

Comprehensive income .................................. 

Income tax benefit from stock options exercised .............. 
Issuance of stock options ............................... - 
Modification of stock options ............................. 
Issuance of Class B common stock ......................... 
Change in unrealized gain (loss) in available-for-sale securities . . 
Foreign currency translation adjustment ..................... 

Net income for the year ended July 31,2001 

- -  
Balance at July 31,2000 ................................. .25,959,256 

698,451 

153,245 

Exercise of stock options ................................ 

Conversion of Class A conmorl stock to common stock ........ 
- 

I 

- 
- 
I 

Repurchase of coiimion stock and Class B common stock . . . . . . .  (4,019,163) 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 

- -  
260 

7 

-_I__ 

370,646 - 
6,872 L 

2.616 - 
2,000 - 
3,082 - 

106.497 - 

- - 

- - 

- -- 
9,970,233 100 35,929,489 359 

- -  343,000 4 
- -  - -  

(153,245) (2) - I  

- -  - I  

- -  - -  
- -  7,038,085 71 
- -  - -  
- -  - -  
- -  (4,019,163) (41) - -  - I  

7 

89.148 
930 

532,359 

622,437 

- 
I - 

2,320 (1 38,087) - - 
- 

532,359 
Comprehensive incoine .................................. - 

393 
45 

38 

24 

- 

- 

-- 
494,093 (1 38,087) 
53.860 - 
21,601 - 

(1) - 
1,894 I 

34,940 - 
- - 

-- 
722,086 1,076,236 - 53,924 
- 21,601 

- 1,894 
I 34,964 

( 1.064) 
964 

I { 15,640) 
(303,349) (303,349) 

- I 

- 
- 

-- 
9,816,988 98 39,291,411 

- -  4,497.1 14 

- -  3.8 10,265 
- - -  

Balance at July 31,2001 ................................. .22,791.789 
Exercise of stock options ................................ 1,906,594 

Conversion of common stock to Class B common stock ........ (3,723,949) 
.............. Income tax benefit from stock options exercised 

Modification of stock options ............................. 
Issuance of conlmon stock for qcquisitions 
Change in unrealized gain (loss) in available-for-saIe securities . . 
Foreign currency translation adjustment ..................... 
Net loss for the year ended July 31,2002 .................... 

- 

- 
.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 

- 
- 

Repurchase of common stock ............................. (1,400,800) 
- 

228 
19 

(37) 
I 

- 

(2,575) 

I 

2,391,891 - -  - 
(1,064) 

964 

(303,349) 
- 

- - 
(15.626) - 

. Comprehensive loss .................................... 
Balance at July 31,2002 .................................. 19,568,634 

(303.449) -- 
$606,387 $(153,713) -- 
I_______ 

-- 
9,816,988 - $ 98 49,990,681 - 

-- 
$415,737 $869,530 
-____. -- $(2,675) 

See accompanying notes to consolidated fiiiaiicid statements. 



n)T CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASE FLOWS 

Year ended Juls 31 
2001 2002 zoo0 

operating activities 
Netincome (loss) ..................................................................... 
Depreciation and amortization ........................................................... 
Extraordimy loss on rerirement of debt before hcame taxes ................................... 
Cumulative effect of accounting change before income taxes ................................... 
Price guarantee of Class B common stock .................................................. 
Deferredtaxliabilities.. ................................................................ 
Issuance of common stock to charitable foundation ........................................... 
Net realized (g&s)flosses from sales of marketable securities and investments .................... 
Equily inloss ofaffiliates ............................................................... 
Non-cash compensation ................................................................ 
Gain on Tycom settlement .............................................................. 
Gain on safes of subsidiary stock .......................................................... 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Trade accounts receivable ............................................................. 
Otherassets ........................................................................ 
Deferredwenue .................................................................... 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Impairmentcharges.. . . . . . . . . . . .  

Minorityinterests ..................................................................... 

.................................................... .:. 

Trade accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities ................................ 

S 230,850 $ 532,359 $ (303,349) 

4S,564 

4,S70 

(59,336) 

216,903 

(261,025) 
6,289 
42,917 

(3 50,344) 

- 
- 

- 

- 

60,35 I 
199,357 

€6,016 
114,310 

150.508 
22,070 
5,310 

1127,342) 

6,807 
43,989 

1,894 

- 

- 

- 

- 
5,726 

204,188 

148,724 
75,066 
3,082 

(313,486) 
(1 , 03 7,726) 

- 
26,378 

36,029 
14,234 
64,675 
7.271 

29,15 1 
(4,364) 

(23,238) 
39,981 

(52,643) 
(28,194) 
90,053 
34,026 

(77,070) Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ............................................. 

Issuance of notes receivable ............................................................. 
Collection of notes receivable. ........................................................... 

Net proceeds from sale of equity interests in subsidiary 

Investing activities 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ................................................. 
Investments and acquisitions, net of cash acquired ........................................... 
Sales of marketable securities ............................................................ 
Purchases of marketable securities ........................................................ 

....................................... 

26,228 21,743 

1106,513) 
(12,089) 
(73,722) 

164.052 

1 ,042~ 13 

- 
- 

(I 01,192) 

(3 E, 803) 
9,524 

(7,059) 
115,434 
(22,096) 

- 

- 

(39,245) 
(8,543) 

(gi,39a) - 
742,866 

(1,399,171) 

(785,491) 

- 
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 

Proceeds from exercise of stock options for NeQPhone 
Distributions to minority shareholder of a subsidiary 
Praceedsfromborrowings ................................................................ 

............................................. 
Financing activities 

......................................... 
........................................... 

Proceeds from exercise of warrants ......................................................... 
Proceeds from exercise of stock Options ...................................................... 
Repayment of capital lease obligations ...................................................... 
Repayment of borrowings ................................................................. 

Proceeds from offerings of common stock by Net2Pbone ........................................ 
Collection of loans to stockholders by Net2Phone .............................................. 
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary stock ....................................................... 
Proceeds from issuance of stock options ..................................................... 
Repurchases of common stock and Class B corn" stock ....................................... 

Proceeds from issuance of common stock and Class B common stock .............................. 

1,013,841 

8,172 
(3,177) 
13,898 

117 
14,534 

(fO8,146) 
128,648 
261.1 89 

623 
5,000 

(101,883) 
209,142 

(9,833) 

- 

- 
(1 8,gOB) - 

- 
(19,018) 

3 

6,863 
(14,736) 
(26,054) 
74,787 

- 
53,924 
(19,033) 
(6,308) - 
- 

30,000 

(15,640) 
- 

- 
2,000 

(135,849) 

(1 11,877) Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ............................................. 23,925 

(739,823) Net (decrease) increase in cash ............................................................. 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ................................................ 928,192 

162,879 
109,976 
52,903 

$ 162,879 
1,091,071 

$ 1,091,071 $ 351,248 
-- 
=- 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..................................................... 
Supplemental disdosure of cash flow information 

Cash payments made for interest ......................................................... $ 7,997 $ 5,739 -- -- 
$ 5.963 $ 12,176 -- -- 

$ 10,074 

$ 1,050 Cash payments made for income taxes ..................................................... 
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities 

Purchases of property, plant and equipment through capital lease obligations ...................... $ 27,010 $ 19,311 

-___I_ $ 150,000 ,$ - 
$ -  $ 34,964 

-__I_ -- 
-1____ 

___1- -- 

$ 45,541 

$ -  

$ -  

Exchange of Net2Phone common stock for shares of Yaboo! Inc. ............................... 
Issuance of Class B common stock for acquisitions ........................................... 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED Fl”CLcLL STATEMENTS 
July 31,2002 

1. Summary of SignEcant Accounting Policies 

IDT Corporation (,‘DT” or the “Company”) is a facilities-based multinational communications company 
that provides services and products to retail and wholesale customers worldwide, including prepaid debit and 
rechargeable calling cards, consumer long distance services, and wholesale carrier services. The Company also 
operates several media and entertainment-related businesses, most of which are currently in the early stages of 
development. 

Winstar Holdings (“Wmstar”), a wholly owned subsidiary of IDT, is a broadband and telephony service 
provider to commercial and governmental customers. Through its fxed-wkeless and fiber infrastsucture, Winstar 
offers local and long distance phone services, and high speed Internet and data comunications solutions. 

On May 4,2001, the Company declared a stock dividend of one share of Class B common stack for every 
one share of common stock, Class A common stock arid Class E common stock. IDT distributed the dividend 
shares on May 31, 2001 to shareholders of record on May 14, 2001. The stock dividend has been accounted for 
as a stock split and all references to the number of common shares, per common share amounts and stock options 
have been restated to give retroactive effect to the stock dividend for all periods presented. The Class B common 
stock commenced trading on the New York Stock Exchange on June 1,2001 under the ticker symbol “IDT. B”. 

Description of Business 

Investment in Net2 Phone 
Until August 2000, the Company also provided Internet telephony services though its majority owned 

subsidiary NeQPhone, h c .  (“NetZPhone”). On August 11,2000, the Company completed the sale of 14.9 million 
shares of its holdings of Net2Phone’s Class A coxnmo~l stock, at a price of $75 per share, to ITelTech, LLC 
(“ITelTech”), a Delaware limited liability company controlled by AT&T Corporation (“AT&T”). In addition, 
ITeITech purchased four  on newly-issued shares of Class A common stock from Net2Phone at a price of $75 
per share. These transactions reduced the voting stake of IDT in Net2Phone from approximately 56% to 21% and 
its economic stalce in Net2Phone from approximately 45% to 16%, In recognition of these transactions, the 
Company recorded a gain on sales of subsidiary stock of $1.038 billion during the year ended July 31,2001, and 
deconsofidated NeUPhone effective August 11,2000. Accordingly, the Company accounted for its invesment in 
Net2Phone subsequent to the deconsolidation using the equity method of accounting. 

On October 23, 2001, DT,  Liberty Media Corporation (“Liberty Media”) and AT&T formed a limited 
liabihty company (“LLC”), which through a series of transactions among IDT, Liberty Media and AT&T now 
holds an aggregate of 28.9 million shares of Net2Phone’s Class A common stock, representing approximately 
46% of NeQPhone’s outstanding capital stock. Because the LLC holds Class A common stock with two votes 
per share, the LLC has approximately 63% of the shareholder voting power in Net2Phone. IDT holds the 
controlling membership interest in the LLC and is the mana,&g member of the LLC. Through July 31,2002, the 
Company accounted for its investment in the LLC using the equity method since its control of the LLC was 
deemed to be temporary due to unilateral liquidation rights held by each of the LLC members. As of July 31, 
2002, IDT’s equity investment in Net2Phone was 19.2%. 

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”} issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, Accounting for  the Impairment 01- Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, 
which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and 
supersedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for t12e Inzpaimzeizt of Long Lived Assets fo be Disposed Of, and the 
accounting and reporting provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 30, Reporting the 
Results of Operations for a Disposal of a Segment of a Business. SFAS No. 144 also amends Accountjng 
Research Bulletins (“ARB” 5 l), Consolidated Fiizaizcial Statenzertts, as amended by. SFAS No. 94, Consolidation 
of ALL Majoi-ity-Owned Shid iar ias ,  to eliminate the exception to consolidation for a subsidiary for which 
control is likely to be temporary. IDT will adopt SFAS No. 144 as of August 1, 2002, and will thus no longer 
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IDT CORPORATION 

account for its investment in NeQPhone under the equity method of accounting. Therefore: effective August I, 
2002, Net2Phone will be reconsolidated. The consolidation will result in the inclusion of DT’s and NetPhone’s 
results of operations and financial position beginning August I, 2002. This change in accounting will not change 
the net income or loss that would have been reported had the Company conhued to account for its investment in 
Net2Phone under the equity method of accounting. Summarized financial information for Net2Phone as of and 
for the year ended July 31 is as follows: 

2001 2002 
fin thousands) 

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $287,572 $ 114,138 
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  411,403 171,696 
Working capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  218,100 60,321 
Revenues., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  150,198 137,855 
Loss from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (240,210) (257,794) 

Basis of Consolidation and Accountizg fur hvesmzem 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of IDT and all companies in which IDT has a 
controlling voting interest that is not temporary (“subsidiaries”), as if IDT and its subsidiaries were a single 
company. Si,dicant intercompany accounts and transactions between the consolidated companies have been 
eliminated. 

Investments in companies in which IDT has significant influence, but less than and other than temporary 
controuing voting interest, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Investments in companies in 
which D T  does not have an other than temporary controlling interest or an ownership and voting interest so 
large as to exert si,aniflicant influence are accounted for at market value if the investments are publicly traded and 
there are no resale restrictions, or at cost, if the sale of a publicly-traded investment is restricted or if the 
investment is not publicly traded. Due to the adoption of SFAS No. 144, effective August 1, 2002, IDT will 
consolidate all companies in which it has a controlling voting interest, regardless of whether that control is 
temporay. 

The effect of any changes in IDT’s ownership interests resulting from the issuance of equiy capital by 
consolidated subsidiaries or equity hvestees to unaffiliated parties is included in gain on sales of subsidiary 
stock. 

Re cl assificatiorzs 

Certain prior year mounts have been reclassified to conform to the cun-ent year’s presentation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
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IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FI”CIAI; STATEMENTS-(CoIltinued) 

Revenue Recognition 

Communications services are recognized as revenue when services are provided. Revenue on sales of 
prepaid calling cards is deferred upon activation of the cards and recognized as the card balances are 
decremented based OR minute usage and service charges. Unused balances are reco,pized as revenue UPOR 
expiration of the calling cards, which is generally the later of six months from the date of first use and twelve 
months from activation. 

Revenues at our Winstar segment related to high-speed Internet and data services and local and long- 
distance voice services are reco,gnized when services are provided. 

Purchase of Network Capacity 

Purchases of nemork capacity pursuant to Indefeasible Right of Use (‘‘RU”) agreements are capitalized at 
cost and amortized over the term of the capacity agreement, which is generally 15 years. Kstoricdly, we have 
not been a provider of network capacity. 

Direct Cost of Revenues 

Direct cost of revenues consists primarily of termination costs, toll-free costs, and network costs-including 
customedcarrier interconnect charges and leased fiber circuit charges. Direct cost of revenues also includes 
connectivity costs for the Winstar’s fixed-wireless network backbone and lease payments €or Winstar’s network 
of buildings. Direct cost of revenues excludes depreciation and amortization expense. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Equipment, buildiugs, and furniture and fntures are recorded at cost and are depreciated using the straight- 
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range as follows: equipment-5 to 7 years; 
buildings40 years; and furniture and fixtures-5 to 7 years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated using the 
straight line method over the tem of their lease or their estimated useful lives, whichever is shorter, 

Adverqising Expense 

The majority of DT’s advertising expense relates to its consumer long distance business. Most of the 
advertisements are in print or television media, with expenses recorded as they are incurred. Some of the 
advertising for the consumer long distance business is also done on a cost-per-acquisition basis, where the 
Company pays the provider of advertising based on a fixed amount per each customer who becomes a subscriber 
of its services. In such cases, the expenses are recorded based on tbe number of customers who were added 
during the period in question. 

For the years ended July 31,2000,2001 and 2002, advertising expense totaled approximately $46.7 million, 
$17.1 million and $16.0 million, respectively. 

During the year ended July 31, 2000, the  Company incurred approximately $28.0 million of costs to 
terminate advertising arrangements. These advertising termination costs are included in selling, general and 
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. No advertising termination 
costs were incurred for the years ended July 3 1,2001 and 2002. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE"TS-(Continued) 

Sojhvare Development Costs 

Costs for the internal development of new software products and substantial enhancements to existing 
software products to be sold are expensed as incurred until technological feasibility has been established, at 
which time any additional costs are capitalized. For the years ended July 31,2000, 2001 and 2002, research and 
development costs totaled approximately $4.7 million, $2.5 million and $1 ,O million, respectively. 

Capitalized Inteinal Use SoNare  Costs 

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurred in connection with developing or obtaining internal use 
software, These costs consist of payments made to third parties and the salaries of employees working on such 
software development. For the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, the Company has capitalized $8.6 
million, $2.5 million and $1.4 d o n ,  respectively, of htemaluse software costs as computer software. 

. 

Repairs and Maintenance 

We charge the cost of repairs and maintenance, including the cost of replacing minor items not constituting 
substantial betterment, to selling, generd and administrative expenses as these costs me incurred. 

Long-Lived Assets 

In accordance with SFAS No. 121, the Company reviews its long-lived assets and certain idenwiable 
intangibles for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an 
asset may not be recoverable. The analysis of the recoverability utilizes undiscounted cash Rows. The 
measurement of the loss, if any, will be calculated as the amount by which the canying amount of the asset 
exceeds tfie fair value. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers a l l  highly Liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when. 
purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost, whch approximates market 
value. At July 31,2001 and 2002, the Company had 89% and 60%, respectively, of its cash and cash equivalents 
in three and two financial institutions, respectively. 

Goodwill 

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS NO. 142, Goodwill and Other Intungible Assets. Under the new rules, 
goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized but are subject to 
impairment tests, pelformed at least mually,  in accordance with the Statement. Other intangible assets will 
continue to be amortized over their useful lives. 

0 the I' Intangibles 

Licenses are amortized over 5 years ushg the straight-line method. Costs associated with obtaining the right 
to use trademarks and patents owned by third p d e s  are capitalized and amortized 011 a straight-line basis over 
the tenn of the trademark licenses and patents. Acquired core technology is amortized over 3 to 5 years. The 
Company systematically reviews the recoverability of its acquired licenses and other intangible assets to 
determine whether an impairment has occurred. Upon determination that the carrying value of acquired licenses 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FTNANCJAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

and other intangible assets will not be recovered based on the undiscounted future cash flows of the acquired 
business, the carrying value of such acquired licenses and other intangible assets would be deemed impaired and 
would be reduced by a charge to operations in the amount that thc carrying value exceeds the fair value. 

Foreign Currency Translation 

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries denomhated in foreign currencies at July 31 are translated at 
year-end rates of exchange and monthly results of operations are translated at the average rates of exchange for 
that month. Gains or losses resulting from translating foreign currency financial statements are recorded a 
separate component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity. 

Income Taxes 

The Company recopizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequences attributable to 
differences between the financial statements carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their 
respective tax bases. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of 
a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependant upon the 
generation of future taxable income during the period in which related temporary differences become deductible. 
Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax 
planning strategies in this assessment. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates 
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be 
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized In 
income in the period that includes the enactment date. 

Emzings Per Slzaf-e 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) amibutable to common stockholders 
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share 
adjusts basic eanings per share for the effects of convertible securities, stock options, warrants, contingently 
issuable shares and other potentidly dilutive financial instruments, only in the periods in which such effect is 
dilutive. 

Vulnerability Due to Certain Corzcenpatiions 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally 
of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and trade accounts receivable. Concentration of credit risk 
with respect to trade accounts receivable is limited due to the large number of customers in various geographic 
regions comprising the Company’s customer base. No single customer accounted for more than 10% of 
consolidated revenues in Fiscal 2002. However, our 5 largest customers accounted for 15.2% of consolidated 
revenues in Fiscal 2002. This concentration of revenues increases our risk associated with nonpayment by these 
customers. 

The Company is subject to iisks associated with its international operations, including changes in exchange 
rates, difficulty in trade accounts receivable collection and longer payment cycIes. 

Management re,oularly monitors the creditworthiness of its domestic and international customers and 
believes that it has adequately provided for any exposure to potential credit losses. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FI”CL4.L STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

Fair Value of Fiizancial Instiunzerzrs 

The estimated fair. value of financial insbmnents has been determined using available market information or 
other appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market 
data to develop estimates of fair value. Consequently, the estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts 
that could be realized or would be paid in a curent market exchange; -At July 31,2002, the carrying value of the 
Company’s trade accounts receivable, other current assets, trade accounts payable, accrued expenses, deferred 
revenue, capitdl lease obligations and other current liabilities approximate fair value. 

Stock Based Cornpensation 

As permitted under SFAS No. 123, Accoufiting far  Stock-Based Compensatim (“SFAS 123”), the Company 
applies APB No. 25 in accounting for its stock option plans and, accordingly, compensation cost is reco,anied 
for its stock options only if it relates to non-qualified stock options for which the exercise price was less than the 
f& market value of the Company’s common stock or Class B common stock as of the date of grant. The 
compensation cost of these grants is amortized on a straight-line basis over their vesting periods. The Company 
follows the disclosure only provisions of SFAS 123 and provides pro €orma disclosures of net income (loss) and 
net income (loss) per share as if the fair value-based method of accounting for stock options, as defined in 
SFAS 123, had been applied. 

Recently Issued Accourzriizg Staizdayds 

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Retirenzeizt Obligatiarzs (“SFAS 143”). SFAS 
143 establishes accounting standards for the recognition and measurement of an asset retirement obligation and 
its associated asset retirement cost. It also provides accounting guidance for legal obligations associated with the 
retirement of tangible long-lived assets. The Company is required to adopt SFAS 143 on August 1, 2002 and 
expects that the provisions will not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, Rescission of FASB Stutemem No. 4, 44 and 64, 
Anzerrd~neizt of FASB Statement No. 13, a i d  Teclznical Cor.rectiotzs (“SFAS 145,’). SFAS 145 updates, clarifies 
and simplifies existing accounting pronouncements. SFAS 145 rescinds Statement No. 4, which required all 
gains and losses fiom extin,~slment of debt to be aggregated and, if material, classfled as an extraordinary 
item, net of related income tax effect. As a result, the criteria in APB Opinion No. 30, Reyortiizg the Resultz of 
Operatiions Reporting the Eflects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordiizary, Unusual and 
Inffequerztly Occur-ring Events and Tra~zsac~oizs, will now be used to class@ those gains and losses because 
Statement No. 4 has been rescinded. Statement NO. 44 was issued to establish accounting requirements for the 
effects of eansition to provisions of the Motor Carrier Act of 1980. Because the transition has been completed, 
Statement No. 44 is no longer necessary. 

SFAS 145 amends Statement No. 13 to require that certain lease modifications that have economic effects 
similar to sale-leaseback transactions be accounted for in the same manner as sale-leaseback transactions. This 
amendment is consistent with the FASB’s goal of requiring similar accounting treatment for transactions that 
have similar economic effects. SFAS 145 also makes technical corrections to existing pronouncements. While 
those corrections are not substantive h nature, in some instances, they may change accounting practice. IDT is 
required to adopt SFAS 145, effective for Fiscal 2003. Upon adoption, any gain or loss on extinguishment of debt 
previously classified as an extraordinary item in prior periods presented that does not meet the criteria of APB 
Opinion No. 30, will be reclassified to confoim with the provisions of SFAS 145. The Company does not expect 
the adoption of SFAS 145 will have a material impact on its consofidated financial statements. 
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In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal 
Activities (“SFAS 146”). SFAS 146 requires Companies to reco,&e costs associated with exit or disposal 
activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. Previous 
accounting guidance was provided by Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF’”) Issue No. 94-3, Liability 
Recognition for Certain Employee Tenniutation Bene$ts and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certuirz 
Costs Incurred in a Restpllctunng) (EITF 94-3). SFAS 146 replaces EITF 94-3. The Statement is to be applied 
prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect the 
adoption of SFAS 146 will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

2. Marketable Securities 
The Company classifies all. of its marketable securities as “available-for-sale securities.” Such marketable 

securities consist primarily U.S. Government Agency Obligations, which are stated at market value, with 
unrealized gains and losses in such securities reflected, net of tax, as “other comprehensive income (loss)” in 
stockholders’ equity. The Company intends to maintain a liquid portfolio to take advantage of investment 
opportunities; therefore, all marketable securities are classified as “short-term.” The following is a summary of 
marketable securities as of July 3 1,2002: 

Gross Gross 
Unrealized Unrealized 

cost Gains Losses Fair Value 
.~ (in thousands) 

Short- term 
Available-for- sale securities: 

U.S. Government Agency Obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $628,635 $3,490 $ - $632,125 
Ofher marketable securities ........................... 32,269 (5,663) 26,606 

$660,904 $3,490 $(5,663) $658,73 1 

- - -  
- -  
_ I _ -  

The following is a summay of marketable securities as of July 3 1, 200 1: 

cost 

Short- term 
Available-for-sale securities: 

U.S. Government Agency Obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1,150 
Other marketable securities ............................... 6,318 

$7,468 

Gross Gross 
Unrealized Unrealized 

Gains Lasses 
(in thousands) 

Fair 
Value 

$1,117 
2,372 

$3,489 

Sales and realized (gains) losses from the sale of available-for-sate securities for the years ended July 31, 
2000,2001 and 2002 amounted to approximately $104.2 million and $(28.3) million, $162.0 million and $126.0 
roillion, and $742.9 d o n  and $(1.5) million, respectively. The Company uses the specific identification 
method in computing the gross realized gains and gross realized losses on the sales of marketable securities. 

During Fiscal 2000, IDT sold approximately $55.0 million of held-to-maturity securities prior to their 
maturity dates and recorded a loss of approximately $1.2 million. The securities were sold to fund certain 
transactions. In connection wif i  these sales, marketable securities with a cost basis of approximately $22.0 
Illillion were reclassified as available-for-sale and through July 31,2000, unrealized losses of approximately $0.8 
million were included in accumulated other comprehensive loss. 
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Term Networks Transaction 

In October 1999, IDT entered into a joint venture agreement with Terra Networks, S.A. (“Terra”) pursuant 
to which the two parties formed two limited liability companies to provide Internet services and products to 
customers in fhe United States. One company was formed to provide Internet access to customers and the ather 
company was f a m e d  to develop and manage an Internet portal that would provide content-based Internet 
services. IDT’s 49% interest in the Internet access company was accounted for using the equity method of 
accounting. The equity method was used since IDT had si,Mcant influence, but less than a controlling voting 
interest. DT’s 10% interest in the Internet portal company was accounted €or at cost. The cost method was used 
since IDT did not have a controlling voting interest, or an ownership or voting interest so large as to exert 
si,@icant influence, and the venture was not publicly traded. On April 30, 2000, the Company sold its interests 
in. the two joint ventures for the right to receive 3.75 million shares of Terra common stock, In connection with 
these sales, the Company reco,&ed a pre-tax gain of $231.0 million for the year ended July 31, 2000. During 
the years ended July 31, 2000 and 2001, the Company sold a total of 3.745 million of its Ten-a shares and 
recognized therewith a gain of $24.9 million and a loss of $129.2 million, respectively, which have been included 
as a component of “hvesbnent and other income (expense).” 

3. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following: 

July 31 
2001 2002 

(in thousands) 
Equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $264,422 $ 343,874 
Computer software . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10,192 . 11,468 
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21,603 27,453 
Furniture andfixtures.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11,120 12,242 
Landandbuilding 8,937 8,934 

3 16,274 403,97 1 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (92,232) (153,340) 
Property, plant and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $224,042 $ 250,631 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Fixed assets under capitid leases aggregated $104.2 milLion and $118.3 million at July 31, 2001 and 2002, 
respectively. The accumulated amortization related to these assets under capital leases was $35.4 million and 
$50.2 million at July 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Amortization of fmed assets under capital leases is 
included in. depreciation and amoi-tization expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

Durirzg the  year ended July 31, 2002, the Company recorded an impahment charge associated with its 
property, plant and equipment of $3.9 million, p b a r i l y  resulting from the wiite-down of certain 
decommissioned European telecommunications switch equipment and certain discontinued wireless-related 
equipment. 

As a result of the Company’s gradual. exit from the dial-up Internet access service business, including the 
sale of a majority of its dial-up Internet access customers, the Company recorded an impairment charge 
associated with its propei-ty, plant and equipment of $6.0 million during the year ended July 31, 2001, primarily 
reIating to equipment previously used to provide dial-up Internet access services. 
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4. GoodwiU, Licenses and Other Intangibles 

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142. Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible assets deemed 
to have indefinite lives would no longer be amortized but rather be subject to impairment tests performed at least 
annually, in accordance with the Statement. Other intangible assets would continue to be amortized over their 
usefd lives. 

The Company chose to early adopt the new d e s  on accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets and 
began to apply them be,@ming in the frs t  quarter of Fiscal 2002. As such, the Company performed the required 
impairment tests of goodwill as of August 1,2001, and, as a result, the Company recorded an impairment charge 
of $147.0 million, net of income taxes of $3.5 million. The impairment charge was recorded in the first quarter of 
Fiscal 2002 as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. In determining the impairment charge, the 
Company obtained an independent valuation of the underlying assets in which discounted cash flows analyses 
were utilized. As a result, it was determiaed that the fair value of certain reporting units were less than their 
carrying values. The implied fair value of goodwill was then determined to be below its carrying value. As a 
result, the Company recorded m i m p b e n t  charge to reduce the fair value of goodwill attributable to these 
reporting units to its carrying value. 

During the year ended July 31, 2002, the Company recorded goodwill of $4.9 million as a result of 
acquisitions, pi-imarily in the Company's Media business segment. The table below reconciles the change in the 
carrying amount of goodwill by operating segment for the period from July 31,2001 to July 31,2002: 

Wholesale Retail 
Telecommunications Telecommunications Internet 

Services Services Winstar Telephony Media Corporate Total ---- 
(in thousands) 

Bdance as of July 31,2001 $ 44,148 $ 104,211 $- $- $29,934 $- $178,293 
Effect of adoption of 

(103,635) - - (2,725) - (150,508) 
4,471 - 4,9 17 

SFAS No. 142 . . . . . . . . . . (44,148) 
- I - - - -  446 Acquisitions during 2002 . . . - 

BaIance as of July 31,2002 $ - $ 1,022 $- $- $31,680 $- $ 32,702 - - --  ---- 
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The following table presents the impact of SFAS No. 142 on income (loss) before extraordinary item and 
cumulative effect of accounting change, net income (loss) and earnings per share had the standard been in effect 
for the years ended July 3 1,2000 and 2001 : 

Year Ended July 31, 
2000 2001 2002 ~~ 

(in thousands, except per share data) 
h o m e  (loss) before extraordinary item and 

cumulative effect of accounting change ............................ 
Add back: goodwill amortization ................................... 
Adjusted income (loss) before extraordinary item 

and cumulative effect of accounting change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$233,826 $532,359 $(156,366) 
14,926 16,313 - 

$248,752 $548,672 

$ 7.79 
0.24 

$( 156,366) 

!§ (2.08) Earnings per share-basic ......................................... 
Add back goodwill amortization ................................... 

$ 3.34 
0.21 

- 

$ 8.03 

$ 7.12 
0.22 

Adjusted earnings per share-basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.55 
Earnings per s h a r e 4 u t e d  ....................................... 
Add back goodwill amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ 3.11 
0.20 

$ 3.31 

14,926 
$245,776 

$ 3.30 

$230,850 

Adjusted earnings per share-diluted ................................ $ 7.34 

$532,359 
16,3 13 

$ (2.08) 

$(303,349) Netincome(loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Add back: goodwill. amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adjusted net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(303,349) 

$ (4.04) 

$548,672 

$ 7.79 Earnings per share-basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Add back: goodwill amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.21 0.24 - 
Adjusted earnings per share-basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.51 $ 8.03 $ (4.04) 

$ 3.07 $ 7.12 $ (4.04) 

$ 3.27 $ 7.34 $ (4.04) 

0.20 0.22 - 
Ea-nings per share-diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Add back: goodwill amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adjusted earnings per share-diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

The following disclosure presents certain information OR the Company's licenses and othher intangible 
assets. All licenses and intangible assets xe being amortized over their estimated useful lives, with no estimated 
residual values. 

Weighted 
Average 

Period Amount Amortization Balance 

Gross 
Amortization Carrying Accumulated Net 

-- - 
(in thousands) 

As of July 31,2002 
Amortized intangible assets: 

Licenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Core technology, trademark and patents . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$20,819 
4,684 

5 y e a s  $23,994 
5 years 5,295 

$29,289 

$ (3,175) 
(61 1) 

$ (3,786) Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $25,503 
As of July 3 1,2001 
Amortized intangible assets: 

Licenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Core technology, trademark and patents . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

5 years $42,523 
5 years 2,817 

$19,485 
26 

$19,511 Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $45,3 40 $ (25,829) 
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Licenses and other intangible assets amortization expense was $0.9 million, $4.9 million and $3.8 million 
for the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The Company estimates that amortization 
expense of licenses and other intangible assets for each of the next five fiscal years ending July 31 will be 
approximately $5. I nzillion. 

5. ReIated Party Transactions 

The Company has entered into st number of agreements with Net2Phone. Pursuant to these aseements, 
during the years ended July 31,2001 and 2002, the Company billed Net2Phone approximately $56.8 million and 
$31.6 million, respectively, and Net2Phone billed the Company approximately $19.2 million and $16.1 million, 
respectively. In the year ended July 3 1 ,- 2000, Net2Phoae was included in the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements and any mounts billed were eliminated in consolidation. The net balance owed to the Company by 
Net2Phone was approximately $19.3 million and $0.8 million as of July 31,2001 and 2002, respectively. 

The Company currently leases one of its facilities in Hackensack, New Jersey from a corporation which is 
wholly owned by the Company’s Chairman. Aggregate lease payments under such lease was approximately 
$24,000 for the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002. The Company made payments for food related 
expenses to a cafeteria owned and operated by the son of the Company’s chairman. Such payments were $0.1 
million and $0.6 million in fiscaI years 2001 and 2002, respectively. No payments were made to the cafeteria in 
fiscal 2000. 

The Company has obtained various insurance policies that have been arranged through a company afFliated 
with individuals related to both the C h a i r ”  and the General Counsel of the Company. The aggregate premiums 
paid by the Company with respect to such policies was approximately $0.1 million, $2.2 million and $3.6 milhon 
for the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. IDT retained the services of a private insurance 
consulting firm to ensure that these insurance policies were both necessary and reasonable. The commissions that 
were earned on such premiums are shared with several insurance wholesalers that access excess and surplus lines 
of insurance held by the Company. 

On December 13, 2001, IDT grmted to its Chairman options to purchase 1 million shares of IDT Class €3 
common stock, at an exercise price of $12.06 per share. The options were to vest over a period of 5 years, at a 
rate of 50,000 options per quarter, commencing on January 1,2002. On May 14, 2002, IDT’s Chairman waived 
and agreed to the cancellation of any rights under the options, and, as a result, all the options were cancelled 
retroactive to their December 13,2001 date of grant. 

The Chief Executive Officer and Vice-chairman of the Company is a partner in a law firm that has served 
as counsel to the Company since July 1996. Fees paid to this law fm by the Company amounted to $0.3 million, 
$0.0 million and $0.5 million for fiscal years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 respectively. In addition, a 
Director of the Company is of counsel to a law Eirm that has served as counsel to the Company since November 
1999. Fees paid to this law fm by the Company mounted to $1.0 million, $3.1 million and $6.3 million for 
fiscal years ended July 3 1,2000,200 1 and 2002, respectively. 

In addition, the Company had loans outstanding to officers and employees aggregating approximately $7.7 
million and $10.3 million as of July 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, which are included within “other assets” in 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
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All of the Company’s related party transactions are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company’s 
Board of Directors. 

6, IncomeTaxes 

Si,.nificmt components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabfities consist of the 
following: 

Deferred tax assets: 
Unrealized losses on securities .................................. 
Baddebtreserve ............................................. 
Exercise ofstock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Reserves 
Charitablecontributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net operating loss 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred tax liabilities: 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

July 31 
2001 2002 

(in thousands) 

$ 857 $ - 
9,857 9,857 
3,980 10,179 

4,500 4,500 
10,765 10,795 
- 170,404 

8,992 9,899 

38,951 215,634 

- .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Deferred revenue (196,000) 
Partnership 
Unreco,snized gain on securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (100,313) (28,709) 
Gain on sales of subsidiary stock ................................ (105,466) (120,574) 
Depreciation (16,074) (14,801) 
Identifiable intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (3,583) (7,083) 
Other (8,429) (8,440) 

Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (429,865) (457,607) 
Net deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(3 90,9 14) $(24 3,9 73) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (278,000) I 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consists of the following for the years ended July 3 1 : 

Current: 

2000 2001 2002 
(in thousands) 

Federal.. $ - $ 6,600 $ - 
State and local and foreign ............................ (394) 14,249 (30,683) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(394) 20,849 (30,683) 

Deferred: 
Federal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  175,191 150,997 (72,788) 
State and local and foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  41,712 37,549 (17,349) 
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The income statement classification of the provision for (benefit from) income taxes consists of the 
following at July 31: 

2000 2001 2002 
. -  {in thousands) 

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes attributable to 
continuing operations .................................. $218,403 $209,395 $(124,345) 

Income tax benefit attributable to extraordinary loss . . . . . . . . . . . .  (1,894) - - 

change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - - 3,525 
Income tax benefit attributable to cumulative effect of accounting 

$216,509 $209,395 $( 120,820) 

The differences between income taxes expected at the US.  federal statutory income tax rate and income 
taxes provided are as follows: 

2000 

Federal income tax at statutory rate ......................... $137,513 

Losses for which no benefit provided . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  32,703 
Nondeductible expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  17,625 
State and local and foreign income tax, net of federal benefit . . . . .  28,612 
Other 56 

Foreign tax rate differmtial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 

.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

7. 

$216,509 

Stockholders’ Equity 

2001 2002 

$261,618 $( 149,693) 
(99,563) (53,806) 
19,141 87,602 
2,162 52,921 

26,037 (57,844) 

(in thousands) 

I - 
$209,395 $(120,820) 

Corninoiz Stock, Class A Common Stock, and Class B Conzinon Stock 
The rights of holders of common stock, Class A common stock and Class B common stock are identical 

except for certain voting and conversion rights and restrictions on transferability. The holders of Class A 
common stock are entitled to t hee  votes per share. The holders of Class B common stock are entitled to one- 
tenth of a vote per share, and the holders of common stock are entitled to one vote per share. Class A common 
stock is subject to certain limitations on transferability that do not apply to the common stock and Class B 
common stock. Each share of Class A common stock may be converted into one share of common stock, at any 
time, at the option of the holder. 

Stock Opti~rts 
Prior to March 15, 1996, the Company had an informal stock option program whereby employees were 

ganted options to purchase shares of common stock. Under this informal program, options to purchase 4,317,540 
shares of common stock were granted. 

The Company adopted a stock option plan as amended (the “Option Plan”) for officers, employees and non- 
employee directors to purchase up to 6,300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. In May 2000, the Board 
of Directors of the Company approved an amendment to the Option Plan to reserve for issuance 300,000 shares 
of Class B common stock. In September 2000, the Board of Directors of the Company approved an amendment 
to the Option Plan to reserve for issuance of an additional 3,000,000 shares of Class B common stock. On May 
31,2002, the Company distributed a stock dividend of one share of Class B common stock for each share of the 
Company’s common stock, Class A cornmon stock and Class B common stock. Accordingly, pursuant to the 
terms of the Option Plan, up to an additional 9,600,000 shares of Class B common stock were reserved for 
issuance under the Option Plan. In October 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company approved an 
amendment to the Option Plan to reserve for issuance an additional 3,000,000 shares of Class 3 cornmon stock. 
In September 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company approved an amendment to the Option Plan to 
reserve for issuance of an additional 3,000,000 shares of Class B common stock. Generally, options become 
exercisable over vesting periods up to six years and expire ten years from the date of grant. 
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A summary of stock option activity under the Company's stock option plan and stock option program is as 
f0Ilows: 

Shares 

Weighted- 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 
Outstanding at July 31,1999 .............................. 
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercised.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Outstanding at July 31,2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercised., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Outstanding at July 31,2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercised.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

7,175,932 
8,851,086 

(2,621,400) 
(95,000) 
(3 1,5001 

13,279,118 

(1 ,O41,45 1) 
(299,247) 
(5 5,200) 

5,112,004 

16,995,224 
4,599,982 

(6,403,708) 
( 1,O 12,3 7 6) 

(19,900) 

$ 5.25 
9.98 
5.54 
8.86 

10.93 
8.3 1 
9.15 
6.61 
5.71 

12.63 

12.11 

11.96 
11.99 

a.70 

8.42 

~~ 

Outstanding at July 3 1,2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  14,159,222 $ 9.69 

The following table summarizes the status of stock options outstanding and exercisable at July 3 1,2002: 

Range of Exercise Prices 

$0.10-$0.10 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$0.21-$0.21 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$0.41 -$0.41 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$0.83 -$0.83 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$2.19-$2.63 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$3.44 - $4.13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$5.63-$8.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$8.72 -$12.13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$13.13-$18.51 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Stock Options Outstanding 
Weighted- 
Average 

Remaining Number of 
Number of Contractual Stock Options 

Options Life (in years) Exercisable 

290,296 
17,632 
36,000 
30,000 

63 9,5 00 

5,649,96 8 
5,144,618 
1,861,658 

14,159,222 

489,550 

2.0 
2.7 
2.0 
2.7 
4.7 
4.7 
8 .O 
7.7 
8.4 

7.5 
- 
- - 

290,296 
17,632 
36,000 
30,000 

639,500 
489,550 

2,016,499 
2,657,050 
1.070.358 

7,246, a8 5 

The weighted-average f& value of options granted was $7.42, $7.05 and $9.34 for the years ended July 31, 
2000,2001 and 2002, respectively. 

Pro forma information regarding net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share is required by SEAS 123, 
and has been determined as if the Company had accounted for employees' stock options under the fais value 
method provided by that statement. The fair value of the stock options was estimated at the date of 
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grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions for vested and non-vested 
options: 

2000 2001 2002 
- I _ _ . -  

Assumptions 
Average risk-free interest rate .................................... 6.49% 4.77% 4.22% 

Volatility factor of the expected market price of the Company’s common 

Average life . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 years 5 years 5 years 

Dividend yield.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - I - 
stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  81% 90% 73% 

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of  traded 
options which have no vesting restrictions and are M y  transferable. In addition, option valuation models require 
the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s 
employee stock options have characteristics si,Wcantly different from those of traded options, and because 
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s 
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its 
employees’ stock options. 

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options under SFAS No. 123 is amortized 
to expense over the options’ vesting period. For the years ended J~i ly  31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, pro foma net 
income (loss) and pro foima net income (loss) per share under SFAS No. 123 amounted to the following: 

2000 2001 2002 
(in thousands, except per share data) 

Net income (loss), as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $230,850 $532,359 $(303,349) 
Proformanetincome (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $214,286 $514,716 $(328,611) 
Net income (loss) per share, as reported 

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.30 $ 7.79 $ (4.04) 
Diluted.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.07 $ 7.12 $ (4.04) 

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.06 $ 7.54 $ (4.38) 
Diluted.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 2.84 $ 6.88 $ (4.38) 

Pro foima net income (loss) per share: 

The Company has modified stock options granted for certain employees of the Company to accelerate or 
extend their terms. Accordingly, the Company recorded additional compensation expense of approximately $1 .O 
million, $3.1 million and $1.9 million for the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. During 
Fiscal 2002, the Company granted options to certain employees to purchase 14,546 shares of G O - O ~  stock in its 
subsidiary, IDT Telecom, at an average exercise price of $366.67 per share. No such options were exercised 
during the year. 

Net2Plzone Stock Options 

During the quarter ended July 31, 2000, stock options issued to certain officers and employees of 
Net2Phone were accelerated in accordance with the original stock option awards and as a result Net2Phone 
recorded $12.5 million in compensation charges as a result of the acceleration. During the quarter ended July 3 1, 
3,000, stock options issued to certain officers and employees of IDT were modified and as a result, Net2Phone 
recorded $18.3 million in compensation charges. 
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Stock Buyback Prograin 
Our Board of Directors has authorized ibe repurchase of up to 45 million shares (adjusted for the May 2001 

stock dividend) of our common stock and Class B common stock. During Fiscal 2002, we repurchased 
approximately 1.4 million shares of our common stock, for an aggregate purchase price of $15.6 million. 
Combined with the 6.8 million (adjusted) shares and 7.4 million (adjusted) shares repurchased during Fiscal 2001 
and Fiscal 2000, respectively, we have repurchased a total of 15.6 million shares under the share repurchase 
p r o p m  through the end of Fiscal 2002, of which 6.2 million shares were refired as of July 31,2002. 

Libei-ty Media Trunsnction 
On March 27, 2000, Liberty Media agreed to purchase approximately 9.9% of the equity of IDT, equal to 

approximately 3.775 million shares of IDT’s common stock and exchangeable for shares of Class B common 
stock (before adjusting for the May 2001 stock dividend). On June 6, 2000, Liberty Media completed tbe 
purchase of 3.729 million shares of IDT’s common stock (before adjusting for the May 2001 stock dividend) at 
$34.50 per share (before adjusting for the May 2001 stock dividend), resulting in aggregate cash consideration of 
$128.6 million. Libel3 Media also has the right to nominate a director for election to the IDT Board of Directors. 

On October 11, 2001 IDT issued to Liberty Media 3.810 million shares of IDT Class B common stock in 
exchange for the 3.729 million shares of IDT common stock held by Liberty Media. The exchange rate was 
based upon the relative average market prices for the ’IDT Class B common stock and the IDT common stock 
during a specified 30 trading day period. 

Libenjr Media hzveshnerzt in D T  Telecoin, Inc. 
On January 30, 2002, IDT Telecom sold 7,500 newly issued shares of its common stock to Liberty Media at 

a price of $4,000 per share, for total aggregate proceeds of $30.0 million. As a rcsult of this investment, Liberty 
Media became the owner of approximately 4.8% of the common equity of IDT Telecom (0.5% of the voting 
power). The Company owns the remaining common equity of D T  Telecom. 

AT&T Transaction 
In March 2000, the Company was granted the option to sell to AT&T 4.1 million shares of its Class B 

common stock for approximately $74.8 million. In March 2001, the Company exercised this option. 

Ricks, Muse, Tate 8 Furst Tramaction 
In June 2001, the Company issued stock options to H~cks, Muse, Tate & Furst Incorporated (“€€h!ITF”) to  

purchase up to 2.2 &on shares of the Company’s Class B common stock at exercise prices ran,&,o from 
$11.25 to $15.00 per share, as defined. The stock options are exercisable OR the fnst anniversary of the 
agreement, and expire on the flfth anniversary date. In consideration for the stock options issued to NMTF, the 
Company received $2.0 W o n  in cash. 

IDT Clzal-itable Foundation 
In May 3,001, the Company established the IDT Charitable Foundation (the “Foundation”) with the purpose 

of obtaining money or property to be contl-ibuted $om time to time to eligible clia~itable organizations. The 
Foundation also adrninisters a matching gifts program available to IDT’s directors, officers, employees and 
retirees. 

In July 2001, the Company funded the Foundation with 2.2 million shares of Class B common stock worth 
approximately $26.4 million at that time. 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies 

Legal Prucaediags 

On January 29, 2001, the company filed a Complaint with the Wnited States District Court for the District 
of New Jersey, against Telefonica LA., Terra Networks, S.A., Terra Networks, U.S.A., Inc. and Lycos, Inc. The 
complaint asserts claims against the defendants for, among other things, breaches of various contracts, breach of 
fiduciary duty, securities violations, fraudulent misrepresentation, negligent misrepresentation, fraudulent 
concealment and tortious interference with prospective economic advantage. The defendants have been served 
with the Complaint. The Company has filed an Amended complaint and the defendants have filed an answer ‘to 
the amended complaint. Terra Networks, S.A. has filed a counterclaim for breach of contract alleging that the 
Company was required to pay to Teira Networks, S.A. $3.0 million, and failed to do SO. The defendants have 
filed a motion to dismiss the complaint. On September 14, 2001, the Court issued an Order: (a) peinitting the 
Company to take discovery relevant to the subject of whether Telefonica S.A. is subject to personal jurisdiction, 
(b) denying Telefonica S.A.’s motion to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction without prejudice to Telefonica 
S .A.’s right to renew the motion upon the completion of jurisdictional discovery, and (c) carrying on the calendar 
defendants’ motion to d ismiss  on non-jurisdictional grounds pending the completion of jurisdictional discovery, 
which is ongoing. Each party served the other party with certain requests for discovery relevant to the subject of 
whether Telefonica S.A. is subject to personal jurisdiction. The motions were denied almost in their entirety. The 
case continues in the early stages of discovery. No trial date has yet been set in this matter. 

On May 25, 2001, we filed a statement of claim with the American Arbitration Association naming 
Telefonica Intemacional, S.A. (“Telefonica”) as the Respondent. The statement of claim asserts that the 
Company and Telefonica entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOTJ”) that involved, among other 
things, the construction and operation of a submarine cable network around South America (“SAm-I”). The 
Company is claiming, among other things, that Telefonica breached the MOU by: (1) failing to negotiate SAm-I 
agreements; (2) refusing to comply with the equity provisions of the MOU; (3) refusing to sell capacity and back- 
haul capacity pursuant to the MOU; and (4) failing to follow through on the joint venture. Telefonica has 
responded to IDT’s Statement of Claim and has filed a Statement of Counterclaim which alleges, among other 
things: (1) Fraud in the Inducement; (2) Tortious Interference with Prospective Business Relations; (3) Breach of 
the Obligations of Good Faith and Fair Dealing; and (4) Declaratory and Injunctive Relief. Discovery is in its 
final stages and both parties have submitted expert reports. The arbitration is ongoing and is expected to continue 
into 2003. 

In September 2001, Alfred West filed a complaint against the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, 
IDT Telecom, Inc. in the Federal District Court in Newark, New Jersey seelcing monetary damages of $25 
million for alleged breach of contract, breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, fraud, negligent 
misrepresentation, promissory estoppel, quantum meruit, tortious interference and unfair competition. The 
Company filed counterclaims for fraud, negligent misrepresentation, breach of fiduciary duty, tortious 
interference and breach of contract. Several depositions have been completed, and discovery should be 
completed by the end of October 2002. 

Wmstar acquired certain domestic telecommunications assets foimerly owned by Old Winstar, which was 
approved by the Bankruptcy Court on December 19, 2001 (the “Sale Order”). Although many of the purchased 
assets were transfeued to Winstar at the time of the sale, the transfer of certain of Old Winstar’s regulated 
telecommunications assets, including its customer base, was subject to a number of federal and state regulatory 
approvals and on Winstar’s obtaining the necessary telecommunications facilities and services necessary to serve 
the customers it agreed to purchase from Old Winstar. Subsequently, Winstar has entered into interconnection 
agreements with the relevant RJ30Cs and has sought to use services and facilities obtained pursuant to those 
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agreements and pursuant to RBOC tariffs to complete its network and therefore to be able to transition the 
customers kom service by Old Winstar to Winstar, 

Although all ofthe reguIatory approvals necessary for this transition have now been issued, the RBOCs have 
asserted that Winstar is nevertheless not entitled to obtain unintempted services under their interconnection 
agreements and tariffs unless the D O C S  receive payment of approximately $40 million, in the aggregate, allegedly 
owed by Old Winstar for access to RBOC facilities and circuits. Based on the claim that Winstar must pay this 
“cure” mount as a condition of receiving uninterrupted s e i ~ c e ,  the RJ3OCs have refused in certain instances to 
provide facilities and service to Wiastar that it needs in order to serve its customers directly. As a result, Winstar is 
operating the business of Old Winstar pursuant to a management ageement approved by the banknzptcy court, and 
is providing services to the customers on behalf of Old Winstar. 

I 

Winstar contends that, even were it to ” m e  the Old Winstar contracts with the RBOCs, the amounts set 
forth in the RBOC’s proofs of claim greatly exceed any reasonable “cure” for facilities and services that Winstar 
seeks to obtain from the RBOCs, since the claims include si,&cant amounts that Old Winstar owed for services 
and facilities that D T  Winstar has not requested, and does not need to be able to provide services to the 
customers foIlowhg the transition. Winstar also disputes the RBOC’s claims that they are not obligated to 
provide services and facilities to Winstar without an assumption or assiagn”t of the Old Winstar contracts and a 
payment of “cure” amounts. In response to the RBOC’s refusal to provide service, on April 17, 2000 Winstar 
filed an Emergency Petition for a Declaratory Ruling at the FCC (Inc. Docket No. 02-80) asking that h e  FCC 
declare that the refusal of the EBOCs to provide t h e  requested scrvices and facilities pursuant to the&- 
interconnection agreements and e s ,  and their refusal to bansition such services in a manner that does not 
intempt services to the customers is unreasonable and therefore unlawful under federal law. In response, one 
D O C  (Verizon) filed a counter-petition asking that the FCC declare that the federal telecommunications laws do 
not require it to provide facilities and services to Winstar without ”cure” of Old Winstar’s debts. A number of 
parties filed comments in the FCC proceeding on both sides of the issue and the proceeding is still pending at the 
FCC. Winstar believes that the RBOCs have acted unreasonably and unlawfully in denying its requests for 
services and facilities and will continue absent a settlement with the RBOCs to advocate its position vigorously. 

In addition, faced with likely termination of service to Old Winstar customers in violation of the 
Telecommunications Act and number our FCC regulations, we sought injunctive relief (in addition to other 
remedies) in the U.S. District Court for the District of New Jersey against Verizon, Qwest Corp. and Qwest 
Communications Coq.  (“QCC”) to prevent them from discontinuing underlying services which would prevent us 
from providing service to ow customers. Certain interim relief was secured, and Veiizon, Qwest and QCC 
subsequently agreed not to terminate service without appropriate notice to us. The District of New Jersey action 
is ongoing. 

The RBOCs further contend that the provision in the Sale Order requiring them to continue serving 
Old Winstar and its subsidiaries expired on or about April 18, 2002. Winstar promptly moved to enforce that 
provision of the Sale Order, but the bankruptcy court denied its motion. Winstar has appealed the denial of that 
motion to the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware. In addition, Winstar asked the District Court for 
interim relief during the pendency of its appeal to stay the  D O C S  and other service providers from cutting off 
service until the appeal is decided. The District Court has not yet ruled on that request, but has temporarily 
ordered that service providers, including the RBOCs, may not terminate service or otherwise affect Winstar’s 
business without permission of the Court. 

During preliminary stabs hearings before the District Court on May 24 and June 4, 2002, the Rt3OCs and 
Winstar advised the Court of their willingness to enter into settlement discussions and/or non-binding mediation 
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in an attempt to resolve their disputes. Those settlement discussions and mediations are ongoing, and the District 
Court appeal is therefore still pending. It is too soon to predict whether settlements will be reached with any or 
all of the RBOCs or, if so, to quantify the monetary effect of such settlements, if any, on Winstar. To the extent 
that a settlement ageement is not reached with any or all of the RBOCs, we expect that the appellate proceedings 
will resume. One possible outcome of an adverse ruling by the District Court on either the interim relief 
requested by Winstar or on the merits of the case could be to permit the RBOCs to terminate services that are 
being provided to our customers and therefore to prevent the uninterrupted transition of those customers to 
Winstar service. A status conference is scheduled for November 8, 2002, for the parties to repoi-t on the progress 
of their efforts to mediate the disputes. 

Winstar believes that the RBOCs have acted unreasonably and unlawfully in denying its request for services 
and facilities and will continue absent a settlement to advocate its positions vigorously. However, adverse results 
in one or more of the above-described RBOC litigations could have a material adverse effect on us, including 
payment of the “core” amount described above, or the inability of Winstar to access the D O C S  services and 
facilities, in which its business is substantially dependent. 

On or about July 25, 2002, PT-1 Communications, Inc. (“PT-l”} filed a summons and complaint against the 
Company and its subsidiaries, D T  Netherlands, B.V., IDT Telecom, Inc. and IDT Domestic Telecom, Inc. 
(collectively “the Company”) in the United States Bankruptcy COW for the Eastern District of New York. PT-1 
seeks (a) to recover damages for certain fraudulent transfers of property of the Debtor’s banluuptcy estate, (b) to 
recover damages for unjust enrichment, and (c} to recover damages from breaches under the agreement between 
the parties for the sale of the Debtor’s debit card business to the Company, including the Company’s alleged 
failure to remit payment for use of certain telecommunication and platform services on or through PT-1 switches. 
In total, PT-1 is seeking $24 million in damages as well as certain unstated amounts. The Company served its 
answer on September 18,2002. Initial discovery will commence shortly. 

On or about September 16,2002, a complaint was filed by Mark B. Aronson in the Court of Common Pleas 
of Allegheny County, Pennsylvania seeking certification of a class consisting of consumers who were charged a 
fee when the Company switched underlying cauiers Gom Global Crossing to AT&T. At this point no specific 
damages have been specified in the complaint. Thus, the Company cannot yet quantify its exposure. 

On or about September 19, 2002, a complaint was fded by Ramon Ruiz against the Company and Union 
Telecard Alliance, LLC in the Supreme Court of the State of New York seeking certification of a class consisting 
of consumers who allegedly purchased and used the Company’s pre-paid calling cards and were charged any fee 
that was not specifically disclosed on the card packaging prior to purchase. The complaint seeks damages in 
excess of one hundred million dollars. 

On or about October 11, 2002, a complaint was filed by Paul Zedeck against us and Union Telecard in the 
Circuit Court of the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida, seeking certification of a class 
consisting of consumers who allegedly purchased and used our prepaid calling cards and were charged any fee 
that was not specifically disclosed on the card packaging prior to purchase. The damages sought have not yet 
been quantified. Because we only recently received the complaint, we are still evaluating the potential impact and 
our approach to contesting the claims or attempts to certify the classes. 

On or about October 18, 2002, a complaint was filed by Moms Amsel against us and IDT Telecom in the 
Supreme Court of the State of New York seeking cei-tifkation of a class consisting o f  consumers who allegedly 
purchased our calling cards. Plaintiffs complaint relates to payphone charges and international rates. The 
complaint seeks damages of not less that $100 million. Because we only recently received the complaint, we are 
still evaluating the potential impact and our approach to contesting the claims or attempts to certify the chsses, 
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On or about October 24, 2002, Winstar fded suit against Superior Logistics Management Services, Inc. 
(“Superior”) in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia. The complaint alleges counts 
for breach of contract (Superior breached a settlement agreement with Winstat), conversion (for retaining 
Winstar’s property), and detinue (for return of the propeq). Winstar is seeking approximately $50 million in. 
damages, plus punitive damages, costs, and attorney’s fees. 

The Company is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of 
its business and have not been finally adjudicated. Although there can be no assurances in th is regard, in the 
opinion of the Company’s management, such proceedings, as well as the aforementioned actions, will not have a 
material adverse effect on results of operations, cash flows or the financial condition of the Company. 

Lease Obligations 
The Euture payments for capital and operating leases as of July 31, 2002 are approximately as 

follows: 

Year ending July 31: 
2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Operating Capital 
Leases Leases 

(in th0~ands) 

$ 69,420 $ 27,110 
52,174 23,482 
43,961 13,747 
39,340 10,808 
37,003 1,317 

150,991 I 

$392,889 76,464 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Less amount representing interest I 8 , W  
Less current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (22,960) 

Capital lease obligations-long-term portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 45,398 

Rental expense under operating leases was approximately $6.9 million, $4.9 rmllion and $27.3 million for 
tbe years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The si,dicmt increase in rental expense in Fiscal 
2002 is due p~ima-ily to the si,.nificantly higher number of operatin2 leases associated with our Whstx segment, 
which was acqui-ed in December 2001. 

The Company has entered into purchase commitments of approximately $25 million as of July 31, 2002, 
prhnarily related to connectivity agreements. In addition, in April 2002, the Company entered into a four-ycu 
agreement to grant a telecommunications provider an exclusive right to service the Company’s consumer long 
distance business traffic, in which the Company agreed to purchase a minimum usage over the term of the 
agreement. In the event that the Company terminates the agreement before the expiration date, the Company is 
subject to an early termination penalty of $15 million if cancelled in the first year, $10 million if canceled in the 
second year, $5 million If cancelIed in the third year and $2 million if cancelled in the fourth year, 

The Company guarantees payments of certain of its vendors through August 2009. Such guarantees 
amounted to $3.4 miIlion as of July 31, 2002. In addition, the Company also provides certain such guarantees to 
its vendors in the form of letters of credit, through June 2008. Such guarantees amounted to $8.6 milEon as of 
July 3 1,2002. 
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9. Defined Contribution Plan 
The Company maintains a 401(k) Plan (the “Plan”) available to all employees meeting certain eligibility 

criteria. The Plan permits participants to contribute up to 20% of their salary, not to exceed the limits established 
by the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan provides for a matching contribution up to a maximum of 6% of covered 
compensation, which vests over five gears. All contributions made by participants vest immediately into the 
participant’s account. For the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, Company contributions to the Plan 
amounted to approxk”te1y $0.3 million, $0.8 million aad $0.9 million, respectively. The Company’s common. 
stock and Class B common stock are not investment options for Plan participants. 

10. Business Segment Information 

The Company has identified five reportable business se,ments: Wholesale Telecommunications Services, 
Retail Telecommunications Services, Winstar, Internet Telephony and Media. The operating results of these 
business segments are distin,pishable and are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. 

The Wholesale Telecommunications Services business seamat is comprised of wholesale carrier services 
provided to other long distance carriers. The Retail Telecommunications Services business se,pent includes 
domestic and international prepaid and rechargeable calling cards and consumer long distance services to 
individuals and businesses. The Winstar business seapent operates as a competitive local exchange carrier 
(“CLEC”) using fixed wireless technology to provide local and long distance phone services, and high speed 
Internet and data communications solutions. The Internet Telephony business segment reflects the results of tbe 
Company’s formerly majority-owned subsidiary, Net2Phone. The Media business segment operates several 
media and cntertainment-related businesses, most of which are currently in the early stages of development. 

The Company evaluates the performance of its business se,pents based primarily on operating income 
(loss) after depreciation, amortization and impairment charges, but prior to interest income {expense), other 
income (expense), income taxes, extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting changes. All corporate 
overhead is allocated to the business se,ments based on time and usage studies, except for certain specific 
corporate costs, such as treasury management and investment-related costs, which are riot allocated to the 
business se,ments. Operating results and other financial data presented for the principal business se,gments of the 
Company for the years ended July 3 I, 2000,200 1 and 2002 are as follows (in thousands): 

Wholesale 
Telecommunications 

Services 

Retail 
Telecommunications 

Services 

Year ended July 31, 

Revenues . , . . . . . I . . . . 
Se,gment loss . . . . . . . . . 
Depreciation and 

amortization . . , . . . 
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . 
Year ended July 31, 

2001 
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Segment loss . . . . . . . . . 
Depreciation and 

amortization . . . , . . . 
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . 
Year ended July 31, 

2002 
Reveaues . . . , . . . . . . . . 
Segment income 

(loss) . . . . I . . . . . . . . 
Depreciation and 

amortization . . . . . . . 
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . 

2000 
$520,5 18 

(8,4091 

17,252 
416,045 

388,120 
(69,454) 

23,472 
5 16,395 

308,987 

(30,572) 

20,696 
$220,060 

$ 502,512 
(1 1,477) 

16,656 
345,682 

816,384 
(34,118) 

26,7 19 
1,028,069 

1,121,674 

6 1,396 

33,988 
$1,078,195 

Internet 
Winstar(1) Telephony(2) 

$ -  !J 56,075 
- ( 125,865) 

- 6,804 
- 401,286 

79,604 - 

(96,644) 

6,691 - 
$159,726 $ - 

Media(3) 

$ 14,807 
(39,134) 

5,228 
11,945 

26,446 
(265,600) 

7,519 
269,062 

21,349 

(132,006) 

2,253 
$ 91,776 

Corporate Total -- 
$1,093,912 

(31,726) (216,611) 

44,097 2,624 1,219,055 48,564 

$ -  

1,230,950 
(63,538) (432.7 10) 

2,641 60,351 
68,063 1,881,589 

- 

1,531,614 - 

(26,466) (224,292) 

2,388 66,016 
$ 58,163 - $1,407,920 
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Revenue from customers located outside of the United States represented approximately 17%, 14% and 18% 
of total revenues for the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively, with no single foreign 
geographic area representing more than 10% of total revenues €or the year ended July 31, 2000, and Western 
Europe representing 15% and 17% of totdl revenues for the years ended July 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. 
Revenues are attributed to foreign geographic areas based on the location where the customer is invoiced. Gross 
and net long-lived assets maidly held in Western Europe totaled approximately $28.3 million and $18.7 million, 
and $31.9 million and $28.2 million as of JuIy 31,2001 and 2002, respectively. 

Since acquisition of Winstar in December 2001. 

Included in loss from operations for the Internet Telephony business se,ment for ~e year ended July 
31,2000 was approximately $41.0 W o n  of non-cash compensation as a result of stock option grants, 
modifications and accelerations made by Net2Phone. In addition, contributing to the loss fiom 
operations was the si,anificant level of sales and marketing expenses, as well as general and 
administrative expenses, as Net2Phone expanded its distribution relationships, corporate infrastructure 
and human. resources. 

lnchded in loss from operations for our Media business se,ment for the years ended July 31, 2001 and 
2002 were $193.4 million and $1 10.4 &on, respectively, of impairment charges related to the write- 
down of the undersea fiber asset obtained as p a t  of the TyCom Ltd. ("TyCom") settlement. 

Reconciliation To Gunsoliduted Financial Infomzation 

A reconciliation of the results for the operating segments to the applicable line items in the consolidated 
financial statements is as follows (in thousands): 

Seapent loss-reportable se,gnents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other income (expense): 

Equity h loss of affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain on sales of subsidiary stock ............................. 
Investment and other income (expense), net .................... 

Income (loss) before minority interests, income taxes, extraordinary item 
and cumulative effect of accounting change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Minorityinferests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

accountingchange . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of 

Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt, net of income taxes of $1,894 , , 

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes of $3,525 , , . 

Consolidated net income (loss)-reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

11. Additional Financial " n a t i o n  

2000 2001 2002 

$(216,611) $ (432,710) $(224,292) 
7,23 1 52,768 21,757 

(6,289) (75,066) (443,989) 

258,218 164,762 (12,117) 

392,893 747,480 (258,641) 
(59,336) 5,726 22,070 
218,403 209,395 (124,345) 

233,826 532,359 (156,366) 

350,344 1,037,726 - 

12,976) - - 
- I (146,983) 

$ 230,850 $ 532,359 $(303,349) 

Trade accounts payable includes approximately $112.9 million and $84.1 million due to telecommunication 
caniers at July 3 1,2001 and 2002, respectively. 
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12. Acquisitions 

CTM Brochum Display, Inc. 

On June 30, 2000, the Company acquired a 100% interest in CTM Brochure Display, Inc. (YXM“), a 
brochure distribution company, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $23.8 million. The purchase 
price consisted primarily of $5.1 million h cash, $16.9 million in notes payable to the Eormer owners and the 
liquidation of $1.4 million of CTM’s bank debt. In connection with th is  transaction, the Company recorded 
goodwill of $23.0 million and tax liabilities of $3.0 million. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase, and 
accordingly, the net assets and results of operations of the acquired business have been included in b e  
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. During the year ended July 31,2001, the Company 
repaid the entire principal balance on the notes payable, together with accrued interest. 

Aplio S.A. 

On July 7 ,  2000, Net2Phone acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Aplio, S.A (“Aplio”), a 
company located in France with technology that enables VoIP devices. Consideration consisted of $2.9 d o n  in 
cash at closing, 0.6 million shares of Net2Phone’s common stock which were valued at $35.50 per share, 
issuance of promissory notes aggregating $6.5 million, $1.1 million in acquisition related costs and $4.8 million 
in cash that was paid within eighteen months of the closing o f  the transaction. 

The aggregate purchase price of $36.0 million plus the fair value of net liabilities assumed of $2.7 million 
was allocated as follows: approximately $17.5 million to goodwill, $20.7 million to core technology and patents 
and $0.5 million to assembled workforce. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of 
accounting by NetZPhone, and accordingly, the net assets and results of operations of the acquired business was 
included in the consolidated financial statements through July 2000. 

PT-1 Cm”nications 

In February 2001, the Company purchased certain prepaid calling card business assets of PT-1 
Communications, Inc. (“PT-l”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of STAR Telecommunications, hc . ,  with a payment 
of cash and assumption of certain liabilities, including the obligation to honor the outstanding phone cards of PT- 
1. The cash payment and assumption of net liabihties incurred were approximately $26.3 million with 
substantially dl of the purchase price recorded as goodwill. 

Equity Interests in Teligent, Inc. and ICG Cmv”icatioizs, Inc. 

In April 2001, through its IDT Investments, Inc. subsidmy (“DT Investments”), the Company acquired 
from Liberty Media (i) a company whose sole asset was 21.4 W o n .  shares of Teligent, Inc. (“Teligent”) Class A 
common stock, as well as (3) an interest in ICG Communications, hc. (“ICG”), represented by 50,000 shares of 
ICG’s 8% Series A-1 convertible preferred stock and warrants to purchase approximately 6.7 million shares of 
ICG‘s comrnon stock. In exchange, IDT Investments issued Liberty Media a total of 10,000 shares of its Class 3 
common stock and 40,000 shares of its Series A convertible preferred stock. Upon completing the transaction, 
DT effectively owned approximately 32% of the equity o€ Teligent, and approximately 29% of the equity of 
ICG. The total consideration for Teligent and ICG’s April 2001 transaction was approximately $10.3 and $3.4 
million, respectively. 

In May 2001, through its D T  Investments subsidiary, the Company entered into an agreement with various 
affiliates of HMTF to increase IDT’s strategic investments in Teligent and ICG. Under the terms of the 
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agreement, the HMTF affiliates received 18,195 shares of IDT Investments’ Series B convertible preferred stock 
in exchange for the HhKF affiliates’ stakes in Teligent and ICG. The HMTF m j a t e s  owned 219,998 shares of 
Teligent’s Series A 7V4% convertible preferred stock, 23,000 shares of ICG ‘s 8% Series A-2 convertible 
preferred stock and warrants to purchase approximately 3.1 million shares of ICG’s common stock. Upon 
completing the transaction, IDT effectively owned approximately. 37% of the equity of Teligent, and 
approximately 42% of the equity of ICG. The total consideration for Teligent and ICG‘s May 2001 transaction 
was approximately $2.0 and $1.6 million, respectively. 

The pro-rata share of the losses of Teligent and ICG recorded by D T  subsequent to these acquisitions have 
fully eliminated the carrying value of the Company’s investment in these companies. 

In May 2001, Teligent filed a voluntary bankruptcy petition under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. 
ICG had previously filed for b&ptcy protection in November 2000. 

On December 19,2001, the Company, through a subsidiary, acquired the core domestic telecommunications 
assets of Winstar Communications, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaIies that are debtors and debtors in possession 
in bankruptcy proceedings pending before the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware. The 
acquiring subsidiary was subsequently renamed Winstar Holdings, LLC. Winstar operates as a CLEC using fixed 
wireless technology to provide local and long distance phone services, and high speed Internet and data 
communications solutions. 

The purchase price for the Winstar assets was comprised of a $30.0 million cash payment, $12.5 million in 
newly issued shares of IDT Class B common stock and 5% of the common equity interests in the acquiring 
subsidiary (the remaining 95% of the c o m o n  equity interests as well as all of the preferred equity interests in 
the acquiring subsidiary were owned by JDT). The Company also agreed to invest $60.0 W o n  into Winstar to 
be used as working capital. The acquisition has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. 
The results of operations of Winstar have been included in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations 
since the date of acquisition. The preliminary allocation of the purchase price, pending final determination of 
certain acquired balances, is as follows (in thousands): 

Trade accounts receivable and other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 51,301 
Property, plant, equipment and intansble assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  37,923 

. . . . . . . . .  (44,487) 
Minorityinterest (2,237) 
Trade accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities 

Value of assets acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $42,500 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

The fair value of the Winstar assets acquired and liabilities assumed would have exceeded IDT’s acquisition 
cost. Therefore, in accordance with SFAS NO. 141, Business Combinations, the excess value over the acquisition 
cost has been allocated as a pro rata reduction of the amounts that otherwise would have been assigned to the 
acquired assets, except with respect to the following: 

. Trade accounts receivable-present values of mounts to be received, less allowances for 
uncollectibility and collection costs. 

Other current assets (principally assets to be sold)-fair value less cost to sell. 

Trade accounts payable, accizled expenses and other current liabilities (principally relating to 
contractual agreements assumed)-present vdues of amounts to be paid. 
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On April 16, 2002, IDT, through a subsidiary, purchased the 5 %  of common equity interests in Winstar that 
it did not own. Consideration consisted of 0.8 million shares of IDT Class B common stock, which were valued 
at $13.3 million. 

The following pro forma fmancial idolmation presents the combined results of operations of IDT and 
Winstar, as if the Winstar acquisition had occurred as of the be"g of the periods presented, &er giving 
effect to certain adjustments, including depreciation expense, income taxes and the  issuance of IDT Class B 
common stock as part of the purchase price. The pro forma financial information does not necessarily reflect the 
results of operations that would have occurred had D T  and Winstar been a single entity during such periods. 

Year Ended July 31, 
2000 2001 2002 
(in thousands, except per share data) 

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1,325,821 $ 1,451,912 $1,604,314 

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 108,472 $(1,421,850) !$ (352,066) 
Earnings per share: 

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change . . . . . . . .  $ 108,472 $(1,421,850) $ (205,083) 

Income (loss} before cumulative effect of accounting change . . . . . . . .  
Basic.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.51 $ (2029) $ (2.70) 
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.41 $ (18.57) $ (2.70) 

Basic., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.51 $ (20.29) $ (4.63) 
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.41 $ (18.57) $ (4.63) 

Net income (loss) 

13. Earnings Per Share 

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share: 

Year ended July 31 
2000 2001 2002 

{in thousands, except per share data) 
Numerator: 

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $230,850 $532,359 $(303,349) 

Denominator: 
Weighted-average number of shares used in calculation of 

eamings per share-Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  69,933 68,301 75,108 
Effect of stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,306 6,485 - 
Weighted-average number of shares used in calculation of 

earnings per share-Diluted ......................... 75,239 74,786 75,108 

Earnings per share-Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.30 $ 7.79 $ (4.04) 
Earnjllgs per share-Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 3.07 $ 7.12 $ (4.04) 
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The following securities have been excluded from the dilutive per share computation as they are 
antidilutive : 

Year ended J d y  31 
2000 2001 2002 

(in thousands) 
......................................... Stock options.. 449 1,163 5,29 1 

Contingently issuable shares - 
Total ............................................. 449 1,163 5,660 

............................... - 3 69 - I_ - 
- - _I_ - - - 

14. Newhone Subsidiary Stock Sales 

During the years ended July 31, 2000 and 2001, the Company reco,Pnized approximately $350.3 and 
$1,037.7 million, respectively, in gains on sales of subsidiary stock related to NeQPhone stock sales, as follows: 

On August 3, 1999, Net2Phone completed an initial public offering of 6.2 million shares of its common 
stock at an initial public offering price of $15.00 per share, resulting in net proceeds of $85.3 million. Upon 
completion of the initial public offering, 3.1 million shares of Net2Phone Series A preferred stock were 
converted into 9.4 million shares of Net2Phone Class A common stock. As a result of the initial public offering 
and concurrent conversion of Series A preferred stock to Class A com~noii stock, the Company’s ownership 
percentage in Net2Phone decreased from 90.0% to 56.2%. In connection with such offering, the Company 
recorded a gain of $65.5 d o n .  

In December 1999, Net2Phone completed a secondary offering of 3.4 &on shares of common stock at a 
price of $55.00 per share. In connection with this offering, IDT also sold 2.2 million shares of Net2Phone 
common stock at $55.00 per share. Total proceeds to the Company, after deducting underwriting discounts, 
commissions aud oEering expenses were $292.8 miUion. The Company’s ownershp interest in Net2Phone 
before and after these transactions decreased from 56.2% to 45.0%. The Company recorded gains on sales of 
stock of $182.6 million in connection with these offerings. 

In March 2000, the Company acquired 0.8 d l i o n  shares of Yahoo! Inc. in exchange for 2.8 million shares 
of NeQPhone common stock at a then equivalent market value of approximately $150.0 million. h connection 
with th is  transaction, the Company recorded a gain on sale of subsidiary stock of $102.2 million. 

In August 2001, IDT sold 14.9 millon shares of Net2Phone common stock at $75.00 per share. Net 
proceeds to the Company as a result of this sale were $1,042.1 million. The Company’s ownership interest in 
Net2Phone before and after t h i s  transaction decreased from 45.0% to 16%. The Company recorded a total gain of 
$1,037.7 miltion in conjunction with this transaction. 

15. TyCom Ltd. Settlement 

On October 10, 2000, IDT reached a fuU and find settlement with TyCom of all pending claims brought 
against one another and their respective affiliates. The settlement agreement is subject to a confidentiality 
agreement among the parties and only the followhg disclosure by IDT is permitted under the terms of that 
agreement. 

Under the terms of the settlement, TyCom gamed to IDT Europe B.V.B.A. (“DT Europe”), free of charge, 
certain exclusive rights to use capacity on the transatlantic and transpacific segments of TyCom’s global 
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undersea fiber optic network (the “TyCom Global Network”), which TyCom is deploying. The settlement 
agreement provides for IDT Europe to obtain exclusive indefeasible rights to use (IRU) two 10 Gb/s wavelengths 
on the transatlantic se,oment (which we have been informed has been deployed) and two 10 Gb/s wavelengths on 
the transpacific segment (which be believe is s a  under development) for ffieen years from the applicable 
€3 andover Dates . 

Operation, administration and maintenance for the wavelengths used by the Company will be provided by 
TyCom for a fileen year period after the relevant Handover Date, fiee of charge. TyCom has also granted the 
Company certain rights to resell any unused capacity on the wavelengths through TyCom as its sole and exclusive 
agent. In addition, the Company will also have the option, exercisable at least annually, to convert the available 
capacity on its wavelen,$s to available equivalent capacity on another portion of the TyCom Global Network. In 
reco,gnition of the settlement, a gain of $313.5 million was included as a component of “investment and other 
income.” The Company subsequently re-evduated the recoverability of the carrying value of its RU in accordance 
with SFAS No. 121 and, as a result, the Company has recorded an impairment loss of $193.4 million and $1 10.4 
million for the years ended July 3 1,200 1 and 2002, respectively, to write down the asset to its fair value. 

16. Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

(in thousands): 
The accumulated balances for each classification of comprehensive income (loss) consists of the following 

Unrealized 
gain (loss) in 
available-for- 
sale securities 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 

Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
Ioss 

Beginning balance at July 31,1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ - 
Change during period (94,044) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Balance at July 31,2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Change during the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(94,044) 
89,148 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Balance at July 31,2001 (4,896) 
Change during the period (1,064) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Balance at July 31,2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ (5,960) 

$ -  
1,391 
1,391 

930 
2,321 

964 
$3,285 

$ -  
192,653) 
(92,653) 
90,078 

17. Price Guarantee of Class B Common Stock 

In March 2001, the Company exercised an option to sell to AT&T approximately 2.0 million shares of its 
Class B c o m o n  stock for approximately $74.8 million. In conjunction with the formation of the consortium, 
IDT guaranteed to AT&T the value of approximately 1.4 million shares of IDT Class B common stock still being 
retained by AT&T. If the value of IDT Class B common stock is less than $27.5 million on October 19, 2002, 
and AT&T or an affiliate retains a l l  the shares through such date, then IDT wi l l  be obligated to pay AT&T the 
difference with cash, additional shares of IDT Class B common stock or a combination of both, at the option of 
LDT. In connection with this obligation, the Company recorded in “investment and other income (expense)” a 
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charge of $5.3 million during the year ended July 31,2002. The Company was subject to additional charges of 
$1.0 million tJxough October 19,2002 based on changes in the market value of XDT Class B common stock As a 
result, the Company’s total liability is $6.3 million as of October 19,2002. 

18. Extraordinary Loss - -  

On May 10, 1999, the Company obtained a Senior Secured Credit Faciliq from a consortium of financial 
institutions. During the second quarter ended January 31, 2000, the Company repaid all of the outstanding 
principal balance together with accrued interest, The Company recorded a pre-tax extraordinary loss of 
$4.9 million in connection with the repayment during the year ended July 31,2000. 

19. Selected Quarterly Financid Data (unaudited) 

The table below presents selected quarterly financial data (unaudited} of the Company for the calendar 
quarters h the fiscal years ended July 3 1,2002 and 2001. : 

Income (loss) before 
cumulative effect of accounting cbange 

Per 
Loss from Per Share Share Net Income 

Quarter Ended Revenues Operations Amount -Basic -DiIuted (Loss) 

(in thousands, except for per share data) 
2002: 

October 31 /a/ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 339,209 $ (12,565) $ (11,3321 $(0.16) $(0.16) $(158,315) 
January 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  374,025 (27,774) (17,212) (0.23) (0.23) (17,212) 
April 30 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  401,653 (42,829) (49,593) (0.64) (0-64) (49,593) 
July 31 /b/ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  416,727 (141,124) (78,229) (0.99) (0.99) (78,229) 

Total.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1,531,614 $(224,292) $(156,366) $(303,349) 

October 31 /c/ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 276,597 $ (60,070) $ 869,568 $12.43 $11.27 $ 869,568 
January31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  287,597 (48,455) (117,104) (1.77) (1.77) (117,104) 
Apia 30 /d/ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  335,722 (55,571) (48,277) (0.73) (0.73) (48,277) 
July 31 /e/ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  331,034 (248,614) (171,828) (2.44) (2.44) (171,828) 

2001: 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1,230,950 $(432,710) $ 532,359 $ 532,359 

/at 

lbt 

/C/ 

/d/ 

Included in net loss is a $147.0 million cumulative effect of accounting change, net of $3.5 million of 
income taxes, due to the adoption of SFAS No. 142. 

Included in loss from operations was $1 10.4 &Lion of impairment charges related to the IRU received as 
part of the Tycom settlement. 

Included in net income is $1,037.7 rrdlion in gains on sales of subsidiary stock related to Net2Phone stock 
sales. 

Included in loss from operations was $193.4 million of impairment charges related to the RU received as 
part of the Tycom settlement. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE”TS-(Continued) 

20. Subsequent Events 

In August 2002, Net2Phone and its Adir subsidiary consummated the settlement of their lawsuit fded on 
March 19, 2002 in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey against Cisco Systems 
(“Cisco”) and a Cisco executive who had been a member of the Adir board of directors. The suit arose out of the 
relationships that had been created in connection with Cisco’s and Net2Phone’s ori,Oinal investments in Adir and 
out of Adir’s subsequent purchase of Netspeak, Inc. in August 2001. The parties settled the suit and aU related 
claims against Cisco and the Cisco executive in exchange for (i) the transfer, during the first quafter of fiscal 
2003, to Net2Phone of Cisco’s and Softbank Asia Infrastructure Fund’s respective 11.5% and 7.0% interests-in 
Adir and, (ii) the payment by Cisco, during such quarter, of $19.5 million to Net2Phone and Adir. As a result of 
this settlement, Net2Phone will reco,onize, for the quarter ended October 31, 2002, a gain of approximately 
$58.4 million. Net2Phone will be consolidated by IDT in Fiscal year 2003, which began on August 1,2002. 
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II9T COWORATION 

FINANCPAL STATEMENT SCHEDUL&VALUATION AMD QUA.LIF"G ACCOUNTS 

2000 
Reserves deducted from accounts receivable: 

AUowance for doubtful accounts . . . . , . . . . . , . , . , , , 
2001. 

Reserves deducted from accounts receivable: 
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . 

2002 
Reserves deducted from accounts receivable: 

Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . 
(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries. 

€!dance at 
Beginqine of 

Penod 

$ 7,643 

$26,771 

$22,508 

Additions 
Charged to 
Costs and Deductions Balance at 
Expenses (1) End of Period 
@oUars, in thousands) 

$20,154 $ (1,026) $26,771 

$32873 $(37,136) $22,508 
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FUIPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 

We have audited the accoinpaiiying consolidated balance sheets of IDT Corporation (the “Coinpany”) as of 
July 31, 1999 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockhoIders’ equity and cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2000. Our audits also included the financial 
statement schedule listed in the hdex at Item 14(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an upiilioii on these financial statements and 
schedule based on OUT audits. 

We conducted OUT audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. 
Tliose staidards require that we plan and peiform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are fiee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating t h e  overall 
hancial  statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all inaterial respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the Company at July 31, 1999 and 2000 aud the consolidated results of its 
operations and its cash flows for- each of the thee years in the period ended July 3 1, 2000, in confoimity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement 
schedule, when coiisidered in relation to the basic fjllancial statements takeii as a wliole, presents fairly in all 
material respects the infoilnation set forth therein. 

IDT Corporation 

. 

ERNST & YOUNG LLP 
New Yorlc, New York 
October 24, 2000 
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IDT CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Marketable securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Trade accounts and commissions receivable. net of allowance for doubtful accounts 

of approximately $7,643, 000 at July 31. 1999 and $26.771. 000 at July 31. 2000 . . 
Notes receivable-current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Invent0 ry . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Propeity. plant and equipment. at cost. net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$814. 576 at July 31. 2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Notes receivable-long-term portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
intangible assets. net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Marketable securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred tax assets. net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Trademark. net of accumulated amortization of $208. 000 at July 3 1. I999 and 

LiabiIities and Stockholders’ Equity 
Current liabilities: 

Trade accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Capital lease obligations-current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Notes payable- uiTent portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Notes payable-long-term portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capital Iease obligations-long-term portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commitments and contingencies 
Stockholders’ equity: 

Preferred stock. $.01 par value; authorized shares--10.000. 000. no shares issued . . . .  
Common stock. $.01 par value; authorized shares--100.000. 000. 23.982. 854 and 

25.959. 256 shares issued and outstanding 1999 and 2000. respectively . . . . . . . . .  
Class A stock. $.O I par value; authorized shares-35.000. 000. 10.029. 758 and 

9.970. 233 shares issued and outstanding 1999 and 2000. respectively . . . . . . . . . .  
Loans to stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accumulated other comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Retained eamings/(deficit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1999 2000 

$ 52.903. 479 
77.869. 655 

106.146. 127 
18.967. 967 
4.646. 906 
8.838. 671 

22.825. 475 
292.198. 280 
114.122. 923 

4.791. 667 
2.187. 07 1 

117.366. 124 
. 

3. 35 8. 500 
12.306. 507 
13.540. 307 

$559.871. 379 

$ 162.879. 042 
230.159. 597 

160.994. 911 
3.630. 000 

17.760. 610 
13.120. 993 
53.347.8 19 

~~ 

641.892. 972 
225.638. 279 

10.985. 424 
8. 00 1. 284 

162.232. 640 
13 2.277. 504 

29. 3 3 8 3  18. 
8.708. 871 

$1.219.055. 357 

$ 79.475. 136 
5.354. 7 10 
1.564. 741 

13.209. 663 
4.752. 7 SO 
6.029. 273 
2.397.234 

$ 162.873. 530 
3 6. 43 6. 486 

15. 213 
48.571. 880 
22.604. 067 
13.539. 647 
1 0.922.5 79 

112.783. 537 

112.973. 330 
15.742. 218 

241.499. 085 
42.043. 13 1 

- 

- 

. 

239. 829 

100. 298 
(25 1. 207) 

3 17.362. 508 

(41 . 122. 265) 
276.329. 163 

$559.871. 379 

- 

~ 

293.963. 402 
168.772. 000 
12.174. 113 
43.940. 097 

708.908 
519.558. 520 
23 1.308. 958 

. 

259. 593 

99. 703 
(25 1. 207) 

371.005. 060 
(92.653. 041) 
189.727. 771 
468.187. 879 

1.219.055. 357 

See accompanying notes . 
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IDT CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Casts and expenses: 

Direct cost of revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Selling, general and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Acquired research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income (loss) fiom operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total costs and expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Equityloss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain on sales of investinents 

Otller . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain 011 sales of subsidiary stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income (loss) before income taxes. minority 
extraordinary items. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Provision (benefit) for income taxes . . . . . .  
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. interests 
. . . . . . .  
. . . . . . .  
. . . . . . .  

and 
. . . . .  
. . . . .  
. .  I . .  

Income (loss) before extraordinaiy items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Extraordinaiy loss on retirement of debt. net of iiicoiiie 

taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Subsidiary redeemable prefened stock dividends . . . . . . . . .  
Net loss available to coimnon stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net income (loss) per share: 
Net iiicome (loss) before extraordiiiaiy items: 

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

taxes: 
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

iiet income (loss) per share: 
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Extraordinary loss 011 retirement of debt, iiet of iiicome 

Net incoinc (loss) 

Weighted average number of shares used in calculation of 

Year ended July 31. 
1998 1999 2000 

$335.372. 915 $732.183. 855 $1.093. 9 1 1. 855 

240.859. 809 575.049. 683 9 3 6 4  18.256. 
61.974. 851 128.499. 7 15 343.701. 929 
17.900. 000 - - 
13.810. 488 36.359. 986 48. 5 64. 3 U  

334.545. 148 739.909. 384 1. 3 10.522. 637 
827. 767 (7.725. 529) (216.610. 782) 

15.490. 449 
- - (6.289. 004) 
- - 23 1.032. 05 1 
- - 350.343. 786 

103. 215 (2.035. 150) 27.186. 305 

535. 173 (10.989. 311) 392.893. 290 
(2.523. 500) 7.253. 000 218.403. 383 
3. 8 9 5. 66 9 (3. 3 0 8. 5 5 2) ( 5  9. 3 3 5 .  9 7 4) 
(836. 996) (14.933. 759) 233.825. 881 

(132. 376) (3.269. 787) (2.975. 845) 
(969. 372) (1 8.203. 546) 230.850. 036 

- 26. 29 7. 426 - 
$ (969. 372) $ (44.500. 972) $ 230.850. 036 

(5.978. 760) (1 1. 3 18. 964) (8.259. 515) . 
5.582. 95 1 10.090. 332 

($0.02) ($1.23) $6.69 
($0 * 02) ($1.23) $6.22 

($0.01) ($0 .lo) ($0.09) 
($0.01) ($0.10) ($0.08) 

($0.03) ($1.33) ($6.60) 
($0.03) ($1.33) ($6.14) 

28. 5 7 1. 42 1 3 3.529. 93 0 
28.571. 421 33.529. 930 

34. 9 4 0 0  66. 
37.619. 351 

See ac coiiip an y i ng notes . 
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IDT CORPOFtATION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Accumuh ted 
Retained Other Total 

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Stockholders (Deficit) Jncome Equity 
Common Stock Class A Stock Paid-in Loans to Earnings Comprehensive Stockholders’ 

---- 
Balance at July 31, 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10,636,000 $106,360 11,174,330 6111,743 $ 46,990,388 - $ (21,949,347) - $ 25,259,144 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,297,17 I 
8,790,000 

Exercise of stock options. 1,615,366 16,154 - - 5,281,017 I - A 

Income tax benefit from stock options exercised - - - - 8,790,000 - - - 
Conversion of Class A stock to common stock 918,662 9,186 (9IS,662) (9J86) - - - I - 
Issuance of common stock in connection with 

Conmion stock issued upon conversion of notes 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 116,580,500 business acquisitions 3,967,323 39,673 I - 116,540,827 - - 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 8,654,513 payable 582,762 5,828 - - 8,645,685 - - 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 530,608 Exercise of warrants. 35,003 350 - - 530,258 I - 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - I 18,259,533 Sale of common stock 5,093,750 50,938 I I 1 ’I 8,208,595 - - 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 390,000 related party - - - - 390,000 - - 
Net loss for the year ended July 31, 1998 . . . .  - - - - - - (969,372) - (969,372) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  282,792,097 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 3,830,879 Exercise of stock options. 696,840 6,968 - - 4,075,118 (251,207) - 

- 4,257,973 - - - 4,257,973 income tax benefit fiom stock options exercised - - - 
Conversion of Class A stock to common stock . 225,910 2,259 (225,910) (2,259) - 
Issuance of c o r ”  stock in connection with 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 2,850,000 
I - 923,914 Exercise of warants.  11 1,238 1,113 - - 922,801 - 

Costs associated with stock registration. . . . . .  - - - - - - (1 21,154) 
Net loss for the year ended July 31, 1999 . . . .  - - - - - - - (1 8,203,546) 

Issuance of common stock to employees by 

Balance at July 31, 1998 22,848,866 218,489 10,255,666 102,557 305,379,770 - (22,918,719) - 

- - + - 
business acquisitions 100,000 1,000 - - 2,849,000 - - 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
(122,154) - 

(1 8,203,546) 
276,329,163 

14,521,413 14,534,520 Exercise of stock options. 1,310,700 13,107 
Income tax benefit from stock options exercised 10,346,394 10,346,394 
Conversioii of Class A stock to common stock 59,525 595 (59,525) (595) 117,704 

- Balance at July 31, 1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23,982,854 239,829 10,029,758 100.298 317,362,508 (251,207) (41,122,265) 
. . . . . . . . . . .  

Exercise of warrants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  19,963 200 117,504 
Issuance of common stock. . . . . . . . . . . .  3,725,949 37,289 128,611,541 128,648,740 
Change in Unrealized gain (loss) in available 

Foreign currency translation adjustment 

Modification of stock options 984,564 984,564 
Stock option given to partnership. 917,313 917,213 
Net income for the year ended July 31, 2000 . 230,850,036 230,850,036 230,850,036 
Comprehensive Income 

Balance at July 31. 2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  25,959,256 259,593 9,970,233 99,703 371,005,060 (251,207) $189,727,771 $(92,653,041) $ 468,187,879 

for sale securities 

Repurchase of CoIiiiiion stock . . . . . . . . . . .  (3,142,735) (3 1,427) ( 1 0 1,s 55,987) (94,044,241) (101,887,414) 
. . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . .  I - - - - 138,196,995 - - - ---- 
---- ---- 

See accompanying notes. 

i 
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IDT CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Year ended JuIv 31 . 
Operating activities 
Net income (lass) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: . Amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt before taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Amortization of deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other stock option compensation expeiise . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  i . .  
Acquired research and development costs by issuance of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority mterests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Defemd income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of common stock to employees by related party . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain on derivative instrument . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain on sale of investment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain on sales of subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net realized gains from sales of marketable securities and investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Otlier assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Notes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Trade accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investing activities 
Purchases of property. plant and equipment 
Purchase of tradeinark . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of notes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
lnvestments and acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Collection of notes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Payments for the purchase of InterExchange, hc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net purchases of marketable securities 
Proceeds froin sale of subsidiary, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Financing activities 
Proceeds from issuance of Series A Preferred stock and warrants by Net2Phone . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from exercise of stock options for Net2Phone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds fiom exercise of warranls for Net2Phone 
Payment of debt issuance costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Distribution to minority shareholder . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from borrowings . . . . .  
Payment of financing costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from exercise o f  warrants 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 
Repayment of capital lease obligations 
Repayments of borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from sale of common stock . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from offerings of common stock by Net2Phone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Collection of loans to stackliolders by Net2Phone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from ininonty investment in  subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Payments to repurchase common stock 
Net cash provided by financing activities 
Net increase (decrease) in cash 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 

Cash payments made for interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash payments made for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Accrued interea converted to equity 

Purchase of fixed assets by capital lease 

Notes payable converted IO equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Supplemental schedule of non-cash activities: 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

~~~~ ~ 

1998 1999 2000 

.T (969. 372) (18.203. 546) .% 230.850. 036 

4.096. 651 
9. 7 13.837 

132. 376 

I 

17.900. 000 
3.895. 669 

(2.812. 500) 
390. 000 

. 

. 

. 
(20.909. 084) 

(9.138. 112) 
(1.359. 248) 

485. 810 
I 8.141. 8 13 

878. 017 
6.732. 370 
4.063. 120 
(375. 626) 
(262. 376) 

30.603. 345 

(4 1. 3 32. 835) 

(23.595. 526) 
- 

- 
- 

(20.588. 000) 
(60.308. 768) 

(145.625. 129) 
- 

15.153. 768 
2 1.206. 21 E 

5.359. 787 
15. 734.41 6 

- 
I 

(3. 3 08. 552) 
(1.156. 000) - 

- 
- - 
1 

(68.108. 153) 
(24. 2 14. 249) 
(6.770. 740) 

39.056. 078 
1.290. 649 
4.034. 445 

(2.377. 636) 
2.176. 909 
1.830. 450 

- 

16.285. 633 
32.278. 711 
4.870. 452 

42.917. 133 . 
. 

(59.335. 974) 
2 16.903. 000 

(516. 610) 
(23 1.032. 051) 
(350.343. 786) . 

(29.476. 446) 

(52.643. 463) 
(40.718. 219) 
12.524. 075 

81.262. 113 
29.735. 880 
34.025. 765 
(1.549. 528) 

(12.357. 263) 
1749.2091 

- 

1 

(18.296. 354) (77.069. 751) 

(48.097. 692) (101.192. 12 1 )  

(13.423. 462) 
(10.735. 031) (38.802. 726) 
14.040. 147 9.523. 754 

( I  7.560. 887) (7.058. 853) 
- 115.434. 000 

(80.776. 915) (22.095. 946) 

(5.000. 000) - 
- 

- - 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 
1 10.668. 294 

(3.561. 070) 
530. 608 

5.297. I71 
(2.665. 084) 
(5.696. 462) 

118.259. 533 
- 
- 
- 
- 

222.X30. 990 

29.900. 000 
1.334. 000 

437. 870 
(4.475. 029) 
(6.079. 274) 

115.945. 551 

923. 914 
7.966. 698 

(5.34s. 909) 
(103.911. 562) 

- 

- - 
. 
. 
. 

36.693. 239 
107.609. 206 

7.674,3 13 
(62.380. 040) 
115.2S3.519 

$ 115.283. 519 S 52.903. 479 

. 
S. 172. 042 
. 
. 

(3.179. 2SS) 
13.897. 620 

1 7 0 4  17. 
14.534. 520 
(9.833. 000) 

( I  08.145. 550) 
128.648. 740 
261.186. 837 

627. 049 
5.000. 000 

(101.887. 414) 
309.141. 260 
109.975. 563 
52.903. 479 

5; 162.879. 042 

- 

$ 2.036. 000 S 13.483. 000 $ 10.073. 542 

$ - $ 235. 000 $ 1.050. 000 

$ 121.000 5 I S . 
S 12.448. 000 $ 11.899. 000 $ 45.541. 253 

$ 8.534. 000 $ - 

__I_ 

- s. 

See accompanying notes . 
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IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
July 31, 2000 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Description of Business 

IDT Coiporation (“IDT” or the “Coinpaiiy”) is a multinational telecomiunications ca-rier that provides a 
broad range of services to its wliolesale and retail customers- world wide, The Company provides its customers 
with integrated inteinatioiial and doinestic long distance, prepaid calling cards, Intemet access, and through 
Net2Phone, Inc. (“Net2Phone”), a majority-owned subsidiary, Intemet telephony services. The Company also 
seIls prepaid calling cards to distributors. 

Basis of Cons o lidn tio ii and A cco tin ti rig fo r hives bq i e n ts 

The coiisolidated hiancia1 statements include the accounts of IDT and all companies in which IDT has a 
controlling voting interest (“subsidiaries”), as if IDT and its subsidiaries were a single company. Sigiificaiit 
intercompany accounts and transactions between the consolidated companies have been eliminated. 

Investments in coinpanies in which IDT has significant influence, but less than a controlling voting interest, 
are accounted for using the equity method. Investments in companies in which IDT does not have a controlling 
interest or an ownership and voting interest so large as to exert significant influence are accounted for at market 
value if the investments are publicly traded and there are no resale reshictions, or at cost, if the sale of a publicly- 
traded investinelit is restricted or if the investment is not publicly traded. 

The effect of any changes in IDT’s ownership interests resulting froin the issuance of equity capital by 
consolidated subsidiaries or equity iiivestees to unaffiliated parties is included hi gain on sales of subsidiaiy stock. 

Reclnssificatioizs 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to cui-rent year presentation. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in confoimity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States requires inanagenient to make estimates and assuiiiptions that affect the aniounts reported in the 
financial statements and accoingaiiying notes. Actual results may differ froin those estimates. 

Re veil ti e Rec ogiz i ti0 TI 

Telecoiimmicatioii, Inteiiiet telephony service, Iiitemet subscription service and debit card revenues are 
recognized as service is provided. Equipment sales are recognized when installation is completed. Prepayments 
for services are deferred and recognized as revenue as the services are provided. 

Sales of equipment with software necessary to provide the Coinpany’s seivices are accounted for in 
accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of Position of 97-2, Software 
Revenue Recognition. Revenue on such sales is recognized when such products are delivered, collection of 
payinents are assured and there are no significant future obligations. 

Direct Cost of Revenue 
Direct cost of revenue consists primarily of telecommnication costs, connectivity costs and the cost of 

equipment sold to customers. Direct cost of revenue excludes depreciation and amortization. 

Propel-@, Plant and Equipment 
All propei-ty, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useft11 

lives of the assets, which range from thee  to seven years. Leasehold iinproveinents are depreciated using the 
straight line method the over the teiin of the lease or estimated useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter. 
Computer software is amortized over the shorter of five years or the tenn of the related agreement. Buildings are 
depreciated over the estimated 30 year useful lives. 
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IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F I " C W  STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

Tra dent ark n 7'1 d Pa ten rs 
Costs associated with obtaining the right to use trademarks and patents owned by third parties are capitalized 

and amortized on a straight-line basis over the teim of the trademark licenses and patents. 

Subscriber Acquisition Costs arid Advertising 
Subscriber acquisition costs including sales coiimissions, license fees and production and shipment of 

starter packages are expensed as incurred. 

The Company expenses the costs of advertising as incuned. Typically, Net2Phone purchases banner 
advertising on other companies' web sites pursuant to contracts that have one to three year tenns and may include 
the guarantee of (i) a 1iihiniw.n number- of impressions, (ii) the number of tinies that an advertisement appears in 
pages displayed to users of the web site, or (5) a mllliinum amount of revenue that wiU be recognized by 
Net2Phone fiom customers directed to Net2Phoiie's web site as a direct result of the advertisement. Net2Plione 
recognizes banner advei-tising expense With respect to such advertising ratably over the period in which the 
advertisement is displayed. In addition, some agreements require additional payments as additional impressions 
are delivered. Thus, additional paynents are expensed when the impressions are delivered. 

In one case, Net2Phoiie entered into an agreement with no specified terni of years. In tllis case, the Company 
amortizes as expense the lessor of [i) the number of impressions to date/minimwn guaranteed iiiipressions, or [ii) 
revenue to date/iiiininium guaranteed revenue as a percentage of the total payments. 

For the years ended July 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, advertising expense totaled approximately $5,632,000, 
$lO,454,OOO and $46,722,000, respectively. 

In addition, for the quarter ended July 3 1 , 2000, the Coiiipany incurred approximately $28 iiiilIioii of costs to 
teiiniiiate advertising arrangements. These teiinination costs are iiicluded in selling, general aiid administrative 
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operatioiis. 

- 

Sofhvare Developeizt Costs 

Costs for tlie internal development of new software products and substantial erdianceineiits to existing 
software products are expensed as incurred until technological feasibility has been established, at which time any 
additional costs are capitalized. Foi- tlie years elided July 3 1, 1998, 1999 and 2000, research and development 
costs totaled approximately $48 1,000, $757,000 aid $4,692,000, respectively. 

Capifalized Iritemal Use Sofhvare Costs 

The Coiiipany capitalizes certain costs iiicun-ed in connection with developing or obtaining intemal use 
software. These costs consist of payments made to third parties and the salaries of employees worlung on such 
software development. At July 3 I ,  1999 aiid 2000, the Company has capitalized $4,065,000 and $8,593,000, 
respectively, of iiiteiiia1 use software costs as computer software. 

Lorig-Lived Assets 
In accordance with SFAS 12 1 , Accounting for the hipailment of Long-Lived Assets aiid for Long-Lived 

Assets to be Disposed Of, tlie Company reviews the i inpahent  of long-lived assets aiid certain identifiable 
intangibles whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the canying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable. Tlie analysis of tlie recoverability utilizes undiscounted cash flows. Tlie measurement of tlie loss, if 
any, will be calculated as the amount by which the caiiying ainouiit of the asset exceeds tlie fair value. 

Cash and Cash Equivalerzts 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of thee iiioiiths or less when 

purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash aiid cash equivalents are can-ied at cost which approximates market value. 
At July 3 1, 1999 and 2000, the Company has 79% and 66%, respectively, of its cash and cash equivdeiits in three 
financial institutions. 
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IDT COWOFL4TION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

Marketuble Securities 
Marketable securities consist of equity securities and U.S. Govermnent Agency Obligations and commercial 

paper. Certain debt securities held by Net2Phone, with original maturities of greater than thee  months at the time 
of purchase are classified as held to maturity and are carried at amortized cost. Interest on tliese securities is 
included in interest income as earned. 

During fiscal 2000, IDT sold approximately $55,000‘,000 of held-to-maturity securities prior to their 
maturity dates aiid recorded a loss of approximately $1,200,000. The securities were sold to fund certain 
transactions. In connection with these sales, marketable securities with a cost basis of approximately $22,000,000 
were reclassified as available-for-sale and though July 3 1, 2000, unrealized losses of approximately $550,000 
have been included in accuinulated otlier comprehensive income at July 3 I ,  2000. 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed on a specific identification basis. 

Goodwill ~ n d  Otlasr Intangible Assefs 
Goodwill is amortized over 5 to 20 years using the straight-line method. Other intangible assets consists of 

core programing technology and asseinbled workforce which are amortized over 32 to 35 months, and 48 to 54 
months, respectively. The Company systeinatically reviews the recoverability of its acquired intangible assets for 
each acquired entity to deteiiiiine whether an impairment may exist. Upon a detennination that the carrying value 
of acquired intangible assets will not be recovered from the undiscounted fiiture cash flows of the acquired 
business, the can-ying value of such acquired intangible assets would be considered impaired and would be 
reduced by a charge to operations in the ainouiit of the iinpainnent. 

Inconze Taws 
The Company accounts for income taxes on the liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and 

liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and 
liabilities. 

Earnings (Loss) Per Share 
Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) applicable to coiimoii shares 

by the weighted average of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share 
adjusts basic eaniings (loss} per share for the effects of convertible securities, stock options, warrants and other 
potentially dilutive financial instmments. only in the periods in which such effect is dilutive. 

Cirr-reit f Vdnernbiliqi Dire to Certain Coriceiitr*ations 
Financial instnrnients that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit r i s k  consist 

principally of cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities, trade receivables and notes receivable. 
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the large number of 
customers comprising the Company’s custoiiier base. At July 31, 1999, the Company has 90% of its notes 
receivable with one company, and 1 1 % of its accounts receivable balance with one company. At July 3 1, 2000, 
the Conipany has 43% of its notes receivable with two companies and 9% of the of its accounts receivable with 
one company, 

International customers account for a significant amount of the Company’s total revenues. Therefore, the 
Company is subject to risks associated with international operations, including changes in exchange rates, 
difficdty in accounts receivable collection aiid longer payment cycles. 

Management regularly monitors the creditworthiness of its domestic and international customers and 
believes that it has adequately provided for any exposure to potential credit losses. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FXNANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

Fair Value of Finaricinl Iizstr-unzeuzts 
The estimated fair value of financial instruments has been determined using available market infoilnation or 

other appropriate valuatioii methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in inteipreting market 
data to develop estimates of fair value. Consequently, the estimates are not necessaily indicative of the amounts 
that could be realized or would be paid in a current market exchange. 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Coinpany in estimating the fair value of its 
financial hstnuneiits: 

Notes receivable: For notes receivable which are short-term or have variable interest rates, fair values are 
based on caii-ying values. The fair values of notes receivable with fixed interest rates with long-tenn maturities 
are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, using interest rates currently offered for notes with similar. 
terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. The fair values of notes receivable at July 31, 1999 and 2000 
approximates $17,082,000 and $1 1,63 1,000, respectively. 

For notes payable which are short-term or have variable interest rates, fair values are based 
on canying values. The fair values of notes payable with fixed interest rates with long-teiin maturities are 
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis using interest rates that are cuTeiitly being offered on similar 
instruments. The fair values of the notes payable at July 31, 1999 and July 3 1,2000 approximate canying values, 
due to their variable rates of interest. 

. 

Notes yajiabk: 

Segment Disclosures 
The Company uses the “maiiageiiient approach” model for segment reporting. The manageinelit approach 

model is based on the way a company’s management organizes segments within the company for iliaking 
operating decisions and assessing perfoimance. 

Stock Based Conzpensntioii 
The Coiqany accounts for- stock options issued to employees using the intrinsic value method prescribed in 

Accounting Piiiiciples Board Opiiiioii NO. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 25”). 
Coinpensation expense for stock options issued to employees is measured as the excess of the quoted market 
price of tlie Company’s stock at the date of grant over the amount einpIoyees must pay to acquire the stock. 

The Coi-npany applies the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(“SFAS”) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Coiyeiisation, with respect to stock options issued to the 
Company’s eiiiployees. 

In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Inteipretation No. 44, Accounting 
for Certain Transactions iiivolviiig Stock Compensation, an interpretation of APB No. 35. The Interpretation, was 
adopted prospectively as of July 1, 2000. 

Recently Issired A cca u IZ tirzg Stn iz dads 

hi Julie 1998, tlie Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative 
Iiish-urnents and Hedging Activities (“SFAS NO. 133 ”). This stateinelit establishes accounting and reporting 
standards requiring that every derivative instrument (including certain derivative iiistruinents embedded in other 
contracts) be recorded on the balance sheet as either an asset or liability iiieasured at its fair value. This statement 
requires that changes in tlie derivative’s fair value be recognized currently in eailziiigs unless specific hedge 
accounting criteria are met. Special accounting for quaMying hedges allows derivative’s gains and losses to 
offset related results on the hedge item in tlie iiicoiiie statement, and requires a coiiipaiiy to foniially document, 
designate and assess the effectiveness of transactions that receive hedge accounting. This stateinelit is effective 
for fiscal years beginning afier June 15,2000 and cannot be applied retroactively. The Company believes that tlie 
adoption of this standard will not have a inaterial effect on the Company’s consolidated resuIts of operation or 
financial position due to their limited use of derivative instrumeiits. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

2. Marketable Securities 
The following is a summary of the marketable securities at July 31, 2000: 

Gross Gross 
Carrying Unrealized Unrealized 
Amount Gains Losses Fair Value 

Short term: 
Held-to-maturity securities 
U.S. Government Agency 
Obligations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commercial paper . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Available-for-sale securities 
US. Goveinment Agency 

Terra common stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Obligations.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Long term: 
Held-to-maturity securities 
US. Government Agency 
Obligations, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commercial paper . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Available-for-sal e securities 
WebEx coimon stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Yahoo! common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ 9,500,000 
49,642.5 18 

$7,775 
17 

59,142,5 18 

23,096,425 
147,920,654 
230,159,597 

5,000,000 
I 7.942.877 

1 ,  

22,942,8 77 

5,33 1,5 I S  
104,003,109 
132,277,504 

$3 62.43 7,lO 1 

1,792 

1,792 

- 

$1,792 

($12,500) $ 9,489,275 
(45,568) 49,596,967 
(58,068) $ 59,086,242 

- 23,096,425 
- 147,920,654 

(58,068) 230,103,321 

(21,200) 4,978,800 
(37,877) 17,905,000 
(59,077) 22,883,800 

5,331,518 
104,003,109 

(59,077) 132,218,427 

($1 17,145) $362,321,748 

- 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FI"CIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued) 

3. Notes Receivable 
In May 1998, the Company entered into an agreement with a telecommunication company to provide it with 

a $25,000,000 revolving credit facility (the "Facility"). The Facility bore interest at a rate of 5% per annuin. The 
unpaid piincipal and accrued interest on. the Facility were payable in quarterly installments, as defined in the 
agreement, which payments commenced on Febi-uary 1, 1999. AS of July 31, 1999, the outstanding balance 011 the 
Facility of approximately $19,0~0,000 was included in notes receivable. hi October 1999, the Facility's 
remaining piincipal balance was repaid in bll. 

4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment consists of the following: 

July 31 
1999 2000 

Equipment.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $100,145,353 $235,767,013 
Computer software. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  38,916,589 32,215,814 
Leasehold improvements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,650,936 11,918,145 
Furnitweandfixtures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,447,2 10 10,624,846 
Land andbuilding.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,3 12,190 6,326,874 

151,472,278 299,852,692 
Less accumulated depreciation and aniortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (37,349,355) (74,214,413) 
Property, plant and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1 14,122,923 $225,638,279 

Fixed assets under capital leases aggregate approximately $30,469,000 and $7 1,835,000 at JuIy 3 1, 1999 and 
2000, respectively. The accumulated amoitization related to these assets under capital leases is approximately 
$8,266,000 and $17,756,000 at July 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively. 

5. Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets consist of the following at July 3 1: 

1999 2000 
Core technology and patents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 21,200,000 $ 35,100,000 
Assembled workforce 2,3 00,000 3,3 17,000 
GoodwilI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  110,822,000 156,639,000 

134,322,000 195,056,000 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Accuinulat e d amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (I 6,956,000) (32,823,000) 

$1 17,366,000 $162,233,000 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FZNANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

6. Notes Payable 
Notes payable consists of the following: 

July 31 
1999 2000 

SeniorNotes(A). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 380,000 $ 380,000 
- -  Senior Credit facilities (B) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  l08,146,000 I 

Promissory note (C) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,367,000 4,768,000 
Promissory notes (D). - 
Proinissory notes (E) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 
Promissory notes (E), . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 6 3 3  7,000 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16,942,000 
4,800,000 

Other 1,833,000 1,3 5 1,000 
117,726,000 34,778,000 

Less notes payable-current portion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (4,753,000) (22,604,000) 
Notes payable-long-term portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $1 12,973,000 $ 12,174,000 

(A) On February 18, 1998, the Company completed an offering of $100,000,000 in Senior Notes (the 
“Notes”). Such Notes bear interest, which is payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15, at 
8.75% per annum, mature on February 15,2006 and are general unsecured obligations of the Company. 
On May 10, 1999, the Coinpany repaid $99,620,000 of the principal balance together with accrued 
interest at a redemption price equal to 102% of the repaid principal balance. The Company recorded a 
pre-tax extraordinary loss in connection with the repayment of $5,359,787 during the year ended 
July 3 1, 1999. 

(€3) On May 10, 1999, the Company obtained a Senior Secured Credit Facility (“Credit Facility”) froin a 
consortiuin of financial institutions. The Credit Facility, as amended, consisted of a $25,000,000 
revolving line of credit, maturing on May 9, 2003, a $60,000,000 multi-draw tenn loan, payable in 
equal quarterly principal payments commencing February 2001, and ending May 9, 2003, and a 
$75,000,000 single-draw term loan, requiring payments of 1% of the principal balance for the first four 
years, and the remaining principal balance in four equal quarterly payments thereafter. The Credit 
Facility bore interest at base rates, as defined, plus 2.50% to 3.50%. The Credit Facility was 
collateralized by 100% of the capital stock of IDT’s domestic subsidiaries, and other assets. At July 3 1, 
1999, $25,000,000 of the revolving line of credit and $26,854,000 of the $60,000,000 multi-draw teim 
loan remained unused. During the second quarter ended January 31, 2000, the Company repaid all of 
the outstanding principal balance together with accrued interest. The Company recorded a pre-tax 
extraordinary loss in connection with the repayment of $4,870,452 during the year- ended July 3 1,2000. 

(C) On May 6, 1999, the Company entered into a $7,800,000 promissory note with a hancing company. 
The note is payable in 36 monthly installments commencing on June 1, 1999, a id  bears an adjustable 
interest rate indexed to the one month LIBOR rate. The promissory note is collateralized by certain 
equipment of the Company. 

(D) On June 30, 2000, the Company completed the acquisition of a 100% interest in CTM Brochure 
Display, Inc. (“CTM”), a brochure distribution company. In connection with the acquisition, the 
Company issued promissory notes to the former shareholders in the aggregate amount of $16,942,000. 
The notes bear interest at :he rate of 9.50% per annum. The principal balance on the notes, together 
with accrued interest, are payable in equal monthly installments through June 30, 2001. 

(E) The promissolry notes were issued in connection with Net2Phone’s Aplio acquisition (Note (13)) and 
bear interest at an annual rate of 6.53%. The Company is required to pay $1,961,235 of the notes on 
March 3 1,2001 and the reiiiaining principal balance of $4,576,215 plus all accrued and unpaid interest 
on January 31, 2002. In addition Net2Phone is required to pay the former Aplio shareholders $4.8 
inillion over 18 months from the date of sale. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAJYCIPLL, STATE~NTS-(Continued) 

On September 5 ,  1997, the Company completed a private placement of $7,500,000 in convertible 
debentures. Such convertible debentures bore interest at 3% per annum which was payable upon their maturity on 
September 5, 2000. In Apiil 1998, the holders of $6,500,000 in principal amount of the convertible debentures 
elected to convert a11 outstanding principal and unpaid acciued interest thereon into 436,781 shares of the 
Coinpany’s common stock. The remaining $1,000,000 in convertible debentures and all unpaid accrued interest 
thereon were repaid in June 1998. 

h u a l  fitme principal repayments of long-term debt for the five years subsequent to July 3 1, 2000 consist 
of $22,604,000 due in fiscal 2001, $11,829,000 due in fiscal 2002, and $345,000 due in fiscal 2003. 

7. Related Party Transactions 
In connection with the incoiporation of NetZPhone in October 1997, Net2Phone and the Coinpany entered 

into a separation agreement in May 1999 under which the transactiions and agreements iiecessary to govem the 
relationship between the two companies to effect their separation were determined. 

During the periods prior to the signing of the aforementioned agrcements, service costs were generally 
allocated based upon a percentage of total revenue earned or payroll expense hcurred by Net2Plione. These 
allocated costs approximate the amounts that would have been charged under the intercompany agreements if 
they had been in effect during such periods. 

8, Income Taxes 
Significant components of tlie Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities consists of the following: 

July 31, 
1999 2000 

Deferred tax assets: 
Unrealized losses on securities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Exercise o f  stock options. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Partnership . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Bad debt reserve . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Gain on sales of subsidiaiy stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Identifiable intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred tax liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ - $ 34,484,000 
3,045,000 5,33 1,000 
7,926,000 3,277,000 

4,500,000 
285,000 289,000 

11,256,000 47,881,000 

- 

- (97,83 0,000) 
- (92,4 13,000) 

(2,760,000) (14,466,000) 
(5,137,500) (1,728,000) 

(10,216,000) 
(7,897,500) (21 6,653,000) 

$ 3,358,500 $(168,772,000) 

No valuation allowance on the net defeired tax assets has been established as the realizatioii of such net 
deferred tax assets is coiisidered to be more likely than not. 
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The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following for the years ended July 3 1 : 

199s 1999 2000 

Cunent : 
- Federal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 

State and local and foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  200,000 
200,000 

- -  

Deferred: 
FederaI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2,207,000) 
State and local . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (605,500) 

(2,8 12,500) 
$(2,6 12,500) 

$ 400,000 
- 

~~ 

400,000 

3,768,000 
995,000 

4.763.000 

(3 95 ,o 00) 

175,191,000 
41,7 12,000 

21 6,903,000 - 
$ 5 ,  ‘1 63,000 $2 16,508 ,O 00 

The income statement classification of the provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following at 
July 3 1 : 

1998 1999 2000 

Income tax provision (benefit) attributable to 
continuing operatioiis. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(2,523,500) $ 7,253,000 $21 8,403,OOO 

Incoine tax benefit attributable to extraordinary loss. , . (89,000) (2,090,000) (1,895,000) 
$(2,612,500) $ 5,163,000 $216,508,000 

The differences between income taxes expected at the U.S. federal statutoiy income tax rate and income 
taxes provides are as follows: 

1998 

Federal income tax at statutory rate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 281,000 
Purchased research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,240,000 
Change in valuation allowaiice . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (9,294,000) 
Losses for which no benefit provided. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Non-deductible expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (209,000) 

I 

- 

State and local and foreign income tax . . . . . . . . . . . .  369,500 

$(2,6 12,500) 

1999 2000 

$(3,842,000) $13 7,5 13,000 

6,110,000 32,703,000 
2,226,000 17,625,000 

647,000 28,612,000 
22,000 55,000 

$’ 5,163,000 $216,508,000 

9. Stockholders’ Equity 
Coininon Stock nnd Class A Stock 

The lights of holders of common stock and holders of Class A stock are identical except for voting and 
conversion rights and restrictions on transferability. The holders of Class A stock are entitled to three votes per 
share and the holders of common stock are entitled to one vote per share. Class A stock is subject to certain 
limitations on transferability that do not apply to the cormnon stock. Each share of Class A stock may be 
converted into one share of common stock, at any time at the option of the holder. 

War7ants 

In July 1997, the Company issued warrants to purchase 35,906 shares of its coinmon stock at $8.34 per slime 
and 63,098 shares of its conmoil stock at $6.96 per share to a leasing company in connection with a capital lease. 
During the years ended July 31, 1998 and 1999, all of such warrants were exercised. 
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In September 1997, the Company issued warrants to purchase 75,000 shares of the Company’s common 
stock at $15.16 per share to placement agents in connection with a private placement of $7,500,000 in convertible 
debentures. The holders of these warrants exercised warrants to purchase 35,003 and 12,234 shares, respectively, 
of the Company’s common stock in Fiscal 1998, and 1999. During the year ended July 31, 2000 all of the 
remaining warrants were exercised. 

Stock Options . -  

Prior to March 15, 1996, the Company had an infomal stock option program whereby employees were 
granted options to purchase shares of common stock. Under this infiormal program, options to purchase 2,158,770 
shares of Common stock were granted. 

The Company adopted a stock option plan as amended (the “Option Plan”) for officers, employees and non- 
employee directors to purchase up to 6,300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. In September 2000, the 
Board of Directors of the Company approved an amendment to the Option Plan to reserve for issuance 3,000,000 
shares of Class B stock. Class B stock will have 1/10 the voting rights of the Company’s common shares. 
Generally, options become exercisable over vesting periods up to six years and expire ten years from the date of 
grant. 

On February 15, 1997, the Company canceled 1,272,250 outstanding options with an exercise price of 
$10.00 and granted new options with an exercise price at the market value on that date of $7.75. On April 16, 
1997, the Company cancded 603,500 outstanding options with an exercise piice of $7.75 and granted new 
options with an exercise price at the market value on that date of $4.375. 

A summary of stock option activity under the Company’s stock option plan is as follows: 
Weighted 
Average 

Outstanding at July 31, 1997. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Outstanding at JuIy 31, 1998. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Outstanding at July 3 1, 1999. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Grai~ted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Canceled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Outstanding at July 31, 2000. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Shares Exercise Frice 

4.399.026 $ 3.89 
1 ;270;300 14.00 

(1,615,366) 3.28 
( 8 39,3 25) 5.00 

3,2 14,635 7.90 
1,2 36,241 15.21 
(696.840) 5.86 
‘(58;OOO) 14.85 

3.587.966 10.50 
(8,070) 8.27 

4;425:543 19.96 
(1,310,700) 11.09 

(47,500) 17.72 
(15,750) 21.85 

6,639,559 $16.61 
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The following table summarizes the status of stock options outstanding and exercisable at July 3 1 , 2000: 

Range of 
Exercise Prices 

$ 0.21 - $ 0.21.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 2 - .  . . . . . . .  
$ 0.41 - $ 0.41.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$ 0.83 - $ 0.83.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$ 1.65-$ 1.65 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$ 4.38 - $ 5 . 2 5 . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
8 6.88-$10.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$11.25 - $16.00.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$17.44 - $24.25.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$26.25 - $37.02.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Stock Options Outstanding 
Weighted- Number of 
Remaining Stock 

Number of Contractual Options 
Life Esercisable Options 

292,150 
8,s 16 

40,500 
15,000 

389,200 
610,825 

1,63 1,633 
3,000,185 

65 1.250 
6,639,559 

4.0 
4.7 
4.0 
4.7 
6.6 
6.5 
8.5 
9.3 
9.1 
_I 

292,150 
8,516 

40,500 
15,000 

389,200 
464,325 
4 1 9,90-3 
198,449 
195.000 

2,023,343 

The weighted average fair value of options granted was $4.46, $9.26 and $14.84 for the years ended July 3 1, 
1998, 1999, and 2000, respectively. 

Pro forma information regarding net loss and loss per share is required by SFAS 123, and has been 
determined as if the Company had accounted for empIoyees’ stock options under the fair value method provided 
by that statement. The fair value of the stock options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model with the following assumptions for vested and non-vested options. 

July 31 
1998 1999 2000 --- 

Assumptions 
Average risk-free interest rate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5.92% 4.67% 6.49% 

Volatility factor of the expected market price of the Company’s 

Average life. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 years 5 years 5 years 

- - - Dividendyie~d . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  common stock 84% 84% 81% 

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded 
options which have no vesting restrictions and are filly transferable. In addition, option valuation models require 
the input of  highly subjective assumptions iiicluding the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s 
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because 
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s 
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee 
stock options. 

For pnrposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options under SFAS 123 is amoi-tized 
to expense over the options’ vesting period. For the years ended July 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, pro forma net 
income (loss) and pro forma net income (loss) income per share under SFAS 123 amounted to approximately 
$( 11,082,000), $(53,295,000) and $214,285,657, respectively, and $(0.39), $( 1.59) and $6.12, respectively. 

During the year ended July 3 1, 2000, the Company modified stock options granted for certain employees of 
the Company to accelerate or extend their terms. Accordingly, the Company recorded additional compensation 
expense of approximately $9 8 5,000. 

Net2Phorze Stock Options 
In the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, Net2Phone granted options to purchase 8,8 11,500 shares of its coiiiinoii 

stock at exercise prices ranging from $3.33 to $15.00 per share to its employees and employees of IDT. In 
connection with the exercise of these options, Net2Phone extended $3,149,900 of recourse Ioaiis to its employees. 
In order to obtain the loans, optionees agreed to the cancellation of 23,382 outstanding options. 
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During the quarter ended July 3 1 , 2000, stock options issued to ceitain officers and employees of NetZPhone 
were accelerated in accordance with tlie original stock option awards and as a result Net2Phone recorded 
approximately $12.5 million in coinpensation charges as a result of the acceleration. During the quarter ended 
July 31, 2000, stock options issued to certain officers and employees of IDT were modified and as a result, 
Net2Phone recorded $18.3 million in compensation charges. 

Net2PJbne Series A Stock 
On May 13, 1999, Net2Phone designated 3,150,000 shares of its preferred stock as Series A (“Series A 

Stock”) and sold 3,140,000 of such shares to unrelated third parties in a private placement transaction for 
aggregate gross proceeds of $3 1,400,000. 

Public i?$erings and Other Transactions 
On February 3, 1998, the Company coinpleted a public offering of 5,093,750 shares of its comnon stock for 

$24.875 a share. The Company realized net proceeds of approximately $115.4 million from this offering. 
On August 3, 1999, Net2Phoiie completed an initial public offering of 6,210,000 shares of comiion stock at 

an initial public offering price of $15.00 per share, resulting in net proceeds of approximately $85.3 million. 
Upon coinpletion of the initial public offering, 3,140,000 shares of Net2Phone Series A Preferred Stock were 
converted into 9,420,000 shares of Net2Phone Class A Stock. As a result of the initial public offering and 
concurrent conversion of Series A Stock to Class A stock, the Company’s ownership percentage in Net2fhone 
decreased from approximately 90 .O% to approximately 56.2%. In connectioii with such offei-ing, the Coiiipany 
recorded a gain on sale of stock by a subsidiary of approximately $65,464,000. Such gain is included in gain on 
sales of subsidiay stock for the year elided July 3 1, 2000. 

In December 1999, the Net2Phone completed a secoiidaly offering of 6,300,000 shares of cormnon stock at a 
price of $55.00 pel- share. In connection with tlie offering, IDT also sold 2,200,000 share of NetZPbone coimion 
stock at $55.00 per share. Proceeds to the Coiiipany, after deducting undeiwriting discounts and coimnissioiis and 
offering expenses were approximately $292.8 million. The Company’s ownership percentage * in Net2Phone 
before and after these transactions decreased froin 56.4% to 47.97%. The Company recorded gains on sales of 
stock by a subsidialy of approximately $182,594,000 in connection with these offerings. Such gains are included 
in gain on sales of subsidiaiy stock for the year ended July 3 1,  2000. 

In March 2000, the Company acquired 806,452 shares of Yahoo! Iac. in exchange for 2,777,778 shares of 
the Net2Phone common stock at a then equivalent market value of approximately $150,000,000. In connection 
with the transaction, the Company recorded a gain on sale of subsidiary stock of $102,286,000. 

Stock Buyback Prograni 
During the year ended July 3 1,2000 the Board of Directors of the Coiiipany authorized the repui-chase of up 

to ten inillion shares of the Company’s cornnion stock. As of July 3 1 , 2000, the Coinpany had repurchased and 
retired approxiinately 3.1 million shares of comnion stock: for an aggregate consideration of approximately 
$101.9 million. 

Liberty Media Truizsa ctio 72 

On March 27, 2000, Libeity Media Group agreed to putcl~ase approxiinately 9.9% of the equity of IDT, 
equal to approximately 3,775,000 shares of IDT’s cormnoii stock exchangeable for shares of Class B common 
stock. On June 6, 2000, Liberty Media Group coinpleted the purchase of 3,728,949 shares of IDT’s coininoii 
stock at $34.50 per share, resultiiig in aggregate cash consideration of approximately $128.6 million. Liberty 
Media also has the right to nominate a director for election to the IDT Board of Directors. 
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Terra Netwoi-lis fiansactior? 
In October 1999, IDT entered into a joint venture agreement with Teira Networks, S.A. (“Tell-a”) pursuant 

to which the two parties formed two limited Iiability companies to provide Internet services and products to 
customers in the United States. One company was formed to provide internet access to customers and the other 
company was formed to develop and inanage an internet portal that will provide content-based Internet services. 
IDT’s 49% interest in the Internet access company was accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The 
equity method was used since IDT had significant influence, but less than a controlling voting interest. IDT’s 10% 
interest in the Internet portal company was accounted for at cost. The cost method was used since IDT did not 
have a controlling voting interest, or an ownership or voting interest so large as to exert significant influence, and 
the venture was not publicly traded. On April 30, 2000, the Company sold its interests in the two joint ventures 
for the right to receive 3,750,000 shares of Terra common stock The Company recognized a pre-tax gain of 
approximately $23 1.0 million in connection with this transaction for the year ended July 3 1, 2000. 

10. Commitments and Contingencies 
Legal Proceedings 

In October 1999, Union commenced an action against DigiTEC 2000, Inc. (“DigiTEC”) and TecNet, Inc. 
(“TecNet”) in the Supreme Court of the  State of New York, County of New York, alleging damages of 
approximately $725,000 based upon, among other things, non-payment for prepaid calling cards. DigiTEC and 
TecNET have answered the complaint and DigiTEC has asserted a third-party claim against IDT seeking 
damages of $2.5 million dollars based upon IDT’s alleged breach of a settlement agreement between IDT and 
DigiTEC which had resolved a prior litigation between those parties. The court adjourned the return date without 
assigning a specific return date for IDT to answer the Third-party Complaint, subject to DigiTEC’s right to make 
a written thirty day demand for an Answer. Ths action is currently in the early stages of discovery. 

In February 2000, IDT Europe B.V.B.A., a subsidiary of XDT, filed a Complaint against Tyco Group 
S.A.R.L. (“Tyco”) and Tyco Submarine Systems, Ltd. (“TSSL”) in the United States District Court, Newarlc, 
New Jersey, alleging breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing and breach of contract for 
breaching a Memorandum of Understanding and Instruction to Proceed entered into on November 9, 1999. IDT 
sought to enjoin and restrain Tyco and TSSL from undertaking contrary business activity inconsistent with the 
Memorandum of Understanding and Instruction to Proceed and sought comnpensatoiy, consequential and punitive 
damages. On March 24,2000, Tyco filed an answer and a motion to disiniss the action for Iack of subject matter 
jurisdiction and Tyco, TSSL, Tyco International Ltd., Tyco International (US) hc. ,  and Tycom Ltd. filed suit 
against IDT Europe B.V.B.A. and IDT in the Supreme Court for New York county. The suit alleges breach of 
contract and tortious interference with prospective business relations and seeks declaratory and/or injunctive 
relief. The plaintiffs are seelung compensatory damages in an undefined amount and punitive damages in the 
amount of $3 billion. On Apiil 13,2000, IDT filed a motion to dismiss the action for lack of personal jurisdiction 
and failure to state a claim, on which a hearing was scheduled for June 19, 2000. On June 7, 1999, the United 
States District Court in Newark, New Jersey dismissed IDT’s complaint for lack of federal court jurisdiction. On 
June 14, 2000, IDT filed a substantially similar action in the New Jersey state court. 

On October 10, 2000, IDT reached a full and h a 1  settlement with Tyco of all pending claims brought 
against one another and their respective affiliates. The settlement agreement is the subject  of a confidentiality 
agreement among the parties and only the following disclosure by IDT is permified under the tenns of that 
agreement. 
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Under the teiins of the settlement, Tycom Ltd. (“‘TyCom”) granted to IDT Europe B.V.B.A. (“DT 
Europe”), fi-ee of charge, ceitain exclusive rights to use capacity on the transatlantic and transpacific segments of 
TyCozn’s global undersea fiber optic network (the “TYCom Global Network”) which TyCoin is cuixently 
deploying. Tlie settIeinent agreement provides for IDT Europe to obtain exclusive indefeasible rights to use 2 
(two) 10 Gb/s wavelengths on the transatlantic segment and 2 (two) 10 Gb/s wavelengths on the transpacific 
segnieiit for fifteen years fiom the applicable Handover Dates ( i s  described below). TyCom previously 
announced that it expects the TyCoin traiisatlantic network to be ready for service in September of 2001 and the 
TyCom transpacific network to be ready for sei-vice in the second quarter of 2002, the respective “Ready for 
Sei-vice Dates.” Under the teiim of the settlement agreement, the Handover Dates for the wavelengths on the 
transatlantic segment are six months (for the first wavelength) and 18 months (for the second wavelength), 
respectively, after the Ready for Seivice Date of the TyCom transatlantic network and the Handover Dates for the 
wavelengths OB tlie transpacific segment are six months (for the first wavelength) and 18 months (for the second 
wavelength), respectively, after the Ready for Service Date of the TyCom transpacific network. Operation, 
administration and maintenance for the wavelengths used by IDT will be provided by TyCom for a fifteen year 
period after the relevant Haiidover Date, fiee of charge. TyCom has also granted IDT certain rights to resell any 
unused capacity on the wavelengths through TyCom as its sole and exclusive agent. In addition, IDT will also 
have the option, exercisable at least annually, to convert the available capaciq on its wavelengths to available 
equivalent capacity on another portion of the Tycom Global Network. 

In Febi-ua-y 2000, Multi-Tech Systems, Inc. (“Multi-Tech”) filed suit against Net2Phone and other 
companies in the United States Federal DisQict Court in Minneapolis, Minnesota. In its press release, Multi-Tech 
stated that “the defendant companies are infringing because they are providing the end users with tlie s o h a r e  
necessaiy to siinultaneously transmit voice and data on their computers in the form of making a phone call over 
the Internet.." Net2Phone intends to defend the lawsuit vigorously. Net2Phone believes that the Multi-Tech 
claiins are without merit. However, should a judge issue an injuiiction against Net2Phone requiring that 
NeQPhone cease distributing its sofhvare or providing its software-based services, such an injunction could have 
an adverse effect on Net2Phone’s business. Net2Phone has filed an answer and this action is cuiwntly in tlie early 
stages of discovery. 

The Coiiipany is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, wlich have arisen in the ordinary course of 
its business and have not been finally adjuchcated. Although there can be no assurances in this regard, in the 
opinion of the Company’s iiianagemeiit, such proceedings, as well as the aforementioned actions, will not have a 
material adverse effect on results of operations or the financial condition of the Company. 

Lease Ob l i p  tio 11s 

The fbtui-e miuiinuni payments for all capital and operating leases as of July 3 1, 2000 are approximately as 
follows: 

Operating 
Year ending July 31: Leases Capital 
2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 9,215,000 $ 16,646,000 

2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,772,000 14,182,000 
2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8,471,000 16,595,000 

2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,539,000 11,071,000 
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,233,000 6,233,000 
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  112,628,000 - 

Less amount representing interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (7,247,000) 

Capital lease obligations-loiig-teim portion, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 43,940,000 

Totalpayments.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $152,858,000 64,727,000 

Less current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (1 3,540,000) 

P 

Rental expense under operating leases was approximately $1,225,000, $2,82 1,000 and $6,857,000 for the 
years ended July 3 1, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively. 
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Coiizriz itmen ts 

For the years elided July 31, 1998 and 1999, the Company had an agreement with a supplier of 
teIecommunications services (“Vendoryy) which began in August 1994. Under such agreement, the Vendor bills 
and collects, on behalf of the Company, for long distance telephone services provided to the Company’s 
customers. The Company is responsible for all uncollected receivables. The Coinpany purchased approximately 
$5,997,000 aiid $10,214,000 during 1998 and 1999, respectively, of such sei-vices froin the Vendor. 

The Coinpany has entered into agreeinents with certain caniers to buy and sell comnunications services. At 
July 3 1 , 2000, the Company’s ininiinum purchase commitments related to such agreements consist of $3,127,000 
in Fiscal 2001, $1,771,000 in FiscaI 2002, $500,000 in Fiscal 2003, and $194,000 in Fiscal 2004. 

In September 1998, the Company entered into a 20 ycar agreement with a carrier to provide the Coinpany 
with nationwide bandwidth capacity and maintenance services in exchange fur total payments estimated at $32.0 
inill ion. 

Net2Phone has entered into various marketing and distribution agreements under which it is obligated to 
male upfiont and future payments. At July 31, 2000 $12,162,000 of prepayments are included in contract 
deposits. Future minimum payments under the agreements are: 

FiscaI 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $12,643,000 
Fiscal 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,036,000 
Fiscal 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,860,000 

$2 1,539,000 

In coivzection with the Company’s distr-ibution and marketing agreement with ICQ, the Company issued a 
wanant to America Online to purchase up to 3% of Net2Phone’s outstanding capital stock on a fully-diluted 
basis. This warrant will vest in 1% increments upon the achievement of each of three iiicreinental thresholds of 
revenue generated under the agreement during the first four years that the wanant is outstanding. The per share 
exercise price under the warrant will be equal to the lesser of 80% of the price per share in Net2Phone’s initial 
public offering, 01- $450 million divided by the number of the Conipany’s fully-diluted shares on the initial 
exercise date. The wail’ant may be exercised for a period of five years fioni the date of issuance. 

The warrants are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of EITF 96-18, “Accounting for Equity 
Investments that are Issued to Other than Employees for Acquiring or in Coiljunction with Selling Goods or 
Services.” Due to the uncertainty of reaching perfoimance measures stipulated in the warrant agreement, the 
Company has not recorded any expense relating to the issuance of the warrant. Upon deteiimination that the 
achieveineiit of the revenue thresholds is probable, the Coinpany will value the wairant and expense it over the 
remaining peiiod until the peifoniiance criteria is met. The thee  revenue thresholds are $10 million, $50 millioii 
and $75 million and the teiin of the distribution and marketing agreement is four years. If the thee  incremental 
thresholds had been met on July 31, 2000, the Company would have expensed approximately $25.3 million. 

11. Business Segment Information 

Based principally on products and services provided, the Coinpaiiy has identified four reportable business 
segments: Wholesale TelecoinInux-Licatioiis Services, Retail Telecommunications Services, Intemet Services and 
Internet Telephony. The operating results of these business segments are distinguishable, are regularly reviewed 
by Company management and are integral to their decision iiiakiiig process. 

The Wholesale Telecoininunications Services business segment is comprised of wholesale carrier services 
sold to other U. S. and international carriers. The Retail Telecoinmunications Services business se,gnent includes 
prepaid calling cards, international retail services and domestic long distance seivices. The Intemet Services 
business segment includes dial-up access services and direct connect dedicated service. The Intemet Telephony 
business segment reflects the results of the Company’s majority-owned subsidiary, Net2Phone, prior to the 
elimination of minority interests. The Ventures business segment, new for the current fiscal year, includes new 
industries explored by the Company such as IDT Wireless aiid TV.TV. 
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The Company evaluates the performance of its business segments based primarily on operating income after 
depreciation and amortization but prior to interest expense and iiicoine taxes; all corporate overhead is allocated 
to the business segments based on time and usage studies. Operating results and other financial data presented for 
the piincipal business segments of the Company for the years ended Jury 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 are as foollows 
($ in thousands): 

M'hoIesale Retail 
Telecommunications Telecommunications Internet Internet 

Services Services Services Telephony Ventures TotaI 
Year ended July 31, 199s 
Total segment revenue . . . 
Less: revenues between 

segnents . . . . , . . . , , . 
Total unaffiliated revenue . 
Income (loss) from 

operations . . . , . . . . , . , 
Depreciation and 

ainoitizati on . . . . . . . . . 
Total assets . . . . . , . . , . . 
Year ended July 31,1999 
Total. segment revenue . * . 
Less: revenues between 

seamelits . . . , . . . . . . . 
Total unaffiliated revenue . 

operations , . , . . . . . . . . 
Depreciation and 

amoi-t iz at i on . . . . . . . , , 
Total assets . . . . . , . . . - 
Year ended July 31, 2000 
Total segment revenue . , . 
Less: revenues between 

segments . . . . . . . . . . 
Total unaffiliated revenue . 
Income (loss) froin 

operati oils . . . . . . . . . . . 
Depreciation and 

amortization . . . . . . , . 
Total assets . . . . . . , . . , . 

Illcollle (loss) fiom 

$ 20,721 $ 12,006 $ 340,126 $170,240 

(3 ¶5 35) 
166,705 

9,460 

4,810 
230,998 

$301,413 

(1 2,3 83) 
289,030 

12,596 

14,120 
29434 1 

$549,213 

(28,695) 
520,5 18 

(1 1,458 j 

1 8,407 
43 1,659 

$1 37,159 

I 

137,159 

1,048 

3,721 
186,000 

$395,542 

- 

(720) (498) 
20,001 11,508 

(4,753) 
335,373 

(7,030) (2,650) a28 

4,409 571 
36,415 7,827 

1 3 3 1  I 
461,240 

$ 17,882 $ 33,256 $ 748,093 

(948) (2,578) 
3 6,934 30,678 

(15,909) 
732,184 3 9 5,542 

12,283 

15,275 
179,607 

$504,594 

(2,082) 
5023 12 

(3 3,8 7 7) 

17,771 
355,656 

(S,197) (24,408) (7,726) 

4,699 2,266 
23,057 62.266 

3 6,360 
559,871 

$ 13,765 $ 72,401 $ 1,638 $1,141,614 

(600) (1 6,326) - 
13,168 56,075 1,638 

(47,703) 
1,093,911 

( 1  8,112) (125,865) (27,298) (2 I 6,6 IO) 

5,285 6,804 297 
13,145 403,202 12,393 

48,5 64 
I ,Z 19,055 

The income (loss) fi-om operations for the WhoIesaIe Te~ecoiiimunications Seivices and Retail 
Telecoziiniunicatioizs Seivices business segments for fiscal 1998 includes their pro-rata portion of a $17.9 
iidlioii non-recurring expense for the write-off of in-process research and developiimit in coimection wit11 the 
acquisition of InterExchange, h c .  which was alIocated to acquired research and development. 

Revenue from custoiners located outside of the United States represented approxiliiately Z 1%, 13% and 17% 
of total revenue for the years elided July 3 1 , 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively, with no single foreign geographic 
area representing more than 10% of total revenues for any period presented. Revenues are attributed to countries 
based on the location of the customer. Long-lived assets held outside of the United States totaled apyroxiniately 
$24.9 inillion and $24.4 inillion as of July 3 3 ,  1999 and 2000, respectively. 

12. Additional Financial Information 

carriers at July 3 1, I999 and 2000, respectively. 
Trade accounts payable includes approximately $57,336,000 and $96,2 15,000 due to Telecoiiiinuiiication 
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13. Acquisitions 
In November 1997, the Company completed the acquisition of t 00% of the issued and outstanding coimnon 

stock of Rock Enterprises, Inc. (LCRoclc”), a foimer consultant of the Company, for an aggregate purchase price of 
$5,3 12,500. The purchase piice consists of 625,000 shares of the Company’s c o i n ”  stock. The Coiiipany 
issued 3 12,500 of such shares on the closing date of tlie acquisition in November 1997. The reinailling shares 
were issued in May 1998. The Company is accounting for- such acquisition using the purchase method. Since 
Rock had no assets or liabilities, the entire purchase price lias been allocated to goodwill. The operations of Rock 
have been iiicfuded in the statement of operations since the date of the acquisition. 

In May 1998, tlie Company completed the acquisition of 5 1 % of the issued and outstaiiding stock of Union 
Telecard Alliance, Inc. (“Union”), a fonner debit card reseller of the Company for an aggregate purchase price of 
$2,650,000. The purchase price consisted of 100,000 shares of the Coinpany’s coimon stock. Pursuant to the 
acquisitioii agreement, the Company issued an additional 100,000 shares of the Company’s coimiion stock valued 
at $2,850,000 in April 1999. Such issuance was the result of Union’s net income exceeding $2.4 niillion in tlie 
one year period following the completion of the acquisition. There is no other contingent consideration. Tlie 
Company accounted for the acquisition using the purchase method and consolidates its 5 1 % interest in Union. 
Tlie operations of Union have been included in the statellielit of operations since the date of the acquisition. 
Union had no assets or liabilities. The Company acquired Union as it gave IDT the zbility to immediately enter 
the rapidly growing market for prepaid calling cards geared to specific ethnic markets. The initial entry into this 
market allowed the Company to becoiiie a significant participant in tlie mal-let and be doininant in cei-tain 
segments. Therefore, the entire purchase price has been allocated to goodwill. 

In May 1998, the Company coinpleted the acquisitioii of InterExchange, Inc., a foimer debit card service 
platform provider of the Company, for an aggregate purchase price of $129,206,000. The purchase price coiisists 
of $20,000,000 in cash, 3,242,323 shares of the Coiiipany’s conimoii stock and $588,000 in professional fees 
incurred in connection with the acquisition. The coimon stock was valued based on a piice per share of $33.50, 
which is the average price of the Company’s common stock a few days before and after the acquisition was 
announced. The Coiiipaiiy is accounting for such acquisition using the purchase method. 

The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assunled from IiiterExclzange at the date of acquisition is 
suimnarized as follows: 

Cuirent assets..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 36,000 

Cui-rent liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (7,3 5 7 , 000) 

Core technology. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21,200,000 
Acquired research and development. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  17,900,000 
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  95,988,000 
Defei-red Tax Liability on identifiable intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (9,400,000) 

$129,206,000 

Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,539,000 

Assembled workforce . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,3 00,000 

In connection with the acquisition of InterExchange, Inc., the Company iiznediately expensed the amount 
allocated to in-process research and development of $17.9 million in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, as technological feasibility had not been established and the technology had no alteiiiative 
fiiture use as of the date of the acquisition. 

CTM Broclziire Display, hie. Acquisition 
On June 30, 2000, the Company acquired a 100% interest in CTM Brochure Display, Inc. (“CTM”), a 

brochure distribution Company, for an aggregate purchase price of approxiinately $23,800,000. The purchase 
price consisted primalily of $5.1 inillion in cash, $16.9 million in notes payable to the foniier owners and the 
liquidation of $1,400,000 of CTM’s bank debt. In connection with the transaction, the Company recorded 
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goodwill of $23,000,000 which is being ainoitized over 20 years and tax liabilities of $3,OOO,OOO. The acquisition 
was accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly, the net assets and results of operations of the acquired business 
have been included in the consolidated financial stateinelits fioiii the date of acquisition. 

ID TfWeshnirztech Joint Yen tzzrre 
In September 1999, a subsidiaiy of the Company entered into an agreement to foiin a joint venture with 

Westmintech Company, L.L.C., to provide high speed voice and data sehrices, including without limitation local 
and long distance telephone sei-vice (dedicated and I+>, cable television service (cable and/or fiber optic), on line 
service with direct Inteinet access and Intemet access services and various other Internet services @SLY 
dedicated and dial up) and various other Internet seivices and other technology to the tenants of commercial and 
residential properties worldwide. The Company consolidates its 75% ownership interest in the joint venture. 

Aplio A cq ZI is itio 11 
On July 7,2000, Net2Phone acquired all of the outstanding capita1 stock of Aplio, S.A (“Aplio’’) a coiiipany 

located in France with technology that enables VoIP devices. Consideration consisted of $2.9 million in cash at 
closing mid 582,749 shares of Net2Phone’s comiion stock whicli were valued at $35.50 per share, promissory 
notes aggregating $6.5 million, $1.1 million in acquisition related costs and $4.8 million in cash to be paid within 
eighteen nionths of the closing of the transaction. In addition, Net2Phone is required to pay two contingent cash 
payments of $2,778,230 on July 7, 2001 aiid July 7, 2002. These contingent payments are dependent on ceitaiii 
individuals continuing their eiiiploymeiit with Net2Plione and will be recorded as expense if and when they 
become due. 

Net2Phone may also be required to repurchase the sham of common stock issued to the selling shareholders 
on or prior to Jaiiuaiy 31, 2002 for a per share purchase price of $36.947. 

As collateral for the $4.8 iiillioii payment, Net2Phoiie has placed 152,390 shares of its coiimioii stock iii 
escrow. The aggregate purchase piice of $36.0 iiiillioii plus the fair value of net liabilities assumed of $2.7 
inillioii totaled approximateIy $38.7 inillion which was preliminarily allocated as follows: approximately $17.5 
inillioii to goodwill, $1 3.9 iiiillioii to technology, $2.3 inillion to trademark, $4.5 iiiillioii to patents and $500,000 
to workforce. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly, the net assets aiid results of 
operations of the acquired business have been included in the coiisolidated frnaiicial statements fi-om July 7,2000, 
the date of acquisition. 

14. Subsequent Events 
AT&T tr-ansaction 

On March 25, 2000, IDT entered into an agreement with AT&T Corporation (“AT&T”) which closed on 
August 11, 2000 pursuant to which IDT sold AT&T 14.9 ~iiiIlioii shares of Class A Coimiion Stock, par value 
$0.01 per share, of Net2Phone (“Class A Stock”), at a price of $75 per share. In addition, AT&T purchased four 
inillion newly-issued shares of Class A Stock froin Net2Phone at a price of $75 per share. FollDwing these 
transactions, AT&T had a 39% voting stake and a 32% economic stake in Net2Plione for a total cadi investnieiit 
of approximately $1.4 billion. These transactions reduce IDT’s voting stake in NetZPhone fioin its current 56% to 
2 1 % aiid its economic stake in Net2Phone froin its cuirent 45% to 17%. Accordingly, IDT has decoiisolidated 
NetZPhone effective August 11, 2000 and accounts for it using the equity method. In addition, AT$T and IDT 
have reached an agreement that gives AT&T the right of first refusal to purchase IDT’s remaining stake of 10 
iiiilIion shares of Class A Stock. If this right is exercised, AT&T will have a 60% voting interest and a 49% 
econoinic interest in Net2Phone. AT&T will also receive the option to convei-t IDT’s remaining 10 injllion shares 
of Class A Stock into shares of Corninon Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of Net2Phone (“Coiivnoii Stock”). 
Shares of Class A Stock have two votes per share, while shares of Coiniiioii Stock have one vote per share. 
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On March 3, 2000, AT&T entered into an agreement with IDT granting IDT an option, for a period of 180 
days, to cause AT&T to purchase 2,040,817 shares of Class I3 Common Stock of IDT, at a price of $36.75 per 
share for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $75,000,000. The option is exercisable froin April 2,2000 
until the earlier of (i) 180 days following March 3, 2000 and (ii) the date IDT sells at least 12,500,000 shares of 
Class A Stock, $0.01 par value, of Net2Phone to a current holder of shares of such Class A Stock of Net2Phone. 
The Class I3 Common Stock will carry 1/10 of a vote per share. For a period of 18 months, if AT&T buys shares 
of Class A Stock froin another holder of shares of Class A Stock, IDT will have the option to cause AT&T to 
purchase up to 5 million additional shares of its Class A Stock on the same tenns and condjtions. AT&T and IDT 
have agreed to enter into various definitive commercial arrangements for a period of three years. AT&T has the 
right to nominate three members to the Board of Directors of Net2Plione. Until August I ,  2003 AT&T and IDT 
will agree to vote their shares in favor of mutually acceptable noininees to the Board of Directors of Net2Phoiie. 
Net2Phone also granted each of AT&T and IDT a license to use NetZPhone's technologies in tlieir own 
communications services. 

Effective August 1 I ,  2000 IDT will no longer consolidate Net2Phone. Sumnary financial information for 
NeQPhone as of July 31, 2000 is as follow: 

Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 156,023,000 
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 4 1  1,728,000 
Working Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 106,372,000 
Revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 72,401,000 
Operating loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $( 12 8,5 12,694) 

15. Earnings Per Share 
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted eaiiiings per share: 

Year ended July 31 

Numerat or: 
Net Loss 
Subsidiary prefeired stock dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net Loss available for common stockholders . . . . . . . .  

Denominator: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Weighted average shares outstanding-basic . . . . . . . .  
Effect of stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted. . . . . . .  
Basic earnings (loss) per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted earnings (loss) per share. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 

23 0,850,036 
- 

230,850,036 

34,966,400 
2,652,952 

37.619.35 1 

1999 

(1 8,203,546) 
(26,29 7,42 6) 
44,500,972 

~ ~~ ~ 

33,529,930 

3 3,529,930 

- 

$6.60 
$6.14 

($1 33) 
($1 -33) 

1998 

(969,372) 

(969,372) 

- 

283 7 1,42 1 
I 

28,571,42 1 

($0.03) 
($0.03) 

The following securities have been excluded from the dilutive per share computation as they are antidilutive: 

Year ended July 31 
ZOO0 1999 1998 

Stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  449,500 3,587,966 3,214,635 
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16. Net2Phone subsidiary stock sales 
During the course of the year ended July 3 1, 2000, the Cornpany recognized approximately $350.3 million 

in gains, included in gain OR sales of subsidiary stock, related to Net2Phone subsidiary stock sales as follows: 

On August 3, 1999, NeQPhone, h c .  a majority owned subsidiary, completed an initial public offering of 
6,210,000 sham of its c o m o n  stock at a price of $15 per share, resulting in net proceeds of approximately $85.3 
million. Upon completion of the initial public offering, 3,140,000 shares of Net2Phone Series A Preferred Stock 
were converted into 9,420,000 shares of Net2Phone Class A Stock. As a result of the initial public offering and 
concurrent conversion of Series A Stock to Class A Stock, IDT’s ownership percentage in Net2Phone decreased 
from 90.0% to approximately 56.2%. This resulted in the Company recording a gain on the sale of stock by a 
subsidiary of approximately $65.5 million. Deferred taxes of $26.2 million have been provided on the gain. 

A $76.8 nlillion pre-tax gain was recobpized in December 1999 (second quarter of fiscal 2000) in contlection 
with Net2Phone’s secondaiy offering of 6.3 million shares of its coinmon stock, at a price of $55.00 per share for 
net proceeds to Net2Phone of approximately $177.4 million. Deferred taxes of approximately $30.7 million have 
been provided for this gain. 

A $105.8 million pre-tax gab  was reco,gnized in December 1999 (second quarter of fiscal 2000) in 
connection with IDT’s saIe of 2,200,000 shares of common stock of  Net2Phone in Net2Phone’s secondary, at a 
price of $55.00 per sliare for net proceeds of approxiinatdy $1 15.4 million. IDT’s ownership interest before and 
after this transaction and the secondary (which occurred at‘ the same time) was 56.24% and 47.97%, respectiveiy. 

A $102.3 inillion pretax gain was recognized in fiscal 2000 in connection with Net2Phone’s exchange of its 
stock for Yahoo coiixnoii stock and the exercise of stock options. 
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Description 

1998 

Balance at 
Beginning 
of Period 

Reserves deducted from accounts receivable: 

1999 
Reserves deducted froin accounts receivable: 

2000 
Reserves deducted from accounts receivable: 

Allowaiice for doubtful accounts. . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,190,000 

Allowance for doubtful accounts. . . . . . . . . . . . . $6,255,000 

Allowance for doubtful accounts. . . . . . . . . . . . . $7,643,000 

Additions 
Charged t o  Balance 
Costs and at End 
Expenses Deduction(1) of Period 

$ 6,190,000 $(3,125,000) $ 6,255,000 

$ 5,558,000 $(4,170,000) $ 7,643,000 

$20,1 54,000 $( 1,025,000) $26,77 1,000 

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
IDT Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying consoIidated balance sheets of IDT Corporation (the “Company”) as of 
July 3 1, 2000 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2002. Our audits also included the financial 
statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 14(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and 
schedule based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are fiee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all inaterial respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the Company at July 31, 2000 and 2001 and the consolidated results of its 
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 3 1, 2001, in confonnity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in OUT opinion, the related financial statement 
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements talcen as a whole, presents fairly in all 
material respects the information set forth therein. 

ERNST & YOUNG LLP 

New York, New York 
October 23, 200 1 
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D T  CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SWEETS 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Marketable securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 

approximately $26. 771 at July 31, 2000 and $22. 508 at July 31, 2001 . . 
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Property. plant and equipment. net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Goodwill and other intangibles. net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Marketable securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
LLABILITES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Trade accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Notes payable-current poition . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capital 1 e as e ob 1 ig ati om-current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Notes payable-long-term portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
C apit a1 lease o blig at i ons-1 ong-t e m  poiti on . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Commitments and contingencies 
Stockholders’ equity: 

Preferred stock, $.O 1 par value; authorized shares4 0,000, 000; no shares 

Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized shares-lOO,OOO, 000. 
issued . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

25,959, 256 and 22,792, 789 shares issued and outstanding in 2000 and 
200 1, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2001, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

35,929, 489 and 39,291, 411 shares issued and outstanding in 2000 and 
2001, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Loans to stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Treasury stock, at cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accumulated other comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Class A common stock, $.01 par value; authorized shares-35,000, 000. 
9,970, 233 and 9,816, 988 shares issued and outstanding in 2000 and 

Class B common stock, $.O 1 par value; authorized shares-1 00,000, 000. 

July 31 
2000 2001 

(In thousands. except share data) 

$ 162. 879 $1.091. 071 
230. 160 3. 489 

160. 995 
87. 859 

641. 893 
225. 63 8 
162. 233 
132. 278 
29. 3 18 
27. 695 

$1.219. 055 

$ 161. 888 
36. 436 
48. 572 
22. 604 
I 3. 540 
10. 923 

293. 963 
168. 772 
12. 174 
43. 940 

709 
519. 558 
23 1. 309 

1 16. 759 
32. 413 

1.243. 732 
224. 042 
197. 804 

60. 732 
155. 028 

$1.881. 338 

$ 163. 313 
54. 893 
71. 387 
2. 657 

18. 270 
17. 819 

328. 339 
3 90. 914 

380 
49. 799 
14. 502 

783. 934 
21. 419 

. 

260 225 

100 98 

359 
(25 1) 

370. 646 
. 

(9 2. 65 3) 
189. 727 
468. 188 

$1.219. 055 

393 
(2511 

494. 093 
(138. 087) 

(2. 575) 
722. 086 

1.075.985 
$138 1. 338 

See accompanying notes . 
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IDT CORPORATION 

CONSOLJBATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Costs and expenses: 

Direct cost of revenues . . . . . , . . . . . , . , . . , , . , . . . . . . . 
Selling, general and administrative. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Depreciation and amortization , , , . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . 
Impairment charges . . . . . . . . , , . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . , 
Total costs and expenses . , . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Loss from operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . 
Interest income (expense), net , . . . . , , . . . . . . . . . , , . , . , . . 
Equityloss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain on sales of subsidiary stock. . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . , , . 
-Other income (expense). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Income (loss) before income taxes, ininority interests and 

extraordinary i t e m . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . , , 
Provision for income taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . , 
Income (loss) before extraordinary item. . . . . . . , . . . . . . , . . 
Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt, net of income taxes. 
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - , , . 
Subsidiary redeemable preferred stock dividends . . . . . . . , . . 
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders. . - . . . 
Net income (loss) per share: 
Net income (loss) afh-ibutable to common stockholders 
before extraordinary item: 

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I . . . . . . . . , . , . , 

Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt, net of income taxes: 
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . , . . 

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . 

Weighted-average number of shares used in calculation of net 

Basic . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders: 

income (loss) per share: 

Year Ended July 31 
1999 2000 2001 

(In thousands, except per share data) 

$732,184 $1,093,912 $1,230,950 

575,050 9 18,257 1,066,845 
128,500 343,702 337,107 
36,360 48,564 60,35 1 

- 199,357 

- -  

- 

73 9,9 IO 1,3 10,523 1,663,660 - 
(7,726) (2 16,611) (432,710) 
t 1,228) 7,23 1 52,768 
- (6,289) (75 , 066) 
- 350,344 1,037,726 

(2,035) 258,2 18 164,762 

(10,989) 392,893 747,480 
7,253 2 18,403 209,395 

(3,308) (59,336) 5,726 
(14,934) 23 3,826 532,359 
(3,2701, (2 7 9 7 6 )  

(1 8,204) 230,850 532,359 
26,297 I - 

$(44,501) $ 230,850 $ 532,359 

- 

$ (0.61) $ 3.34 $ 7.79 
$ (0.61) $ 3.11 $ 7.12 

$ (0.05) $ (0.04) $ 1 

$ (0.05) $ (0.04) $ - 

$ (0.66) $ 3.30 $ 7.79 
$ (0.66) $ 3.07 $ 7.72 

67,060 
67,060 

69,933 
75,239 

68,301 
74,786 

See accompaiiying notes. 
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IDT CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
(In thousands, except share data) 

Balance at July 31, 1998. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercise of stock options. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
h o m e  tax benefit froin stock options exercised. . . . . .  
Conversion of Class A stock to coinmon stock. . . . . . .  
Issuance of common stock in connection with business 

Exercise of warrants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Costs associated with stock registration. . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net loss for the year ended July 31, 1999 . . . . . . . . . .  

Balance at July 3 1, 1999. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercise of stock options. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income tax benefit from stock options exercised. . . . . .  
Conversion of Class A stock to co~nmon stock. . . . . . .  
Exercise of warrants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Change in unrealized gain {loss) in available for sale 

securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Repurchase of common stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Modification of stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Stock options given to partnership . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

acquisitions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Foreign currency transIation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net income for the year ended July 31, 2000. . . . . . . .  

Balance at July 3 1, 2000. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercise of stock options. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income tax benefit fiom stock options exercised. . . . . .  
Conversion of CIass A stock to common stock. . . . . . .  
Issuance of stock options. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Modification of stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of Class E common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Change in unrealized gain (loss) in available for sale 

securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Foreign currency bandation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . .  
Repurchase of common stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net income for the year ended July 3 1, 2001 . . . . . . . .  

Balance at July 3 1,200 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Common Stock 
Shares Amount 

22,848,866 
696,840 

225,910 
I 

100,000 
11 1,238 

- 
- 

23,982,854 
1,3 10,700 

59,525 
19,963 

3,728,949 

I 

I 

- 
(3,142,735) 

- 
- 
- 

25,959,256 
698,45 I 

153,245 
- 

- 
- 
- 

- 
- 

(4,019,163) 
- 

22,791,789 $228 - - 

Class A Stock 
Shares Amount -___ 

10,255,668 
- 
- 

(225,910) 

- 
- 
- 
- 

10,029,75 8 
- 
- 

(59,525) 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

9,970,233 
- 
- 

(153,245) 
- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
- 

9,816,988 

Class E Stock 

Shares Amount -- 
33,104,534 

696,840 
- 
- 

I00,000 
111,238 

- 
- 

34,012,612 
1,3 10,700 
I 

- 
19,963 

3,728,949 

- 
- 

(3,142,735) 
- 
- 
- 

35,929,489 
343,000 

- 
- 
- 
- 

7,038,085 

- 
- 

(4,O 19,163) 
- 

39,291,411 

$330 
7 
- 
- 

1 
1 
I 

- 

$393 - - 

Accumulated 
Additional Other 

Paid-In Treasury Comprehensive 
Capital Stock Income -- 

$305,049 $ - $ -  
4,068 - - 
4,258 - - 

(94,044) 

[ 101,822) - - 

- - 
- 1,391 

98 5 - - 
916 - 

- 230,850 

138,197 

- 

- 
- 

IC__- - 
370,646 I (92,653) 

6,872 - - 
2,676 - - 

2,000 - - 
3,082 I - 

106,497 - - 

- - - 

- 89,148 
930 

- 532,359 

- 
- - 

2,320 (1 38,087) - 
- 

Retained Total 
Earnings StockhoIders’ 

.- (Deficit) Equity 

$(22,919) $ 282,791 
- 3,83 1 
- 4,258 

- 2,850 
- 924 

(18,204) (18,204) 
(41,123) 276,327 
- 14,534 
- 10,346 

( 123) - 
-- 

- - 
117 

128,648 
I 

- 

- (94,044) 
- 1,391 
- (1 0 1,8&2) 

985 
916 

230,850 230,850 

- 
- 

-- 
189,727 468,188 
- 6,883 
- 2,676 
- - 
- 2,000 

3 ,O 82 
- 106,568 
- 

- 89,148 
930 

- (135,849) 
532,359 532,359 

- 

622,437 

$ 494,093 $(138,087) $ (2,575) 
-- ~ 

-- - -- ~ 

-- 
$722,086 $1,075,985 -- 
__I- 

See accompanying notes. 
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IDT CORPORATION 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Operating activities 
Net income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Impairment charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Minority interests. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Extraordinary loss on retirement of debt before taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred tax liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of common stock to charitable foundation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net realized (gams)Aosses from sales of marketable securities and investments. , . 

Non-cash compensation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Gain on sales of subsidiary stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Trade accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Trade accounts payable and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash provided by (used in) operatmg activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investing activities 

Purchases of property, plant and equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Purchase of trademark. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of notes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investments and acquisitions, net of cash acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Collection of notes receivable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sales of marketable securities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net purchases of marketable securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net proceeds fiom sales of subsidiary stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash provided by (used in) invemng activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Financing activities 
Proceeds from issuance of Series A prefened stock and warrants by Net2Phone. , . . 

Proceeds fioni exercise of warrants for Net2Phone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Payment of debt issuance costs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Equityloss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Gain on TyCom settlement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Proceeds from exercise of stock options foi Net2Phone 

Distributioiis to minority shareholder . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds fiom borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Repayments of capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Repayments of borrowings. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from sale of coimon stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from offerings of coinmon stock by Net2Phone. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Collection of loans to stockholders by Net’Phone. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Payments to repurchase coinmon stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Proceeds from exercise of warrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds fioni exercise of stock optrons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Proceeds from minority investment in subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from issuance of stock options. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net increase (decrease) in cash. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash and cash equivalents at begiiuiing of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Year Ended July 31 
1999 2000 2001 

(in tho us ands) 

$ (18,204) 

- 
15,734 
- 
I 

168,l OS) 
(24,214) 

4.035 
(6,771) 

41,976 
(1 8,297) 

(43,098) 
(5,000) 

(13,423) 
(10,735) 
14,040 

(17,561) 

(80,7 7 7) 

- 

- 

29,900 
1,334 

43 8 
14,475) 
(6,079) 

1 15,945 
924 

7,967 
(5,349) 

(1 03,912) 
- 

36,693 
(62,3 8 1) 
115,284 

$ 52,903 

$ 230,850 

48,564 

4,870 
(59,336) 
2 16,903 

(261,025) 
6,289 

42,9 17 

(350,344) 

- 

- 

- 

(52,643) 
(40,718) 
12,524 
34.026 
90,053 

(77,070) 

(101,192) 
- 
- 

(38,803) 
9,524 
- 

(7,059) 
11 5,434 
(22,096) 

- 
8,172 
- 
- 

(3,179) 
13,898 

1 IS 
14,534 
(9,833) 

( I  08,146) 
128,648. 
261,189 

623 
5,000 

(1 01,882) 
- 

209.1 42 
109,976 
52,903 

$ 162,879 

$ 532,359 

60,351 
199,357 

5,726 
204,188 

26,378 
148,724 
75,066 
3,082 

(3 13,486) 
(1,037,726) 

- 

36,029 
26,941 

(12,707) 
7,27 1 

44,675 
26,228 

(106,5 13) 

(12,089) 
(73,722) 

164,052 

1,042.1 13 
1,0 13,841 

- 

- 

- 

- 
- 
I 

- 
(1  8,908) 
I 

- 
6,883 

(14,736) 
(2 6,05 4) 
74,787 
- 

- 
2,000 

( I  35,849) 
(1 11,877) 
928,192 
163.879 

$ 1,091,071 

Supplemental disclosure of cash Aow information 
Cash payments made for interest $ 13,383 $ 10,074 $ 7,997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash payments made for income taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 235 $ 1,050 $ 5,963 

Purchase of fixed assets by capital lease . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  s 11,899 $ 45,541 s 759 
Supplemental schedule of noncash activities 

See accoinpanying notes 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
July 31, 2001 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Description of Business 

IDT Corporation (“IDT” or the “Company”) is a multinational telecommunications carrier that provides a 
broad range of services to its retail and whoIesale customers worldwide. The Company mainly provides its 
customers with integrated international and domestic long distance, and prepaid calling cards. 

Until August 2000, the Company also provided Intemet telephony services through its majority owned 
subsidiary Net2Phone, Inc. (“Net2Phone”). On August 11,2000, the Company completed the sale of 14.9 miEIion 
shares of its holdings of Net2Phone’s Class A C o m o n  Stock, at a price of $75 per share to ITelTech, LLC 
(“ITelTech”), a Delaware limited liability company controlled by AT&T Corporation (“AT&T”). In addition, 
ITeITech purchased four million newly-issued shares of Class A Common Stock from Net2Phone at a price of 
$75 per share. These transactions reduced tlie voting stake of IDT in Net2Phone from approximately 56% to 2 f % 
and its economic stake in Net2Phone from approximately 45% to 1696. In recognition of these transactions, the 
Company recorded a gain on sales of subsidiary stock of $1.038 billion during the year ended July 3 1,200 1 , and 
has deconsolidated Net2Phone effective August 1 1,2000. Accordingly, the Company accounts for its investment 
in Net2Phone using the equity method. 

As discussed h footnote 15, “Subsequent Events”, on October 23, 2001, IDT, Liberty Media Group 
(“Liberty Media”) and AT&T formed a limited liability coinpany (“LLC”), which through a series of 
transactions among IDT, Liberty Media and ATBLT now holds an aggregate of 28.9 million shares of 
Net2Plione’s Class A common stock, representing approximately 50% of Net2Phone’s outstanding capital stock. 
Because the LLC holds Class A c o m o n  stock with two votes per share, the LLC has approximately 64% of the 
shareholder voting power in Net2Phone. IDT holds the controlling membership interest in the LLC. 

On May 4, 2001, the Company declared a stock dividend of one share of Class B common stock for every 
one share of cornm~n stock, Class A common stock and Class B common stock. IDT distributed the dividend 
shares on May 3 1,200 1 to shareholders of record on May 14,2001. The stock dividend has been accounted for as 
a stock split and all references to the number of conmon shares, per common share amounts and stock options 
have been restated to give retroactive effect to the stock dividend for all periods presented. The Class B c o m m  
stock commenced trading on the New York Stock Exchange on June 1,200 1 under the ticker symbol “IDT B”. 

Basis of Consolidation and Accounting for Investments 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of IDT and all companies in which IDT has a 
controlling voting interest (“subsidiaries”), as if IDT and its subsidiaries were a single company. Significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions between the consolidated companies have been eliminated, 

Investments in companies in which IDT has significant influence, but less than a controlling voting interest, 
are accounted for using the equity method. Investments in companies in which IDT does not have a controlling 
interest or an ownership and voting interest so large as to exert significant influence are accounted for at market 
value if the investments are publicly traded and there are no resale restrictions, or at cost, if the sale of a publicly- 
traded investment is restricted or if the investment is not publicly traded. 

The effect of any changes in IDT’s ownership interests resulting from tlie issuance of equity capital by 
consolidated subsidiaries or equity investees to unaffiliated parties is included in gain on sales of subsidiary stock. 

Reclass$cations 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year’s presentation. 

F-7 



IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
July 31,2001 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confomiity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States requires management tu make estimates and assumptibns that affect the mounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 

Telecommunication services, Internet telephony services, Internet subscription services, and prepaid calling 
card revenues are recognized as services are provided. Equipment sales are recognized when installation is 
completed. Prepayments for services are deferred and recogized as revenue as the sei-vices are provided. 

Sales of equipinent with software necessary to provide the Company’s services are accounted for in 
accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of Position 97-2, Software 
Revenue Recognition. Revenue on such sales is recognized when such products are delivered, collection of 
payments are assured and there are no significant future obligations. 

Direct Cost of Revenue 

Direct cost of revenue consists pi-imarily of telecoimunication costs, connectivity costs and the cost of 
equipment sold to customers. Direct cost of revenue excludes depreciation and amortization. 

Property, Plant and Equipnzeizt 

Equipment, buildings, fiuniture and fixtures are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets, which range fi-om thee to thii-ty years, Leasehold improvements are 
depreciated using the straight line method over the term of their lease or their estimated useful lives, whichever is 
shorter. Computer software is amortized over a period not exceeding five years, 

Subscriber Acquisition Costs and Advertising 

Subscriber acquisition costs including sales commissions, liceiise fees and production and shipment of 
starter packages are expensed as incurred. 

The Company expenses the costs of advertising as incurred. Typically, Net2Phone purchases banner 
advertising on other companies’ web sites pursuant to contracts that have one to three year tenns and may include 
the guarantee of (i) a minimum number of iixpressions, (ii) the number of times that an advertisement appears in 
pages displayed to users of the web site, or (iii) a minimum amount of revenue that will be recognized by 
NetZPhone from customers directed to NetZPhone’s web site as a direct result of the advertisement. Net2Phone 
recognizes banner advertising expense with respect to such advertising ratably over the period in which the 
advertisement is displayed. In addition, some agreements require. additional payments as additioiial impressions 
are delivered. Thus, additioiial payments are expensed when the impressions are delivered. 

In one case, Net2Phone entered into an agreement with no specified tenn of years. In this case, the Company 
amortizes as expense the Iesser of (i) the limber of iinpressioiis to date/minimum guaranteed impressions, or (ii) 
revenue to datelniiniinum guaranteed revenue as a percentage of the total payments. 

For the years ended July 3 1, 1999, 2000 and 200 1, advertising expense totaled approximately $10,454,000, 
$46,722,000 and $17,07 1,000, respectively. 

During the year ended July 31, 2000, the Company incuired approximately $28,000,000 of costs to 
teiininate advertising arrangements. These termination costs are included in selling, general and adniinistrative 
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 
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I[DT CORE’ORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
July 31, 2001 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 
Software Developwren t Costs 

Costs for the internal development of new software products and substantial enhancements to existing 
software products are expensed as incurred until technological feasibility has been established, at which time any 
additional costs are capitalized. For the years ended July 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, research and development 
costs totaled approximately $757,000, $4,692,000 and $2,484,000, respectively. 

Cupitulized Internal Use Software Costs 

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurred in connection with developing or obtaining internal use 
software. These costs consist of payments made to third parties and the salaries of employees working on such 
software development. For the years ended July 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, the Company has capitalized 
$4,065,000, $8,593,000 and $2,463,000, respectively, of intemal use software costs as computer software. 

Long-Lived Assets 

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 121, Accounting for the 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, the Company reviews its long- 
lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The analysis of the recoverability utilizes 
undiscounted cash flows. The measurement of the loss, if any, will be calculated as the amount by which the 
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value. 

Cush and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost which approximates market value. 
At July 3 1,2000 and 2001, the Company had 66% and 89%, respectively, of its cash and cash equivalents in three 
financ i a1 institutions . 

Marketable Securities 
Marketable securities consist of equity securities, US. Government Agency Obligations and commercial 

paper. Certain debt securities held by Net2Phone, with original maturities of greater than three months at the time 
of purchase are classified as held to maturity and are carried at amortized cost. Interest on these secwities is 
included in interest income as earned. 

During fiscal 2000, IDT sold approximately $55,000,000 of held-to-maturity securities prior to their 
maturity dates and recorded a loss of approximately $1,200,000. The securities were sold to fund certain 
transactions. In connection with these sales, marketable securities with a cost basis of approximately $22,000,000 
were reclassified as available-for-sale and through July 3 1, 2000, unrealized losses of approximately $850,000 
were included in accumulated other comprehensive income. 

Goodwill and Other Intangibles 

Goodwill is amortized over 5 to 20 years using the straight-line method. Costs associated with obtaining the 
right to use trademarks and patents owned by third parties are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the trademark licenses and patents. Other intangible assets consist of core programming 
technology and assembled workforce which are amortized over 32 to 35 months, and 48 to 54 months, 
respectively. The Company systematically reviews the recoverability of its acquired intangible assets for each 
acquired entity to determine whether an impairment has occurred. Upon determination that the carrying value of 
acquired intangible assets will not be recovered based on the undiscounted future cash flows of the acquired 
business, the carrying value of such acquired intangible assets would be considered impaired- and wouId be 
reduced by a charge to operations in the amount that the carrying value exceeds the fair value. 
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IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
July 31, 2001 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 
Irzcume Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109, 
Accounting for Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on 
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. 

Earnings (Loss) Per. Share 

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) afaibutable to comnon 
stockholders by the weighted-average number of c u m o n  shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 
(loss) per share adjusts basic earnings (Ioss) per share for the effects of convertible securities, stock options, 
warrants and other potentially dilutive fmancial instruments, only in the periods in whch such effect is dilutive. 

Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrutions 

Financial instruments that potentially subject tlie Company to coiicentration of credit risk consist principally 
of cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and trade accounts receivables. Concentration of credit risk with 
respect to trade accounts receivable is limited due to the large number of customers coinprising the Company’s 
customer base. 

The Company is subject to risks associated with its international operations, iiicluding changes in exchange 

Management regularly monitors the creditworthiness of its domestic and inteiiational customers and 

rates, difficulty in trade accounts receivable collection and longer payment cycles. 

believes that it has adequately provided for any exposure to potential credit losses, 

Fuir Value of Financial Instruments 

The estimated fair value of financial instruments has been determined using available market infonnation or 
other appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market 
data to develop estimates of fair value. Consequently, the estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts 
that could be realized or would be paid in a current market exchange. At July 3 1,2001, the book carrying value of 
the Company’s notes receivable and notes payable approxinzates fair value. 

Stock Based Coiizperzsation 

The Company accounts for stock options issued to employees using the intrinsic value method prescribed in 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related 
interpretations. Compensation expense for stock options issued to employees is measured as the excess of the 
quoted market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant over the amount employees must pay to acquire 
the stock. 

The Company applies the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation, with respect to stock options issued to the Company’s employees. 

Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No.142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2001, with early adoption pei-rnitted for companies with fiscal years 
beginning afler March 15, 2001. Under tlie new rules, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite 
lives will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with the 
Statements. Other intangible assets wilI continue to be amortized over their useful lives. 

The Company has chosen to earIy adopt the new rules on accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets 
and apply them beginning in the first quartel’ of fiscal 2002. The Company is cui-rently performing the required 
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IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
July 31, 2001 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 
impailment tests of goodwill and indefmite lived intangible assets as of August 1, 200 1. Although the tests have 
not yet been finalized, preliminary indications are that the Company will record a significant impairment charge 
on its goodwill in the first quarter of fiscal 2002. The impaiment charge will be recorded as a cumulative effect 
adjustment of a change in accounting principle. 

2. Marketable Securities 

The following is a summary of marketable securities as of July 3 1, 2001 : 

Cost 

Short-term 
Available-for-sale securities: 

U.S. Government Agency Obligations . . . .  $ 1,150 

$ 7,468 
Equity securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,3 18 

Gross Gross 
Unrealized Unrealized 

Gains Losses Fair Value 
(In thousands) 

$ -  $ (33) $ 1,117 
- (3,946) 2,372 

$ -  ($3,979) $ 3,489 

The following is a surmnary of marketable securities as of July 3 1, 2000: 

Cost 

Short-term 
Held-tomaturity securities: 

U.S. Government Agency Obligations . . , . 
Commercial paper . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Available-for-sale securities: 
U.S. Government Agency Obligations . . , . 
Terra common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Long-term 
Held-to-maturity securities: 

U S .  Government Agency Obligations . , . . 
Commercial paper . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Available-for-sale securities: 
WebEx coimon stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Yahoo! Inc. coinmon stock . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ 9,500 
49,642 
59,142 

23,097 
147,921 
171,018 

5,000 
17,943 
22,943 

5,332 
104.003 

$109,33 5 

Gross Gross 
Unrealized Unrealized 

Gains Losses Fair Value 
(In thousands) 

$ 2  $ (13) $ 9,489 
- (45) 49,597 
2 ( 5 8 )  59,086 

- - 23,097 
- - 147,921 
- - 171,018 
- 
- 

- (21) 4,979 
- (3 8) 17,905 

(5 9) 22,s 84 - 

- 5,332 
I - 104,003 

$ -  $ -  $109,335 

- 

Proceeds and realized losses from the sale of available-for-sale securities for the year ended July 3 1, 2001 
amounted to approximately $164,O52,000 and $138,019,000, respectively. 

F-11 



IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCW STATEMENTS 
July 31, 2001 

2. Marketable Securities - (Continued) 
Terra Networks Tvansactiun 

In October 1999, IDT entered into a joint venture agreement with Terra Networks, S.A. (“Terra”) pursuant 
to which the two parties formed two Iirnited liability companies to-provide Internet services and products to 
customers in the United States. One company was formed to provide Inteinet access to customers and the other 
company was formed to develop and manage an Intemet portal that would provide content-based lntemet services. 
IDT’s 49% interest in the Internet access company was accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The 
equity method was used since IDT had significant influence, but less than a controlling voting interest. IDT’s 10% 
interest in the Internet portal company was accounted for at cost. The cost method was used since IDT did not 
have a controlling voting interest, or an ownership or voting interest so large as to exert significant influence, and 
the venture was not publicly traded. On April 30, 2000, the Company sold its interests in the two joint ventures 
for the right to receive 3,750,000 shares of Terra common stock. In connection with this transaction, the 
Company recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately $23 1,032,000 for the year ended July 3 1,2000. During the 
year ended July 31,2001, the Company sold 3,745,000 of its Terra shares and recognized a loss of approximately 
$129,200,000, which has been included as a component of “Other income,” 

3. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, pland and equipment consists of the following: 
July 31 

2000 2001 
(In thousands) 

Equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $238,767 $264,422 

Leasehold improvements. 11,918 16,930 

Land andbuilding 6,327 8,937 
299,852 3 16,274 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (74,214) (92,232) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Computer software 32,Z 15 10,192 

Furniture and fixtures 10,625 15,793 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Property, plant and equipment, net . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $225,638 $224,042 

Fixed assets under capital leases aggregate approximately $71,835,000 and $104,215,000 at July 31, 2000 
and 200 1, respectively. The accumulated amortization related to these assets under capital leases is 
approximately $17,756,000 and $35,361,000 at July 3 1, 2000 and 2001, respectively. 

4. Goodwill and Other Intangibles 

Goodwill and other intangibles consist of the folIowing: 
July 31 

2000 2001 
(In thousands) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $156,639 $197,863 GoodwiIl 
Assembled workforce 3,317 2,817 
Core technology and patents 35,100 42,523 

195,056 243,203 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Less accumulated amortization (32,823) (45,399) 
Goodwill and other intangibles, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $162,233 $197,804 

Effective Fiscal 2002, the Company intends to adopt SFAS No. 142. As a result, the Company will no longer 
amortize goodwill and other intangibles deemed to have indefinite lives, but will be subject to annual impaioiient 
tests. Assembled workforce will be subsumed into goodwill. 

. 
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IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
July 31, 2001 

5. Notes Payable 
Notes payable consists of the following: 

July 31 
2000 2001 

(In thousands) 

- -  

Promissorynote(A) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 4,768 $ 2,332 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - Promissory note (B) 16,942 

Promissorynote(C) 4,800 
Promissory note (C) 6,537 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Other 1,731 705 

Less notes payable-current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (22,604) (2,657) 
34,778 3,037 

Notes payable-Iong-term portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 12,174 $ 380 

(A) On May 6, 1999, the Company entered into a $7,800,000 promissory note with a financing company. The 
note is payable in 36 monthly installments commencing on June 1, 1999, and bears an adjustable interest 
rate indexed to the one month LIBOR rate. The promissory note is collateralized by certain equipment of the 
Company. 

(B) On June 30, 2000, the Company completed the acquisition of a 100% interest in CTM Brochure Display, 
Inc. (cCCTMy’)y a brochure distribution company. In connection with the acquisition, the Company issued 
promissory notes to the former shareholders in the aggregate amount of $16,942,000. The notes bear interest 
at the rate of 9.50% per annum. The principal balance on the notes, together with accrued interest, were 
repaid in full during the year ended July 31, 2001. 

(C) The promissory notes were issued in connection with Net2Phone’s Aplio acquisition and bore interest at an 
annual rate of 6.53%. The Company was required to pay $1,961,235 of the notes on Mach 3 1,2001 and the 
remaining principal balance of $4,576,215 plus all accrued and unpaid interest on January 31, 2002. In 
addition Net2Phone was required to pay the former Aplio shareholders $4,800,000 over 18 months from the 
date of sale. 

On May 10, 1999, the Company obtained a Senior Secured Credit Facility (“Credit Facility”) from a 
consortium of financial institutions. During the second quarter ended January 3 1 , 2000, the Company repaid all of 
the outstanding principal balance together with accrued interest. The Company recorded a pre-tax extraordinary 
loss in connection with the repayment of $4,870,000 during the year ended July 31, 2000. 

Annual future principal repayments of long-term debt for the five years subsequent to July 3 I, 200 1 consist 
of $2,657,000 due in fiscal 2002, and $380,000 due in fiscal 2006. 

F-13 



IDT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
July 31, 2001 

6. Income Taxes 
Significant compoiients of the Company’s defei-red tax assets and liabilities consists of the following: 

Julv 31 

Deferred tax assets: 
Unrealized losses on securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Bad debt reserve . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exercise of stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Charitable contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Deferred Revenue.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Unrecognized gain on securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gain on sales of subsidiasy stock 
Partnership . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Identifiable intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Defei-red tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 2001 ~ 

(In thousands) 

$ 34,484 $ 857 
5,33 1 3,980 . 
3,277 9,857 
4,500 4,500 
- 10,765 

289 8,992 
47,88 1 38,951 

(97,830) 
(92,4 13) 
(1 4,466) 

( 1 0,2 1 6) 
(2 16,653) 

$( 168,772) 

(1,72f3) 

(196,000) 
(1 00,3 13) 
(105,466) 

(1 6,074) 
- 

(3,583) 
(8’429) 

(429,865) 
$ (3 90,9 1 4) 

No valuation allowance on the net defeired tax assets has been estabIished as the realization of such net 

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following for the years ended July 3 1 : 

defei-red tax assets is considered to be more likely than not. 

1999 

Current: 
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 400 

400 

State and local and foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 

Deferred: 
Federa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,768 
State and local and foreign 995 

4,763 
$5,163 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 2001 
(in thousands) 

$ -  $ 6,600 
(395) 14,249 
(3 9 5 )  20,849 

175,191 150,997 

2 16,903 188,546 
$2 16,508 $209,395 

41,712 37,549 

The income statement classification of the provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following at 
July 3 1 : 

1999 2000 2001 
(in thousands) 

Income tax provision attributable to continuing operations . . $ 7,253 $218,403 $209,395 
. . . . . . . .  - Income tax benefit attributable to extraordinaiy loss (2,090) (1,895) 

$ 5,163 $216,508 $209,395 . 
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6.  Income Taxes - (Continued) 

taxes provided are as follows: 
The differences between income taxes expected at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and income 

1999 2000 2001 

Federal income tax at statutory rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(3,842) 
Foreign tax rate differential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Losses for which no benefit provided . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,110 
Nondeductible expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,226 
State and local and foreign income tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  647 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  22 

- 

(in thousands) 
$137,5 13 

32,703 
17,625 
28,612 

55 

- 
$26 1,618 

(99,563) 
19,141 
2,162 

26,037 

$ 5,163 $2 16,508 $209,395 

7. Stockholders’ Equity 

Common Stock, Class A Common Stock, and Class B Common Stuck 

The lights of holders of common stock, Class A common stock and Class B common stock are identical 
except for certain voting and conversion rights and restrictions on transferability. The holders of Class A common 
stock are entitled to three votes per share. The holders of Class B common stock are entitled to one-tenth of a vote 
per share, and the holders of common stock are entitled to one vote per share. Class A common stock is subject to 
certain limitations on transferability that do not apply to the common stock and Class B common stock. Each 
share of Class A common stock may be converted into one share of cornmon stock, at any time at the option of 
the holder. 

Stock Options 

Prior to March 15, 1996, the Company had an informal stock option program whereby employees were 
granted options to purchase shares of common stock. Under this informal program, options to purchase 4,3 17,540 
shares of common stock were granted. 

The Company adopted a stock option plan as amended (the “Option Plan”) for officers, employees and non- 
employee directors to purchase up to 6,300,000 shares of the Company’s comrnon stock. In September 2000, the 
Board of Directors of the Company approved an amendment to the Option Plan to reserve for issuance of 
6,000,000 shares of CIass B common stock. Generally, options become exercisable over vesting periods up to six 
years and expire ten years from the date of grant. 

F-15 



DIT CORPORATION 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FKNANCZAJ; STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
July 31, 2001 

7. Stockholders’ Equity - (Continued) 
A summary of stock option activity under the Company’s stock option plan is as follows: 

Weighted-Average 
Shares Exercise Price - -  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Outstanding at July 31, 1998 6,429,270 $ 3.95 

Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (1,393,680) 
Cance~ed (1 16,000) 7.43 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Granted 2,272,482 7.61 
2.93 

Forfeited (16,140) 4.14 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Outstanding at July 31, 1999 7,f 75,932 5.25 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Granted 8,851,086 9.98 

Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (2,621,400) 5.54 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Cance~ed (95 , 00 0) 8.86 

Forfeited (3 1,500) 10.93 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Outstanding at July 31,2000 1 3,279,118 8.3 1 
Granted 5,112,004 9.15 
Exercised (1,041,451) 6.61 
Canceled (299,247) 5.71 
Forfeited (55,200) 12.63 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Outstanding at July 31, 2001 16,995,224 $ 8.70 

The following table summarizes the status of stock options outstanding and exercisable at July 3 1, 2001 : 

Range of Exercise Prices 

$0.10 - $0.10 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$0.21 -$0.21 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$0.41 - $0.41 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$0.83 - $0.83 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$2.19- $2.63 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$3.44 - $4.13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$5.63 - $8.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$8.72 - $12.13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
$13.13 - $18.51 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Stock Options Outstanding 
Weighted-Average 

Remaining Number of Stock 

(in years) Exercisable 

470,500 3 .O 470,500 
17,632 3.7 17,632 
8 1,000 3.0 8 1,000 
30,000 3.7 30,000 

705,400 5.6 705,400 
985,250 5.7 835,250 

2,5 8 1,400 6.5 1,823,091 
10,960,542 8.9 3,065,020 
1,163,500 - 8.2 732,350 

- 7.9 7,760,243 16,995,224 

Contractual Life Options 
Number of Options 

- 
The weighted-average fair value of options granted was $4.63, $7.42 and $7.05 for the years ended July 3 1, 

1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively. 

Pro forma information regarding net income (loss) and income (loss) per share is required by SFAS No. 123, 
and has been determined as if the Company had accounted for einpIoyees’ stock optioiis under the fair value 
method provided by that statement. The fair value of the stock options was estimated at the date of grant using the 
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions for vested and non-vested options. 
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7. Stockholders’ Equity - (Continued) 
1999 2000 2001 

Assumptions 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  Average risk-free interest rate -. 4.67% 6.49% 4.77% 

Dividend yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - - - 
Volatility factor af the expected market price of the Company’s 

commonstock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  84% 81% 90% 
Average life . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 years 5 years 5 years 

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded 
options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require 
the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s 
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different f?om those of traded options, and because 
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s 
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its 
employees ’ st oclc options . 

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options under SFAS No. 123 is 
amortized to expense over the options’ vesting period. For the years ended July 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, pro 
forma net income (loss) and pro forma net income (loss) per share under SFAS No.123 amounted to the 
following: 

Year ended July 31 
1999 2000 2001 

Pro forma net income (loss) . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(53,295,000) $214,286,000 $514,716,000 

Basic $(0.80) $3.06 $7.54 
Pro forma net income (loss) per share: 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(0.80) $2.84 $6.88 

The Company has modified stock options granted for certain employees of the Company to accelerate or 
extend their terms. Accordingly, the Company recorded additional compensation expense of approximately 
$3,082,000 and $985,000, for the years ended July 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

Net2Phone Stock Options 

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, Net2Phone granted options to purchase 8,811,500 shares of its cornmon 
stock at exercise prices ranging from $3.33 to $15.00 per share to its employees and employees of IDT. In 
connection with the exercise of these options, Net2Phone extended $3,149,900 of recourse loans to its employees. 
In order to obtain the loans, optionees agreed to the cancellation of 23,382 outstanding options. 

During the quarter ended July 3 1 , 2000, stock options issued to certain officers and employees of Net2Phone 
were accelerated in accordance with the original stock option awards and as a result Net2Phone recorded 
approximately $12,500,000 in compensation charges as a resuIt of the acceleration. During the quarter ended July 
3 1,2000, stock options issued to certain officers and employees of IDT were modified and as a result, Net2Phone 
recorded $18,300,000 in compensation charges. 

Net2Phone Series A Stock 

On May 13, 1999, Net2Phone designated 3,150,000 shares of its preferred stock as Sei-ies A (“Series A 
Stock”) and sold 3,140,000 of such shares to unrelated third parties in a private placement transaction for 
aggregate gross proceeds of $3 1,400,000. 
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7. Stockholders’ Equity - (Conth”) 
stock Buyback Program 

During the year ended 3uly 3 1,2000, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized the repurchase of up 
to twenty million shares of the Company’s comnon stock. hi October 2000, the Board of Directors authorized a 
further increase in the share repurchase program to 25 million shares. During fiscal 2001, the Company 
repurchased 8.0 million shares, for an aggregate purchase price of $135,849,000. Combined with 6.3 million 
shares purchased during Fiscal 2000, the Company has repurchased a total of approximately 14.3 million shares 
of coimnon stock through the end of Fiscal 2001. In addition, the Company has repurchased 1.4 million cornmon 
shares during the first quarter of Fiscal 2002. 

- 

LiberoI hledia Transaction 

On March 27, 2000, Liberty Media agreed to purchase approximately 9.9% of the equity of IDT, equal to 
approximately 7,550,000 shares of IDT’s coimnon stock and exchangeable for shares of Class B common stock. 
On June 6, 2000, Liberty Media completed the purchase of 7,457,898 shares of IDT’s common stock at $17.25 
per share, resulting in aggregate cash consideration of approximately $128,648,000. Liberty Media also has the 
right to nominate a director for election to the IDT Board of Directors. 

AT&T Tipansaction 

In March 2000, the Company was granted the option to sell AT&T 4,081,632 shares of its Class B coinmon 
stock for approximately $74,787,000. In March 200 I ,  the Company exercised this option, 

Hicks Muse Tate & First Timsaction 

In June 200 1, the Company issued stock options to Hicks, Muse, Tate & Fust  Incorporated (“HMTF”) to 
purchase up to 2,200,000 shares of the Company’s Class B c o m o n  stock at exercise prices ranging from $1 1.25 
to $15.00 per share, as defined. The stock options are exercisable 011 the first anniversary of the agreement, and 
expire on the fifth anniversary date. In consideration for the stock options issued to HMTF, the Company received 
$2,000,000 in cash. 

IDT Charitable Foundation 

In May 2001, the Company established the IDT Charitable Foundation (“Foundation”) with the purpose of 
obtaining money or property to be contributed from time to time to eligible charitable organizations. The 
Foundation also administers a matching gifts program available to our directors, officers, employees and retirees. 

In July 2001, the Company funded the Foundation with 2.2 inillion shares of Class B common stock worth 
approximately $26,378,000 million at that time. 

Net2Phone Sunzinav Financial Itfomation 

Summary financial information for Net2Phone as of July 3 I ,  2000 is as follows: 

(S’s in thousands): 
Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 156,023 
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 411,728 
Working capita1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 106,372 
Revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 72,401 
Operating loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $( 128,s 13) 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies 
Legal Proceedings 

On February 15, 2000, Multi-Tech Systems, Inc. filed suit against Net2Phone, Inc. and other companies in 
the United States Federal District Court in Minneapolis, Minriesota. In its press release, Multi-Tech stated that 
“the defendant companies are infringing because they are providing the end users with the software necessary to 
simultaneously transmit voice and data on their computers in the form of malung a phone call over the Internet.” 
Net2Phone has defended the lawsuit vigorously. Net2Phone has filed an answer and discovery has now been 
completed. Trial of this matter is tentatively scheduled for August 1, 2002. In the interim, it is likely that various 
motions will be filed to limit the scope of the plaintiffs d a h s  or to dismiss the action in its entirety. NetZPhone 
believes that the Multi-Tech claims are without merit. However, should a judge issue an injunction against 
Net2Phone requiring that they cease distributing Multi-Tech’s software or providing Multi-Tech’s software- 
based services, such an injunction could have a inaterial adverse effect on Net2Phone’s business operations, 
hancial  condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

IDT filed a Complaint with the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey on January 29, 
2001, against Telefonica S.A., Terra Networks, S.A., Terra Networks, U.S.A., Inc. and Lycos, Inc. The complaint 
asserts claims against the defendants for, among other things, breaches of various contracts, breach of fiduciary 
duty, secuiities violations, fraudulent misrepresentation, negligent misrepresentation, fraudulent concealment and 
tortious interference with prospective economic advantage. The defendants have been served with the complaint. 
IDT has filed an amended complaint and the defendants have filed an answer to the amended complaint. Terra 
Networks, S A . ,  has filed a Counterclaim for breach of contract alleging that IDT was required to pay to Terra 
Networks, S.A. $3,000,000, and that IDT has allegedly failed to do so. The Defendants have filed a Motion to 
Dismiss the Complaint. On September 14,2001, the Court issued an Order: (a) permitting IDT to take discovery 
relevant to the subject of whether Telefonica is subject to personal jurisdiction, (b) denying Telefonica’s motion 
to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction without prejudice to Telefonica’s right to renew the motion upon the 
completion of jurisdictional discoveiy, and (c) carrying on the calendar defendants’ motion to dismiss on non- 
jurisdictional grounds pending the completion of jurisdictional discovePy. 

On May 25, 2001, IDT filed a Statement of Claim with the American Arbitration Association naming 
Telefonica Intemacional, S.A. (“Telefonica”) as the Respondent. The Statement of Claim asserts that IDT and 
Telefonica entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) that involved, among other things, the 
construction and operation of a submarine cable network around South America (“SAm-I”). IDT is claiming, 
among other things, that Telefonica breached the MOU by: (1) failing to negotiate SAm-I agreements; (2) 
refusing to comply with the equity provisions of the MOU; (3) refusing to sell capaciv and back-haul capacity 
pursuant to the MOU; and (4) fading to follow through on the joint venture. In addition to IDT’s request that 
Telefonica comply with the terms of the MOU, IDT is alleging that it has been damaged in amounts not less than: 
[ 1) $1.15 billion for claim number 1 above; (2) $1.15 billion for claim number 2 above; (3) $100 rnillion for claim 
number 3 above; and (4) $750 million for claim number 4 above. Telefonica has responded to IDT’s Statement of 
Claims and has filed a Statement of Counterclaim which alleges, inter alia: (1) Fraud in the Inducement; (2) 
Tortious Interference with Prospective Business Relations; (3) Breach of the Obligations of Good Faith and Fair 
Dealing; and (4) Declaratory and Injunctive Relief. This action is currently in the early stages of discovery. 

The Company is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of 
its business and have not been finally adjudicated. Although there can be no assurances in this regard, in the 
opinion of the Company’s management, such proceedings, as well as the aforementioned actions, will not have a 
material adverse effect on results of operations or the financial condition of the Company. 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies - (Continued) 
Lease Obligations 

The future minimum payments for all capital and operating leases as of July 3 1 , 200 1 are approximately as 
- -  follows: 

Operating Capital 
Leases Leases 

(In thousands) 
Year ending July 3 1 : 

2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
 erea after . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Less amount representing interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Less current portion.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capital lease obligations-long-term portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ 9,595 
8,527 
8,042 
7,780 
6,920 

93.33 1 

$ 21,386 
21,710 
15,557 
10,212 
8,179 

$134,195 77,044 

(8,975) 

$ 49,799 
(1 8,270) 

Rental expense under operating leases was approximately $2,82 1,000, $6,857,000 and $4,857,000 for the 
years ended July 3 1, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively. 

Commitments 

The Company has entered into purchase commitments of approximately $3 1,000,000, primarily related to 
connectivity agreements. 

9. Business Segment Information 

Based principally on products and services provided, the Company has identified five reportable business 
segments: Wholesale Telecommunications Services, Retail Telecommunications Services, Internet Services, 
Internet Telephony, and Ventures The operating results of these business segments are distinguishable, are 
regularly reviewed by Company management and are integral to their decision making process. 

The Wholesale Telecomunications Services business segment is comprised of wholesale carrier services 
sold to other U. S. and international carriers. The Retail Telecommunications Services business segment includes 
prepaid and rechargeable calling cards, international retail services and domestic long distance services. The 
Internet Services business segment includes dial-up access services and direct connect dedicated service. The 
Internet Telephony business segment reflects the results of the Company’s formerly majority-owned subsidiay, 
Net2Phone, prior to the elimination of minority interests. The Ventures business segrnent, new for the fiscal year 
ended July 3 I ,  2000, includes new industries explored by the Company, such as CTM Brochure Display, Inc. 

The Company evaluates the perfomance of its business segments based primarily on operating income after 
depreciation and amortization but prior to interest expense and income taxes. All corporate overhead is allocated 
to the business segments based on time and usage studies, except for certain specific corporate transactions that 
are not associated with the operations of the business segments. Operating results and other financial data 
presented for the principal business segments of the Company for the years ended July 3 1 , 1999, 2000 and 200 1 
are as follows (in thousands): 
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9. Business Segment Information - (Continued) 

Wholesale Retail 
Telecommunications Telecommunications Internet Internet 

Services Services -Services Telephony Ventures Corporate Total 

Year ended July 31, 1999 
Total segment revenue 
Less revenue between 

. . , . 

se,gments . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total unaffiliated revenue . . 
Income (loss) from 

operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation and 

amortization . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Year ended July 31, 2000 
Total segment revenue . . . .  
Less revenues between 

segments . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total unaffiliated revenue . . 
Income {loss) from 

Depreciation and 
amortization . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Year ended July 3 1, 2001 
Total segment revenue . . . .  
Less revenues between 

segments . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total unaffiliated revenue , . 
Income (loss) from 

operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation and 

amortization.. . . . . . . . . . .  
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

operatioiis. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$301,413 

(12,383) 
289,030 

12,596 

14,120 

549,213 

(28,695) 

520,5 18 

(11,458) 

18,407 
43 1,659 

388,120 

- 

$ 395,542 

- 
3 95,542 

12,283 

15,275 

504,594 

(2,082) 
502,512 

(33,877) 

17,771 
358,656 

8 16,384 

- 

388,120 

(6 8,2 8 9) 

24,542 
$535,776 

8 16,384 

(58,082) 

27,937 
$1,066,402 

$ 17,882 $ 33,256 $ - $ - $ 748,093 

(948) (2,578) - - (1 5,909) 

16,934 30,678 - L 732,184 

(7,726) (8,197) (24,408) - - 

4,699 2,266 - - 36,360 

13,768 72,401 1,639 - 1,141,615 

(600) (16,326) - - (47,703) 

13,168 56,075 1,639 - 1,093,912 

(18,112) (125,865) (27,299) I (216,611) 

5,285 6,804 - 48,564 2 97 
1,2 19,055 13,145 403,202 12,393 - 

1,230,950 9,876 - 16,570 - 

- - - - - 

9,876 - 16,570 - 1,230,950 

( I  9,949) - (253,502) (32,888) (432,710) 

- 60,35 1 4,396 - 3,476 
- $ 264,573 $ - $1,881,338 $ 14,587 $ 

Revenue firom customers located outside of the United States represented approximately 13%, 17% and 16% 
of total revenue for the years ended July 3 I ,  1999,2000 and 2001, respectively, with no single foreign geographic 
area representing more than 10% of total revenues for the years ended July 31, 1999 and 2000 and Western 
Europe representing approximately 15% of total revenues for the year ended July 31, 2001. Revenues are 
attributed to countries based on the location of the customer. Long-lived assets held outside of the United States 
totaled approximately $24,400,000 and $88,800,000 as of July 3 1 ,  2000 and 2001, respectively. 

As a result of the Company’s gradual exit from the dial-up Internet access service business, including the 
sale of the majority of its dial-up Internet access customers, the Company recorded an impairment charge of 
approximately $5,957,000 during the year ended July 31, 2001 for the write-down of certain Internet Services 
segment fixed assets, primarily relating to equipment previously used to provide dial-up Internet access services. 

10. Additional Financial Information 

Trade accounts payable includes approximately $96,2 15,000 and $1 123 18,000 due to telecommunication 
carriers at July 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. 
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11. Acquisitions 

CTM Br-oclzure Display, Inc. 

On June 30, 2000, the Company acquired a 100% interest in CTM Brochure Display, Inc. (“CTM”), a 
brochure distribution coinpany, for an aggregate purchase price of- approximately $23,800,000. The purchase 
piice consisted primarily of $5,100,000 in cash, $16,942,000 in notes payable to the former owners and the 
liquidation of $1,400,000 of CTM’s bank debt. In connection with the transaction, the Company recorded 
goodwill of $23,000,000 which is being amortized over 20 years and tax liabilities of $3,000,000. The acquisition 
was accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly, the net assets and results of operations of the acquired business 
have been included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. During the year ended 
July 31, 2001, the Company repaid the entire principal balance on the notes payable, together with accrued 
interest. 

- 

Aplia, S.A. 

On J L ~ Y  7, 2000, Net2Phone acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Aplio, S.A (“Aplio”), a 
company located in France with technology that enables VoP devices. Consideration consisted of $2,900,000 in 
cash at closing, 582,749 shares of Net2Phone’s common stock which were valued at $35.50 per share, issuance of 
proinissoiy notes aggregating $4,500,000, $1,100,000 ir, acquisition related costs and $4,800,000 in cash to be 
paid within eighteen months of the closing of the transaction. 

As collateral for the $4,800,000 payment, Net2Phone has acquired 152,390 shares of its common stock in 
escrow. The aggregate purchase piice of $36,000,000 plus the fair value of net liabilities assumed of $2,7K?,CQI! 
totaled approximately $3 8,700,OOO which was allocated as follows: approximately $17,500,000 to goodwill, 
$20,700,000 to core technology and patents and $500,000 to assembled workforce. 

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase by Net2phone, and accordingly, the net assets and results of 
operations of the acquired business was included in the consolidated financial statements though August 2000. 

In February 200 1, the Company purchased certain assets of PT- 1 Communications, Inc. (“PT- 1 ”), a wholly- 
owned subsidiary of STAR Tefecomnunications, Inc., relating to its prepaid card business with a payment of 
cash and assuniptioii of cei-tain liabilities, including the obligation to honor the outstanding phone cards of PT-1. 
The cash payment and assumption of net liabilities incurred were approximately $26,300,000 with substantially 
all of the purchase price recorded as goodwill and being amortized over a period of 20 years. 

Equity Interests in Teligent, Inc. and ZCG Comnzuizicntions, h e .  

In April 2001, through its IDT Xnvestinents Inc. subsidiary (“IDT Investinents”) the Company acquired from 
Liberty Media 21,436,689 shares of Teligent, Inc. (“Teligent”), as well as an interest in ICG Coimiiunications, 
Inc. (“ICG”), represented by 50,000 shares of ICG’s A-3 Prefeired Stock and wan-ants to purchase 6,666,667 
ICG c o i n ”  shares. In exchange, IDT Investments issued Liberty Media a total of 10,000 shares of its Class B 
Comiiioii Stock and 40,000 shares of its Prefened Class A stock. Upon conipleting the transaction, IDT 
effectively owned approximately 29% of the equity of Teligent, and approximately 40% of the equity of ICG. 

In May 2001, through its IDT Investments subsidiary, the Company entered into an agreement with various 
affiliates of HMTF to increase IDT’s strategic investments in Teligent and ICG. Under the terms of the 
agreement, the HMTF affiliates received 18,195 shares of ZDT Investments’ Series B Convertible Prefeil-ed Stock 
in exchange for the HMTF affiliates’ stakes in Teligent and ICG. The HMTF affiliates owned 219,998 shares of 
Teligent ’s Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, 23,000 shares of ICG’s 8% Series A-2 Convertible Preferred 
Stock and warrants to purchase 3,066,667 shares of ICG’s coinrnon stock. The share of the equity losses recorded 
by IDT subsequent to all of the above Teligent and ICG transactions have eliminated the carrying value of the 
investment s in these coinp ani e s . 
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11. Acquisitions - (Continued) 

ICG had previously filed for bankruptcy protection in November 2000. 

12. Earnings Per Share 

In May 2001, Teligent filed a voluntary bankruptcy petition under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Banlcniptcy Code. 

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share: 

Year ended July 31 

Numerator: 
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Subsidiary redeemable preferred stock dividends 
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders . . 

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding-Basic , , 

Effect of stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding-Diluted 

Basic earnings (loss) per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Denominator: 

Diluted eamings (loss) per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1999 

$(I 8,204) 
(2 6,2 9 7) 

$/44,501) 

67,060 

67,060 

(0.66) 

I 

$ (0.66) 

2000 
(in thousands) 

$230,850 

$230,8 50 

- 

.~ ~ ~~ 

69,933 
5,306 

75,239 

$ 3.30 
3.07 

2001 

$532,359 

$532,359 

- 

68,301 
6,485 

74,786 

$ 7.79 
7.12 

The following securities have been excluded from the dilutive per share computation as they itre antidilutive 

Year ended July 31 
1999 2000 2001 

Stock options: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,587,966 449,500 1 , 163,500 

13. Net2Phone Subsidiary Stock Sales 

During the year ended July 31, 2000, the Company recognized approximately $350,344,000 in gains, 
including gain on sales o f  subsidiary stock related to Net2Phone stock sales as follows: 

On August 3, 1999, Net2Phone completed an initial public offering of 6,210,000 shares of coimon stock at 
an initial public offering price of $15.00 per share, resulting in net proceeds of approximately $85,300,000. Upon 
completion of the initial public offering, 3,140,000 shares of Net2Phone Series A Preferred Stock were converted 
into 9,420,000 shares of Net2Phoiie Class A Stock. As a result of the initial public offering and concurrent 
conversion of Series A Stock to Class A stock, the Company’s ownership percentage in Net2Phone decreased 
from approximately 90.0% to approximately 56.2%. In connection with such offering, the Company recorded a 
gain on sale of stock by a subsidiaiy of approximateIy $65,464,000. Such gain is included in gain on sales of 
subsidiary stock for the year ended July 3 1,2000. Deferred taxes of $26,200,000 have been provided on the gain. 

In December 1999, Net2Phone completed a secondaxy offering of 6,300,000 shares of cor”on stock at a 
price of $55.00 per share. In connection with this offering, IDT also sold 2,200,000 shares of Net2Phone common 
stock at $55.00 per share. Proceeds to the Company, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and 
offering expenses were approximately $292,800,000. The Company’s ownership interest in Net2Phone before 
and after these transactions decreased from 56.2% to 47.97%. The Company recorded gains on sales of stock of 
approximately $182,594,000 in connection with these offerings. Such gains are included in gain 011 sales of 
subsidiary stock for the year ended July 31, 2000. Deferred taxes of approximately $30,700,000 have been 
provided for these gains. 
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13. Net2Phone Subsidiary Stock Sales - (Continued) 
In March 2000, the Company acquired 806,452 shares of Yahoo! Inc. in exchange for 2,777,778 shares of 

Net2Phone common stock at a then equivalent market value of approximately $150,000,000. In connection with 
this transaction, the Company recorded a gain on sale of subsidiary- stock of $102,286,000. 

14. TyCom Settlcment 

On October 10, 2000, IDT reached a full and final settlement with TyCom Ltd. (“TyCom”) of all pending 
claims brought against one another and their respective affiliates. The settlement agreement is subject to a - 
confidentiality agreement among the parties and only the following disclosure by IDT is permitted under the 
terms of that agreement. 

Under the terms of the settlement, TyCom granted to IDT Europe B.V.B.A. (“IDT Europe”), free of charge, 
certain exclusive rights to use capacity on the transatlantic and transpacific segments of TyCom’s globa1 undersea 
fiber optic network (the “TyCom Global Network”), which TyCom is currently deploying. The settlement 
agreement provides for IDT Europe to obtain exclusive indefeasible rights to use two 10 Gbls wavelengths on the 
transatlantic segment and two 10 Gb/s wavelengths on the transpacific segment for fifteen years from the 
applicable Handover Dates (YRU”) (as described below). TyCom previously announced that it expects the 
TyCom transatlantic network to be ready for service in September 2001, and the TyCom transpacific network to 
be ready for service in the second quarter of 2002, the respective “Ready for Service Dates.’’ Under the terms of 
the settlement agreement, the Handover Dates for the wavelengths on the transatlantic segment are nine months 
(for the fist wavelength) and 18 months (for the second wavelength), respectively, after the Ready for Service 
Date of the TyCom transatlantic network; and the Handover Date for the wavelengths on the transpacific segment 
are nine inoiiths (for the first wavelength) and 18 months (for the second wavelength), respectively, after the 
Ready for Service Date of the TyCoin transpacific network. 

Operation, administration and maintenance for the wavelengths used by the Company will be provided by 
TyCom for a fifteen year period after the relevant Handover Date, free of charge. TyCom has also granted the 
Company certain rights to resell any unused capacity on the wavelengths through TyCom as its sole and 
exclusive agent. In addition, the Company will also have the option, exercisable at least annually, to convert the 
available capacity on its wavelengths to available equivalent capacity on another portion of the TyCom Global 
Network. In recognition of the settlement, a gain of $313,486,000 was included as a component of “Other 
income” in the second quarter of Fiscal 2001. Due to a significant decline in IRU pricing and on demand for 
bandwidth capacity, the Company subsequently re-evaluated the recoverability of the carrying value of its R U  in 
accordance with SFAS No. 12 1 and as a result, the Company has recorded an impairment loss of $193,400,000 in 
the fourth quai-ter of Fiscal 2001 to reflect the asset’s fak value. 

15. Subsequent Events 

On October 23, 200 1 IDT entered into an agreement to Iead a consortium that would concentrate ownership 
of approximately 50% (64% of the voting power) of Net2Phone. The consortium consists of IDT, Liberty Media, 
and AT&T, resuhing in significant economic stakes in Net2Phone for all three parties. As part of the agreement, 
IDT and AT&T contributed their shares of Net2Phone (approximately 10.0 inillion and 18.9 million shares, 
respectively) to a newly foimed Limited Liability Company (LLC). Liberty then acquired a susbtantial portion of 
the LLC’s units froin AT&T, while IDT increased its stake and AT&T retained a significant interest. IDT will be 
the managing member of the LLC. 
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Additions 
Balance at Charged to 

Beginning of Costs and BaIance at 
Period Expenses Deductions (1) End of Period 

Reserves deducted fiom accounts receivable: 

2 000 
Reserves deducted from accounts receivable: 

200 1 
Reserves deducted fiom accounts receivable: 

Allowance for doubtfuI accounts . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,255,000 $ 5,558,000 $ (4,170,000) $ 7,643,000 

Allowance for doubtfid accounts . . . . . . . . . . 7,643,000 20,154,000 (1,026,000) 26,77 1,000 

Allowance for doubtful accounts . . I I .  . . . . . 26,771,000 32,873,000 (37,136,000) 22,508,000 

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries. 
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